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Art.5 — State as Right Holder

1. The State or any Entity owned by
the State may in the future become a
Right Holder pursuant to Article 36 of
this EPA, but the State or such entity
shall not in such capacity have any
rights or obligations under this EPA
that are different from those of any
other Right Holder (except to reflect
the respective Participating Interests
of each Right Holder).

2. The Right Holders shall not have,
and to the extent necessary hereby
waive, any right, arising as a matter of
law or otherwise, to recover any
contribution or other amounts from
the State or any Entity owned by the
State in its capacity as a Right Holder
that result from the joint and several
hature of the liability of the Right
Holders pursuant to Article 6.3 hereof
or the Law no 132/2010 (OPR Law),
except that the Right Holders shall be
permitted to exercise rights to
recover a contribution from the State
or any such Entity to such liability that
is proportional to the Participating
Interest then held by the State or such
Entity.
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Art, 6 Participating Interests,
Obligations of Right Holders and
Term of the EPA

1. This EPA enters into force on
the Effective Date. As of the Effective
Date, pursuant to Article 19-2 of the
Law no 132/2010 {OPR Law), the Right
Holders shall be deemed to have
formed an unincorporated joint
venture, on the terms set forth
herein. In accordance with Article 8 of
the Decree no 10289/2013 (PAR),
within thirty (30) days of the Effective
Date, each Right Holder shall have in
place, and shall maintain during the
term of this EPA, a legal presence in
Lebanon appropriately staffed and
authorized to manage, in accordance
with applicable Lebanese law, all
aspects of rights and obligations
related to or arising out of this EPA.

2. On the Effective Date of this
EPA, the respective Participating
Interests of [X1, {¥] and {Z] are:

(X:  {..] percent {.... %6);

(Y): [..}percent{... %}; and

[zi:  [.)percent{.... %)

3 The obligations of the Right

Holders under this EPA and in respecl
of all Petroleum Activities shall be
joint and several, except in respect of
{i) any obligation of an individual Right
Holder to pay taxes pursuant to
Article 26 of this EPA, or (ii) the
confidentiality obligations set forth in
Article 35 of this EPA. The Right

Holders may enter into agreements
among  themselves for the
apportionment  of  liability —or

sl haval Gl e ASMiall sl 1 Sl
AR Baay

L o A5 8 il o AFUEY) 020 i35

TR WU I W R SRR E L e 45 e ELGA
O YO oAy Csldl e V4Y
Dy oBgpadh ol 8 ATl 3l sl
R8I i pgiaa e g 4 5L 38 pgil (5 siadl sl
o paiall ASaS Gy Aasdie pe da)lad
ahy a3 padi e A Balall M alaYL g lle
Abiall  2ebflly Aalai¥l)  YL1Y/1.YAR
O basy (70 D8 D sl g il Ao iWl
oy OF G tanbea S lo Gy QL 2 5
Ba e Jailay oy el 8 Laglh LS o
asfa ol o G 520 JMa B LN
Gandin oo s P e N LS T3
Cham sall y (5 g8l an b apen 30 A1 ey
Ghy 3l Lgie At b ASEEY) »lgy Allxdall

A Lhall Lt ¢ 555 ABETY) 234 cg)'l.‘.'u A
S il e {65 [afs [o] a8

(%) e ] ]
$4(%..) W L] :[oa)
%..) 4[] :[e]

pib azgay ol Glaal Gliase of Y
(ot sl B aaan Gl La g A8EY)
b (1) = ol Lo olituly Addliate y Al
L_',Jﬁl_)khﬂ cﬁ,\g (‘53_)5 N Lamlucs (1;‘1 el g4
(¥) o ARBYY 38 Ga YU B ) Taanat
b Lle o gemiall Dy pally ol JHYH i g
Ghgiadlc Anaa’y ag AHEYT o3 (e T Bkl
38 gamal) ma)s8 Jad e pein e SR S
S BV S Y ol e el
AWCIA  siall tdaad  Glage Angab
XN t...‘;-'..ﬁ Rt Y S ENPY) Aialialall
10.Y bl ) aliiutily o 35t Al pad ol dlasy)



Yo

Y 8/ H s3alh Bade — Apann sl 83y s

indemnification, but no  such
agreement shall affect the joint and
several nature of the obligations of
the Right Holders hereunder. Any
such agreements shall be submitted
to the Minister for approval in
accordance with Article 65-1 of the
Law no 132/2010 (OPR Law).

4 Without prejudice to the joint
and several liability of the Right
Holders, concurrently with the
signature of this EPA, each of the
following Right Holders has provided
to the Minister a guarantee of its
obligations hereunder from the
guarantor set forth opposite its name,
substantially in the form of Annex E to
this EPA:

Such Guarantee is required where
the pre-qualified company has
designated a Wholly-Owned Affiliate
to be the Right Holder or where the
pre-qualified company has relied on
the characteristics of its parent to
become pre-qualified.

Right Holder Guarantor
[X] [X guarantor]
[Y] [Y guarantor]
[Z) [Z guarantor)

5. The rights and obligations of
each Right Holder, and the Right
Holders collectively, pursuant to the
EPA shall commence on the Effective
Date and shall remain in force:

a} With respect to
Reconnaissance,  Exploration
and Appraisal Activities, for the
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duration of the Exploration
Phase (and for the duration of
the Production Phase, to the
extent such activities are
conducted within a
Development and Production
Area);
b) With respect to Development
and Production Activities, for
the duration of the Production
Phase {and for the duration of
the relevant Production Period,
with respect to any particular
Development and Production
Area); and

c) For such additional period of
time as may be reasonably
necessary to finalise the
implementation of a plan for
the transfer of Petroleum
Activities to the State pursuant
to Article 25.4 of this EPA
and/or the cessation of
Petroleum  Activities and
decommissioning of Facilities
pursuant to Article 18 of this
EPA and the Decree no
10289/2013 (PAR).

6. This EPA may be terminated
prior to the relevant date or dates set
forth in paragraph 5 above at the time
and in the manner set forth in Article
36 of this EPA.

7 Notwithstanding that this EPA
has expired, has otherwise been
terminated or revoked subject to
applicable law or the terms and
conditions of this EPA, the obligations
of the Right Holders which have
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accrued hereunder before the date of
termination shall continue to be
binding on the Right Holders for the
period provided by applicable
Lebanese law and this EPA, and for
the purpose of any claim in respect
thereof (and of any obligations that
expressly apply after termination),
the provisions of this EPA relating to
the joint and several nature of the
liability of the Right Holders {Article
6.3), health, safety and environmental
requirements (Article 17),
decommissioning requirements
{Article 18), indemnification and
liability {Article 30), confidentiality
(Articte 35), arbitration (Article 38),
language, governing law and
interpretation (Article 40), Right
Holder conduct {Article 41), waiver
(Article 43) and notices {Article 44)
shall survive such termination.
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Art 7. Exploration Phase and Exploration
Periods

1. The Exploration Phase shall have a
maximum duration of seven {7) years. The
‘Exploration Phase shall commence on the
date on which a decision is made {or
deemed to be made} with respect to the
approval of the Exploration Plan for the
initial Exploration Period, pursuant to Article
7.7

2. The Exploration Phase shall be
divided into two Exploration Periods as
follows:

The first Exploration Period consists of three
(3} years that is extended one (1) additional
year in the event that the Right Holders or
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the Initial Right Holders have committed to
three (3) or more Exploration Wells in the
first Exploration Period according 1o the
technical proposal of the Right Holders or
the Initial Right Holders as specified by the
Tender Protocol. The second Exploration
period consists of two (2) years which may
be extended with the approval of the
Minister as provided in this Article 7.2,

The first Exploration Pariod shall commence
on the date of commencement of the
Exploration Phase determined pursuant to
Article 7.1. The second Exploration Period
shall commence on the expiration date of
the first Exploration Period, except that
there shall be no second Exploration Period
if the Right Holders fail to complete the
Minimum Work Commitment during the
first Exploration Period other than by reason
of an Event of Force Majeure(and the
Exploration Phase shall terminate at the end
of the first Exploration Period). If at the end
of the two-year term of the second
txploration Period the Right Holders have
completed the Minimutm Work
Commitment for such second Exploration
Period {unless prevented from doing so by
an Event of Force Majeure), and are
pursuing Appraisal Activities pursuant to an
approved Appraisal Plan, or have submitted
an Appraisal Plan for approval in & timely
mannar but have not yet recelved a
response, the Minister (based on the
recommendation of the  Petroleum
Administration) may appreove an extension
of the second Exploration Period of one (1)
year, upon request by the Right Holders
submitted at least sixty (60} days prior to the
end of the second FExploration Period.
Exploration Periods may be extended by
reason of an Event of Force Majeure
pursuant Yo Article 7.9. The Exploration
Phase shall terminate at the end of the
second Exploration Period {as it may be
extended), unless it is extended pursuant to
Article 7.10.

3. During the Exploration Phase, the Right
Holders may conduct Reconnaissance,
Exploration and  Appraisal  Activities
pursuant 1o approved Exploration Plans.
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Each Exploration Plan shall contain at a
minimum the information required by
Article 31 of the decree no 10283/2013
(PAR) {except that information regarding the
technical qualifications of the Right Holders
need not be submitted if it would be
duplicative of the information already
pravided in connection with the award of

this EPA). Exploration Plans may contain
applications for drilting permits
contemplated by the decree no

10289/2013) (PAR) , in which case the
approval by the Minister of the Exploration
Plan shall also constitute the approval of the
relevant drilling permit or permits,

4, The initial Exploration Plan shall be
submitted to the Minister with a capy to the
Petroleum Administration within sixty (60)
days of the Effective Date. Such Exploration
Plan shall, at a minimum, provide for the
completion of the Minimum Work
Commitment for the first FExploration
Periad,

5. No later than sixty (60) days prior to
the expiration of the first Explaration Period,
the Right Holders may submit an Exploration
Plan for the second Exploration Period to the
Minister with a copy to the Petroleum
Administration. No such Exploration Plan
may be submitted unless (i} the Right
Holders confirm in writing that they will
compiete the Minimum Work Commitment
prior to the end of the then current
Exploration  Period {unless they are
prevented from doing so by reason of an
Event of Force Majeure), (i) such
Exploration Plan, at 2 minimurm, provides for
the completion of the Minimum Work
Commitment (if any} for the Exploration
Period to which it applies, and (i) such
Exploration  Plan  provides for the
relinguishment of a portion of the remaining
area in the Block as provided in Article 7.6
and delineates the portion of the Block to he
relinquished. Upon approval hy the
Minister of such Exploration Plan, the rights
of the Right Holders to conduct
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Reconnaissance, Exploration and Appraisal
Activities shall be maintained in the relevant
Exploration Period, and the Block shall be
reduced by the area that is relinquished as
of the first day of such Exploratian Period.

6. The Right Holders shall relinguish
twenty-five per cent (25%) of the Block at
the start of the second Exploration Period.
For purposes of the foregoing, any Appraisal
Area and any Development and Production
Area shall not be subject to relinquishment.
The percentage set forth above shall be
applied to the portion of the Block that is
outside any Appraisal Area and any
Development and Production Area.  The
portion of the Block to be relinquished shall
be contiguous and delimited by meridians
and parallels expressed in minutes of a
degree, The same shall apply to the portion
of the Block that is retained by the Right
Holders. The size and shape of the Block to
be retained shall be subiect to approval by
the Minister, based on the opinion of the
Petroleum Administration,

At the end of the second Exploration Period
and upon the extension request of the
Exploration Phase, the Right Holders shall
relinquish an additional 25% of the initial
block size in order to fulfill the obligation
stipulated in the article 24 of the Law No
132/2010 {OPR Law}.

7. The Petroleum Administration shall
review each Exploration Plan and make a
recommendation to the Minister as to
whether to approve such Exploration Plan.
1f no decision is made as to approval or
rejection of an Exploration Plan within sixty
{60) days of its submission to the Petroleum
Administration, the Exploration Plan shall be
deemed approved, The Exploration Plan
shall be approved unless (i} the relevant
conditions set forth in Articles 7.4 or 7.5
relating to the Minimum Work Commitment
are not met, (i) any required Work
Commitmant Guarantee has not been
provided, (iii} the Exploration Plan does not
provide for the required relinguishment
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pursuant to Article 7.6, (iv) the activities
contemplated in the Exploration Plan are
not in accordance with Best International
Petroleum Industry Standards, (v} such
activities would, in the reasonable opinion
of the Petroleum Administration, present an
unacceptable risk to heaith, safety or the
environment, or {vi) such activities would
violate applicable Lebanese law.  Any
decision to reject an Exploration Plan shall
be accompanied by a written explanation of
the reasons for such rejection. In the event
that any Exploration Plan is not approved,
the Right Holders may submit an amended
Exploration Plan addressing the issues giving
rise to its rejection, and such Exploration
Plan shali be evaluated on the basis of the
same standards. Unless the Minister allows
otherwise, the Right Holders may only
submit one such amended Exploration Plan
in respect of each Fxploration Period. Prior
to the rejection of any such amended
Exploration Plan by the Minister, the
Petroleum Administration shall notify the
Right Holders of the contemplated rejection,
and upon the request of the Right Holders
shall engage in good faith discussions with
the Right Holders for at least thirty (30} days
with regard to possible further amendments
to the Exploration Plan. Pending the
outcome of such discussions, the
Exploration Plan shall net be deemed
approved or rejected. If such discussions
result in agreed further amendments, the
Right Holders shall have the right to submit
an Exploration Plan with such amendments
in replacement of the prior amended
Exploration Plan (notwithstanding the
restriction that would otherwise limit the
Right Holders to one amended Exploration
Plan).

8. In the event that, at the end of the
first Exploration Period, the Right Holders do
not submit an Exploration Plan for the
second Exploration Period, or any such
Exploration Plan {and any amended plan) is
finally rejected, then the Right Holders may
not conduct any further Petroleum
Activities, except for (i} Appraisal Actlvities
conducted within an Appraisal Area in
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accordance with an Appraisal Plan, and {il)
Patroleum Activities conducted within 2
Development and Production Area in
accordance with a Development and
Production Plan. In such event, the Right
Holders shall be deemed to have
relinguished the entire Block, except for any
Appraisal Area or Development and
Production Area that has been approved,
and any proposed Appraisal Area or
proposed Development and Production
Area that is the subject of an Appraisal Plan
or Development and Production Plan that is
under review for possible approval.

9, In the event that Reconnaissance,
Exploration  or  Appraisal Activities
contemplated in an Exploration Plan are
substantially interrupted due to an Event of
Force Majeure, the relevant Exploration
Period {and the period for completion of the
relevant Minimum Work Commitment} shall
be extended by the number of days of the
interruption.  However, no Exploration
Period may be extended beyond the end of
the Exploration Phase, except with the prior
approval of the Council of Ministers in
accardance with Article 21-1 of the Law no
132/2010 (OPR Law}. In such event, the
Exploration Phase may not be extended
beyond the latest date permitted by the Law
no 132/2010 (OPR Law).

10. At the end of the Exploration Phase,
the Right Holders may apply to the Minister,
with a copy to the Petroleum
Administration, for an extension of the
Exploration Phase pursuant to Article 21 of
the Law no 132/2010 (OPR Law). Such an
application must be submitted within the
time period contemplated in Article 33 of
the Decree no 10289/2013 (PAR). The
application shall provide the following
information:

a} the reasons the Right Holders are
seeking an extension (which must be
valid operational reasons or an Event
of Force Majeure, as provided in
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Article 33 of the Decree no
10289/2013 (PAR});

b) the proposed duration of the
extension,

¢} a description of the portion of the
Block to be relinquished pursuant to
Article 24 of the Law no 132/2010
(OPR Law), and

d) aproposed Exploration Plan covering
y the period of the extension (ot a
statement to the effect that the
purpose of the extension is to pursue
activities wunder an approved
Appraisal Plan, or to prepare a
Development and Production Plan

for approval).

The Right Holders may propose to provide a
guarantee relating 1o the  work
contemplated in such Exploration Plan
{including  pursuant to the ‘Work
Commitment Guarantee provided in
connection with the Second Exploration
Period, if appropriate), and the Minister
shall consider any such guarantee in
deciding whether to submit the extension
request to the Council of Ministers for
approval pursuant to Article 21-1 of the Law
no 132/2010 (OPR Law). Any such extension
shall be effective only upon the approval by
the Council of Ministers.

11. For the avoidance of doubt, the
duration of the Exploration Period(s) and the
Exploration Phase shall not be affected by
the submission or approval of an Appraisal
Plan or a Development and Production Plan.
The Right Holders may continue to conduct
Exploration, Reconnalssance and Appraisal
Activities in all parts of the Biock for the
remaining duration of the Exploration
Phase, and inside of a Development and
Production Area for the remaining duration
of the Exploration Phase and the Production
Phase. ¥ an additional Discovery is made,
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the Right Holders shali follow the
procedures contemplated by this EPA in
respect of such additional Discovery.

£ VI peanal) (Janlh ibimgal AN 2l bl Al Balalh S35 =5

Art. 8 Minimum Work Commitment

1. The Right Holders shall carry out the
Minimum Work Commitment stipulated by
this Article with respect to each Exploration
Period. The Minimum Work Commitments
stipulated by this Article may not be

performed as  Exclusive  Petroleum
Operations.
2. During the first Exploration Period

the Right Holders shall conduct the following
Minimum Work Commitment:

a)Exploration Wells drilling:

(1 orll at least _ _ ()
Exploration well(s). Each
Exploration Well shall be drilled
according to the Technical
Proposal submitted by the Right
Holders or the Initial Right
Holders as specified in the
Tender Protocol.

In case any part of the Minimum Work
Commitment far the first Exploration Period
described in this Article has not been
performed by the end of the first Exploration
Period, the Right Hoelders shall pay to the
$tate an amount of [....cwreeeee. {ion}] United
States dollars, less the amount of
Recoverable Costs incurred during the first
Exploration Pericd in fulfilment of the
Minimum Work Commitment.

3, During the second Exploration Period
{excluding any extension approved by the
Minister pursuant to Article 7.2), the Right
Holders shall conduct the following
Minimum Work Commitment:
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a} Exploration Wells drilling:

(1) Drill at least ___ (__) Exploration
Weil(s). Each Exploration Well shall
be drilled according to the Technical
Proposal submitted by the Right
Holders or the Initial Right Holders as
specified in the Tender Protocol,

In case any part of the Minimum Work
Comrditment for the second Exploration
Period described in this Article has not been
performed by the end of the second
Exploration Periad, the Right Holders shall
pay to the State an amount of [...............
{....)] United States doltars, less the amount
of Recoverable Costs incurred during the
second Exploration Period (or carried
forward from the first Exploration Period as
provided below) in fulfilment of the
minimum Work Commitment.

4, Atthe end of each Exploration Period
(excluding any extension approved by the
Minister pursuant to Article 7.2, in the case
of the second Exploration Period), if the
Minimum Work Commitment has not been
satisfied, the Right Holders shall provide a
statement of the Recoverable Costs incurred
in fulfilment of the Minimum Work
Commitment within sixty (60) days of the
end of such Exploration Period. The Right
Holders shall pay the requisite amount
described in paragraphs 2 or 3 above, as the
case may be, within thirty (30) days of the
delivery of such statement. Such payment
shall be without prejudice to the right of the
Petroleum Administration to dispute the
amount of such Recoverable Costs or their
attribution to the Minimum Waork
Commitment. In the event that any such
payment is not made in a timely manner, the
Minister may draw the relevant amount
under the applicable Work Commitment
Guarantee. In the event tha. the statement
of Recoverable Costs is not submitted in a
timely manner, the Minister may draw the
entire amount of the appiicable Work
Commitment Guarantee, as if the
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recoverable Costs were zero, unless the
failure to submit the statement is cured
before the drawing is made. [The Minister
shall draw the full amount available under
the applicable  Work  Commitment
Guarantee before making any claim under
any guarantee provided pursuant to Article
[6.4/6.8 of this EPA] arising from any failure
by the Right Holders to satisfy the Minimum
Work Commitment.]

The last paragraph will be amended or
deleted in case any guarantee is requested
pursuant to Articles 6.4 and 6.8 of this EPA.

5. The Right Holders must complete the
work contemplated by the Minimum Work
Commitment regardiess of the amount of
Recoverable Costs Incurred in doing so. The
Minimum Work Commitment is a minimum
work obligation and not a spending
obligation,

6. Should any Well forming part of the
Minimum  Work  Commitments  be
abandoned before reaching the defined
objectives of such Well for any reason, the
Right Holders shall drill a substitute Well,
unless the Right Holders demonstrate to the
reasonable satisfaction of the Minister
(based on the opinion of the Petroleum
Administration} that:

tH a formation stratigraphically
older than the deepest target
formation is encountered;

(ii)

basement is encountered;

(iii)  further drilling would present
an obvious danger, such as
but not limited to the
presence  of abnormal
pressure or excessive lasses
of drilling mud;

{iv)  impenetrable formations are
encountered;
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(v} Petroleum-bearing

formations are encountered
which require protecting,
thereby preventing planned

depths from being reached.

In such circumstances the drilling of any
such well may be terminated at a lesser
depth and shall be deemed to have satisfied
the obligations of the Right Holders in
respect of that Well. In the event that the
Right Holders are required to drill a
substitute Well, the Right Holders may apply
to the Minister for an extension of the
relevant Exploration Period, which the
Minister may grant, to the extent such
extension is reasonably necessary to allow
for drilling and evaluation of the substitute
Well. No such extension may last beyond
the end of the Exploration Phase {unless an
extension of the Exploration Phase is applied
for pursuant to Article 7.10 of this EPA and
approved by the Council of Ministers in
accordance with Article 71-1 of the Law no
13272010 (OPR Law}. No such extension
shall be available if the relevant Well is
abandoned before reaching its defined
objectives as a result of the failure by the
Operator to conduct the relevant Petroleum
Activities in accordance with the standards
required by this EPA and the decree no
10289/2013 (PAR).

7. In the event the number of Wells
drilled by the Right Holder (excluding any
appraisal Well) or the Data acquired during
the first Exploration Period exceeds the
number of Wells or the amount of Data
acquired provided for in the Minimum Work
Commitment for that Exploration Period as
specified by this EPA, the number of
additional Wells drilled or the amount of
additionai Data acquired by the Right Holder
during such Exploration Period may be
carried forward and treated as waork
undertaken in discharge of the Right
Holder's Minimum Work Commitment to
drill Wells or acquire Data during the second
Exploration Period if such work would
comply with the requirements of the second
Explaration Period; provided, however, if by
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reason of the provisions of this Article the
Minimurn Work Commitment of the Right
Holder for the second Expleration Period as
specified by this EPA has been fully
discharged by the Right Holders before that
Exploration Period commences, the Right
Helders shall, after consultation with the
Petroleum  Administration, adjust the
Exploration Plan for the second Exploration
Period so as to ensure the continuity of
Petroleum Activities in the Block pursuant to
this EPA,

8. Appraisal Wells drilled with respect
to a Discovery shall not be considered
Exploration Wells for purposes of the
Minimum Work Commitment. in the event
of a Discovery, only the Discovery Well shall
be deemed to be an Exploration Well for
purposes of the Minimum  Work
Commitment.
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Art. 9 Work Commitment Guarantee

1. On or prior to the date of this
Agreement, the Right Holders have jointly
and severally provided to the Minister one
or more Work Commitment Guarantees in
the aggregate amount of USS___ ., {This
amount will be determined pursuant to the
Tender Protocol).

2. On or prior to the date of submission
of an Exploration Plan for the second
Expleration Period, the Right Holders shall
be jointly and severally required to provide
to the Minister one or more Work
Commitment Guarantees in the aggregate
amount of USS . {This amount will be

determined pursuant to the Tender
Protocol).
3. Following the end of each calendar

year, the Right Holders may present to the
Minister, with a copy to the Petrofeum
Administration, a statement of the
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Recoverable Costs they incutred in
fulfiiment of the Minimum Work
Commitment during such calendar year.
Within thirty (30) days after the receipt of
such statement, the Minister, based on the
recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration, shall provide to the Right
Holders a certificate (in the form attached to
the Work Commitment Guarantee)
providing for the reduction of the amount of
the Work Commitment Guarantee in an
amount equal to the lesser of (i} the
Recoverable Costs set forth in the statement
and (i) the aggregate of the Indicative Work
Commitment Amounts provided in the
Technical Proposal submitted as per the
Tender Protocol that correspond to the
particular Minimum Work Commitments
compieted during such calendar year. The
foregoing notwithstanding, the amount of
the Work Commitment Guarantee shall
under no circumstances be reduced 1o an
amount that is less than the aggregate of the
indicative Work Commitment Amounts
estimated by the Right Holders in the
Technical Proposal submitted as per the
Tender Protocol as necessary to perform the
Minimum Work Commitments that remain
ta be completed prior to the end of the first
Exploration Period or second Exploration
Period, as the case may be, Inthe eventthat
the Minister, based on the recommendation
of the Petroleum Administration, disputes
the amount of any such Recoverable Costs,
or their allocation to the Minimum Work
Commitment, the Minister shall provide a
certificate with respect to the undisputed
portion  thereof, The  Petroleum
Administration and the Right Holders shall
discuss the resolution of such dispute, and if
no agreement is reached within thirty (30)
days of the date of delivery of such
statement, the Right Holders may submit
the question to a sole expert for
determination pursuant to Article 39 of this
EPA. Such determination shail be final and
binding on the Parties. Following the
resolution of the dispute, the Minister shall
provide the Right Holders with an additional
certificate to reduce the Work Commitment
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Guarantee in an amount reflecting such
resolution.

4, When the  Minimum  Work
Ccommitment for an Exploration Period has
been completed, the Work Commitment
Guarantee for the Exploration Period in
question shall be released within thirty (30}
days after the Right Holders deliver a
request for such release to the Petroleum
Administration.
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Art. 20 Recruitment, training and
institutional support

1. The Right Holders shall develop and
carry out an effective recruitment and
training program for Lebanese personnel in
accordance with this EPA, the law no
132/2010 {OPR Law), and decree no
10289/2013 {PAR), including such
additional requirements as may be specified
by the Petroleum Administration pursuant
to Article 164 of the decree no 10289/2013
(PAR). A proposal for a detailed recruitment
and training program shall be submitted to
the Petroleum Administration for approval
no later than six (6) months after the
Effective Date of this EPA. An updated
program for recruitment and training shall
be submitted annually to the Petroleum
Administration by 31 December each year.
As of the beginning of the Exploration Phase,
not less than eighty per cent (80%) of the
aggregate number of employees of the Right
Holders (inciuding the Operator} shall be
Lebanese nationals. Prior to the beginning
of the Exploration Phase, the Right Holders
and their contractors and subcontractors
according to article 67 of the Law no
132/2010 (OPR Law} shall achieve this eighty
per cent (80%) threshold as soon as pessible,
to the extent that they are able to recruit a
sufficient number of lLebanese nationals

(gl

ki iy sl el Qlaal (Ao
By il ooldadl cupdy aladiu Jad
A ostally s FUEY, GLISLLYY A8
olyall @3 F\;ﬁ_’_):\.l" J_)'I_,AJ‘I uj.ilfa) AERETARR
AdaiVI) Y OYY/Y O YAR 85 0 gan gall 5 (Bl
O le (@Gl AaifL Al 2ol gl
A Al kil gl 13 Gty
sakall HSaY T J 5 it g Ul 3 ) Aga Ladaas
Al YO AY/YOYAR B o gl e V18
pid cny . (Rl Al Adkesiall aed A
Gl AlEEY Ja Jenbe i p) 718
g i 4ole 4 gall J g il Uk 513} B
oin i A0 ae eil (V) Hw e Y
5 ez At p il pald ys o g AT
g iy il g Ul 300 A M} 452t
Oe et Al JS ge I 088 TY Jglaa
By Y e S o oy el Ala g Ayl
el sl g (% A) Bado 08 e
Lﬂiﬁ@@)@ﬁdl@@i@ﬁ@lﬁhj\ RPN
Uy eal J AU Gudadt (e (Jalalh
g_'g_,ﬁ:u.“ i._.ila...a'l Ult- [T, T A
pena | g2k 03y 3N 0o il g Ol gliall g
On Y B o Ade papaie o W e,
AP R PIDN YR EREVAR A P BIST-El
Ay it B ) S ) (Rl ol B
SNl K iy ol B (% AY)
Ga S 0 plaial o polh w05y

pedlly Gty



LA

Yo/ o Y A saal Gaka - dpenl s el

with the requisite qualifications, and the
Right Holders and their contractors and
subcontracters shall in any event maximize
the proportion of lebanese nationals
employed by them, subject to their
obligation to conduct Petroleum Activities in
accordance  with  Best  [nternstional
Petroleum [ndustry Standards. In the event
that as of the beginning of the Exploration
Phase or at any time thereafter the
aggregate number of employees of the Right
Holders (including the Operator) and their
contractors and subcontractors who are
Lebanese nationals is less than eighty per
cent {80%), the Right Holders shall submit to
the Minister on their behalf and on behalf of
their contractors and subcontractors in
writing an explanation of the reasons why
this requirement has not been met and a
request for a temporary exemption from
this requirement. The Right Holders may
request one or more temporary exemptions,
but no exemption may be requested for a
period exceeding consecutive twelve (12)
months. The Minister may, based on the
opinion of the Petroleum Administration
and after consulting with the concerned
ministries, grant such a temporary
exemption to the Right Holders and their
contractors and subcontractors subject to
compliance with such terms and conditions,
including achievement of any lesser targets
for the employment of Lebanese nationals,
as the Minister determines are appropriate
upon recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration. Pending a decision on the
exemption request, the Right Holders and
their contractors and subcontractors shall
not be considered to be in breach of this
requirement.

2. Without limiting the foregoing, the
Operator shall employ, and cause all
Contractors and Subcontractors to employ,
qualified personnel of Lebanese nationality
whenever available. The Right Holders shall
fund the training of Lebanese personnel
associated with Petroleum Activities. Each
Exploration Plan and Development and
Production Plan shall include a plan for the
hiring and training of persons of Lebanese
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nationality, including hiring and training of
management, engineering and other
professional staff, consistent with the
recruitment and training program prepared
pursuant to Article 20.1.

3. The Right Holders shall pay costs
related to the support of public sector
institutions and the training of public sector
personne! with functions relating to the oil
and gas sector identified by the Petroleum
Administration in  addition to those
nominated by the concerned ministries and
notified to the Petroleum Administration
(including awarding public sector personnel
research grants), in an amount up to
$/300,000/ per year (increased by 5% each
year) until the beginning of the Production
Phase, and thereafter $/500,000/ per year

{increased by 5% each year). The Right
Holders shall, upon request by the
Petroleum  Administration, assist the

Petroleum Administration in arranging third
party training opportunities for such public
sector personnel, to be paid for by the Right
Halders pursuant to the preceding sentence.
The Right Holders shall pay all such costs
directly to the provider of the training {or to
the recipient of the research grant] when
due and shall, promptly upon request from
the Petrocleum Administration, provide
satisfactory evidence of payment of such
costs in order to enable the Petroleum
Administration to monitor and verify the
Right Holders’ expenditure under this
Articte,

4. The Right Holders and their Affiliates
may provide training or participate in the
preparation  of  tralning  programs
contemplated by Article 20.3, unless doing
so would represent an actual or potential
conflict of interest (such as training auditing
personnal who would be expected to audit
the books and records of the Right Holders).
As soon as practicable after the Effective
Date, the Right Holders and the Petroleum
Administration shall jointly prepare, and
shaii subsequentiy update at least annually,
2 plan for institutional support and training
programs to be implemented pursuant to
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Article 20.3, including the type and amount
of any contemplated institutional support,
types of training and the categories of
personnel to receive training, lists of and
methads for selecting eligible training
service providers {which may include the
Right Holders and their Affiliates except as
provided above inthis Article 20.4}, and such
other information as they may consider
appropriate.

5. The cost incurred by the Right Holder
for recruitment and training of Lebanese
personnel and the annual contribution for
the support of public sector institutions and
training and participation of public sector
personnel as provided in this Article shall be
Recoverable Costs for the purpose of the
Accounting and Financial Procedure that
constitutes Annex D of this EPA.
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Art 21. Coordinated Petroleum Activities
and unitisation

1. In the event that a Reservoir that is
the subject of a Potentially Commercial
Discovery extends beyond the Block inte an
adjacent block which is the subject of
another Petroleum Right that grants a third
party the right ta conduct Development and
Production  activities (an  “Adjacent
Awarded Block”}, the relevant provisions of
Article 38 of the law no 132/2010 {OPR Law)
shall apply, and the Right Holders shall in
good faith negotiate and agree with the right
holder(s} of the Adjacent Awarded Block on
the terms of a unitisation agreement, which
terms shall be based on reliable technical,
operational and economic parameters in a
manner designed to ensure optimal
recovery of Petroleum in the Reservoir, all in
accordance  with  Best International
Petroleum  Indusiry  Standards. The
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apportionment of the entitlements of the
Right Holders, on the one hand, and the
holder(s) of the Petroleum Right for the
Adjacent Awarded Black, on the other hand,
shall be agreed upon on a fair and equitable
basis and, to the extent practicable, be
determined on the basis of the expected
total reserves in the Block and in the
Adjacent Awarded Block. The Appraisal Plan
for such Potentially Commercial Discovery
shall have, as an objective, the preparation
of a unitised Development and Production
Plan, the determination of the respective
entitlerments to Production, and the
preparation and negotiation of an
unitisation agreement in" accordance with
Best Internaticnal Petroleym  Industry
Standards. The unitised Development and
Production Plan shall include a plan for
unitisation which identifies the limits of the
unitisedt area, the wvolumes of estimated
Petroleum in place, and the principal terms
to be included in the unitisation agreement
and an undertaking by the respective parties
to coordinate efficiently among themselves
for the optimal development of the unitised
Reservoir.

2. In the event that a Reservoir of an
Adjacent Awarded Block extends into the
Block, the Right Holders agree to negotiate
in good faith with the right holder(s) of the
Adjacent Awarded Block the terms of a
unitisation agreement and to coordinate
efficiently for the optimal development of
the unitised Reservoir, under the same
terms provided in paragraph 1 above.

3. if the condition of a Reservoir
extending beyond its initial delimitation line
is discovered only after a Ceveloprnent and
Production Plan has been put into effect, the
Right Holders, on the one hand, and the
right holder{s} of the Adjacent Awatded
Block, on the other hand, shall prepare a
unitised plan for Development and
Production and may continue approved
activitie~ . .ling finalisation of the unitised
plan.
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4. In the event that a Reservoir extends
beyond the Block into an adjacent area
which is not an Adjacent Awarded Block, the
provisions of Article 38-2 of the law no
132/2010 (OPR Law) shall apply. To this end,
in accordance with Article 164 of the decree
no  10289/2013 (PAR), the Petroleum
Administration may specify the form and
cantents of any application to be presented
by the Right Holder(s) tc the Minister for the
extension of the perimeter of the existing
Block. Any such application shall include
both a commercial proposal and technical
proposal containing a competitive minimum
work program for such adjacent area. For
the avoidance of doubt, the Right Holders
expressly understand and agree that the
Council of Ministers reserves a discretionary
power to approve or reject such extension.

5. The provisions of paragraph 1 or 3 {as
applicable} of this Article shall apply to the
situation where a Reservoir straddles the
delimitation line of the continental shelf or
territorial waters subject to the jurisdiction
of another country, except that the State
shall be responsible for any government-to-
government negotiations, and the Right
Holders shall negotiate with any private
sector ope rator or right holder in the other
country. Any agreement for the
development of such Reservoir or the
construction or use of trans-boundary
Facilities, or any other arrangement
between the Right Holders and any other
Entities in relation to the coordination of
trans-boundary Petroleum Activities, or any
decision to develop such Reservoir without
any such agreement or arrangement, shall
be subject to the prior approval of the
Council of Ministers. In this respect, any
discussions undertaken or agreements or
other arrangements made with any third
party, shall at all times be compliant with the
Lebanese. laws and reguiations in force,
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Art. 25 Title to assets

1. Title to Facilities acquired or
provided by the Right Holders for the
purpose of Petroleum Activities pursuant to
this EPA, the costs of which are subject to
cost recovery in accordance with this EPA
and the Accounting and Financial Procedure
that constitutes Annex D of this EPA, shall be
vested in the Operator, on behalf of the
Right Holders, and shall be transferred to
and become the property of the State
without the payment of any consideration
upon the termination of this EPA.

2. The Right Holders shall be entitled to
the full and free use of such Facilities for the
purpose and duration of this EPA, for
purposes of conducting  Petroleum
Activities. To the extent that such Facilities
have extra capacity, the Minister {based on
the recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration) may require the Right
Holders to make such capacity available to
third parties on the terms and subject to the
conditions set forth in Article 39 of the law
no. 132/2010 (OPR Law} and Article S& of
the decree no 10289/2013 (PAR). Prior to
the termination of this EPA, the Right
Holders shall not assign, sell or otherwise
dispose of such Facilities except by mutual
agreement,

3. The provisions of Article 25.1 shall
not apply to assets that have been leased
and movable assets used on a temporary
basis by Contractors or Subcontractors,
which shall instead be removed from the
Block upon termination of this EPA.,

4, No later than six (6} months prior to
the anticipated termination date of the EPA,
the Right Holders shall prepare and deliver
to the Petroleum Administration a plan for
implementing the transfer of title to, and
operations of the Facilities, To the extent
that any license to technology or intellectual
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property would not remain in force
following such termination, the transfer plan
shall also include a plan for the provision of
services or arrangements 50 as to ensure the
effective  continuation of  Petroleum
Activities following such termination.

5. All Data collected, developed or
obtained by the Right Holders in relation to
or resulting from Petroleum Activities
pursuant to this EPA, including geological,
geophysical, petrophysical, engineering,
Well logs, production Data and completion
status reports and any other reports,
analyses, interpretations, maps, evaluations
or other Data {including derivative Data)
relating to or resulting from Petroleum
Activities pursuant to this EPA, shall,
according to applicable Lebanese law, be the
property of the State,

6. All Data, referenced in Article 25.5 of
this EPA that is collected, developed or
obtained by the Right Holders shall be
submitted to the State free of charge and
may be used for Petroleum Activities free of
charge by the Right Holders for the duration
of this EPA.

7. Copies of the referenced in Article
25.5 shall be stored in Lebanon. Additional
copies of such Data, Lebanese law, be
exported. In addition, core samples may be
exported temporarily for such period of time
as may be reasonably necessary to allow
Right Holders or their Contractors and
Subcontractors to perform analyses in
connection with Petroleum Activities, but
shall be returned to Lebanon as quickly as
reasonably practicable after the completion
of such analyses. In cases where an
unavoidable consequence of the analyses
carried out by Right Holders or their
Contractors and Subcontractors is the
destruction of core samples, the remnants
of such core samples shall be returned to
Lebanon in accordance with this Article,

8. All proprietary technology of the
Right Holders and their Affiliates,
Contractors and Subcontractors used in
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Art 27. Procurement and supply
bases

1. Subject to applicable Lebanese
law and the provisions of the Joint
the
procurement of goods and services for

Operating ~ Agreement  for
the purpose of Petroleum Activities
pursuant to this EPA, Right Holders
shall conduct procurement on the basis
of competitive tenders (except that
competitive tenders shall not be
required for (i) any contract between
the Operator and the Initial Right
Holder or its Affiliates which has been
approved in advance by the Minister in
accordance with Article 27.2 of this
EPA or (ii) any contract, or group of
related contracts, with a total value of
US$50,000 or less, or such other lower
threshold as the Right Holders may
agree in the Joint Operating
Agreement). The Right Holders shall
ensure that preferential treatment is
given to Lebanese goods and services
that are competitive with regard to
quality, and
performance, in accordance with
Article 67 of the law no 132/2010 (OPR
Law) and Article 157 of the decree no
10289/2013 (PAR). Without limiting
the foregoing, the Right Holders shall
procure that:

availability, price
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a) in selecting Contractors for the
provision of services in relation
to Petroleum Activities, the
Operator shall select, when
possible, individuals who are
Lebanese or Entities which are
majority-owned or controlled
by Lebanese nationals and that
provide such services through
permanent establishments in
Lebanon, provided that:

(i) the Operator, in its judgment acting
reasonably, is satisfied (on the basis of

demonstrated  ability, experience,
quality, timely performance,
workmanship and other relevant

criteria) with their ability to properly
perform the work entrusted to them;

(ii)  the cost of such services does
not exceed one hundred and ten per
cent (110%) of the lowest acceptable
cost of equivalent or similar services
offered by or otherwise available from
foreign individuals or Entities that are
not majority-owned or controlled by
Lebanese nationals; and

Glaal ey edel S0 L aall
fok Lo Gagial

il cpilaiall  jlis) e ()

il dlad el

LodieJadiall aghy cdyly sl

DAl lal e @l o8

Woleo S opalid
les oot f sl oo gy

(o Claadl) oda agadil o guilid
cold Al Glawse Dl

1oy

i Uiy Jaall oy of (")
¥ oo Ll Jginall
e mpmnall 2l e
Y AN agall Al
2y Bagally 3yally )l
Wlsny ddyally 2dsill Jea
il Alall ey uledl
f(lld) (g yn 8
cas Y (Y)
S bhey Al wladl
Gl g (%)) +) L
aleall  dpad
G Agladl S Al
S iy S ety

oda il

Printed by



YOVA/A/YY = € 0 aaall e sl 53y 5e)

YAAA

(iii) the other terms and conditions
applicable to such services are
otherwise competitive with those
available from foreign individuals or
Entities that are not majority-owned or
controlled by Lebanese nationals; and

b) in purchasing goods, the
Operator shall give preference
to goods which originate from
Lebanon, or are manufactured
or constructed in Lebanon, in
each case by Entities that are
majority-owned or controlled
by Lebanese nationals,
provided that:

(i) the Operator is reasonably satisfied
(on the basis of demonstrated quality,
workmanship, availability in the
quantity and at the times when needed,
and, as may be appropriate, availability
of service and support, and other
relevant criteria) with the fitness of the
goods;
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(i)  the goods price does not exceed
one hundred and five per cent (105%)
of the lowest acceptable all inclusive
cost offered by or otherwise available
for equivalent or similar goods that do
not originate from Lebanon, are not
manufactured or constructed in
Lebanon or are not supplied by Entities
that are not majority-owned or
controlled by Lebanese nationals; and

(iii) the other terms and conditions on
which such goods are offered or
otherwise available are competitive
with available goods that do not
originate from Lebanon, are not
manufactured or constructed in
Lebanon or are not supplied by Entities
that are not majority-owned or
controlled by Lebanese nationals.
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Right Holders and the Operator shall
procure that Contractors and their Sub-
Contractors shall comply with this
Article. The Exploration Plan and each
Development Plan shall include a plan
for retaining Lebanese companies as
Contractors and  Subcontractors,
including priority rules meeting the
requirements set forth in this Article.

2. The Operator may enter into
agreements with Contractors (and
permit Contractors to enter into
agreements with Subcontractors) for
the conduct of Petroleum Activities,
and with suppliers of goods, equipment
and materials to be used in Petroleum
Activities, so long as such agreements
are consistent with the terms of this
EPA, the Joint Operating Agreement
and Lebanese law. In the absence of
Lebanese  law  specifying  the
procedures to be followed by the
Operator in the procurement of goods
and services under this EPA, the Joint
Operating Agreement shall specify the
applicable procurement procedures,
provided that any agreement (i)
between the Operator and any Right
Holder or Affiliate thereof or (ii) which
provides for a total amount of
Recoverable Costs to be incurred under
such agreement (or any group of related
agreements) in excess of US$10
million in any calendar year, or US$20
million overall, must be approved in
advance by the Minister upon the
recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration.
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Any request for approvals shall include
the amount of the relevant agreement or
group of related agreements, the name
of the relevant Contractor and either a
copy of the agreement(s) or a
description of the material terms
thereof in reasonable detail. In the
event that the Minister does not
respond to a properly submitted request
for approval of any agreement within
thirty (30) days of submission, the
request shall be deemed to be approved.

3. Supply bases for the provisions of
goods and services, understood to
include transshipment points,
including air transport related to
Petroleum Activities pursuant to this
EPA, shall be used as stipulated by
applicable Lebanese law and Article 8
of the decree no 10289/2013 (PAR),
and approved plans for Development
and Production.
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breach of Article 41 of this EPA, the
Minister may require the Forced
Assighment to take place with
immediate effect.

c) if the Defaulting Party
has remedied the Forced Assignment
Event within the 90 days’ notice period,
the Forced Assignment Notice shall be
deemed to be no longer in effect. If the
Defaulting Party notifies the Minister
that the Forced Assignment Event is not
capable of remedy within such 90 day
period, but is capable of remedy in a
longer period of time, the Minister may
grant an extension and suspend the
effect of the Forced Assighment Notice,
so long as the Defaulting Party is
diligently pursuing a remedy. The
delivery of a Forced Assignment Notice
shall be deemed to suspend, and the
conclusion of a Forced Assignment shall
be deemed to remedy, any Termination
Notice delivered in respect of the same
events or circumstances.

d) In the event of a Forced
Assignment under Article 36.2(b) of this
EPA, each Non-Defaulting Party shall be
required to accept the assignment of its
share of the Defaulting Party’s
Participating Interest, provided that the
Non-Defaulting Parties shall not be
liable for any obligations of the
Defaulting Party accrued prior to the
Forced Assignment. From the date of
the Forced Assignment, the Non-
Defaulting Parties shall be jointly and
severally liable for all obligations arising
from the Defaulting Party’s Participating
Interest including but not limited to, any
Minimum Work Commitment. The
Right Holders may agree to
arrangements among themselves for
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the compensation (or absence of
compensation) of the Defaulting Party,
but no such agreement shall have any
impact on the effectiveness of, or result
in a delay in, any Forced Assignment.

e) Notwithstanding Article 36.2(b),
the Minister may elect to have the State
or an Entity wholly-owned by the State
{provided that such Entity will be
financially capable of meeting its
obligations under the EPA) (i) take a
Forced Assignment of the Defaulting
Party’s entire Participating Interest in
lieu of the Non-Defaulting Parties, or (ii)
take an assignment of a Participating
Interest of 0.01% from the Defaulting
Party, in which case the assignment to
each Non-Defaulting Party shall be
reduced accordingly. No compensation
shall be paid to the Defaulting Party in
connection with any such Forced
Assignment.

f) Any Forced Assignment
shall be effective notwithstanding any
dispute by the Defaulting Party of the
grounds therefore. In the event that an
arbitral tribunal appointed pursuant to
Article 38 of this EPA determines that
such Forced Assignment was not
justified, the remedy of the Defaulting
Party shall be limited to monetary
damages based on the fair value of its
rights under this EPA as of the date of
Forced Assignment, less any
compensation received.

g) Nothing in this Article
shall preclude the State from pursuing
any and all remedies in respect of a
default by a Defaulting Party available
under this EPA, Lebanese law or
otherwise.
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3. Consequences of Termination.
If the EPA is terminated in accordance
with an EPA Termination Notice, the
Right Holders shall:

a) forfeit all their future rights
and interests under the EPA as from the
date of termination;

b) release the State from any
and all actions, claims, demands and
proceedings that may arise out of such
termination other than in respect of a
dispute in relation to such termination;
and

¢) if termination  occurs
during an  Exploration  Period,
forfeit the Work Commitment
Guarantee, which the Minister
may draw in an amount equal
to its face amount less the
Recoverable Costs incurred
during such  Exploration  Period
and attributable to the relevant

Minimum Work Commitment.
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Art 30. Indemnification and liability

1. The Right Holders shall indemnify
and hold the State harmless from and
against any and all claims, actions, demands
and proceedings made against the State by
third parties in respect of injury, loss or
damage resulting from an act or omission by
a Right Holder or the Operator and/or their
Affiliates and/or Contractors or
Subcontractors in their conduct of the
Petroleum Activities that is in material
breach of the EPA or Lebanese law or
amounts to Gross Negligence or Wilful
Misconduct.
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2. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary in this EPA, no Right Holder or any
of their Affiliates, Coniractors or
Subcontractors carrying out Petroleum
Activities on behalf of a Right Holder shall be
lizble to the State and the State shall not be
liable to any Right Holder or any of their
Affiliates, Contractors or Subcontractors, for
conseqguential or indirect losses, damages,
expenses or liabilities including but not
limited to inability to produce Petroleum,
loss of Production or loss of profit.

3. In carrying out Petroleum Activities
pursuant to this EPA, the Right Holders shall
not be liable for any loss or damage suffered
by the State that is caused by a Right Holder,
the Operator or any of their Affiliates,
Contractors or Subcontractors carrying out
Petroleum Activities on behalf of a Right
Holder unless such injuiry, loss or damage is
the result of a breach of the EPA or Lebanese
law or Gross Negligence or Wilful
Misconduct on the part of a Right Holder,
the Operator and/or their Affiliates, and/or
Contractors or Subcontractors.

4. Any claim pursued by any third
parties which would entiiie any of the
Parties, the Contractors or Subcontractors
together referred 1o herein as the
"Indemnified Party" to be indemnified by
any of the other Parties, the Contractors or
Subcontractors, together referred to herein
as the "tndemnifying Pariy", shall be
promptly communicaied by the Indemnified
Party by notice to the indemnifying Party so
that the Indemnifying Party may promptly
intervene in such third party ¢laim and
pursue its defence. Such notice shall include
a description of the third party claim and
shall be accompanied by copies of all
relevant papers received by the indemnified
Party and its counsel with respect to such
third party claim (a “Claim Notice”). The
Indemnified Party shall cooperate with the
Indernnifying Party and its counsel in
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contesting such third party claim. If the
Indemnified Party fails promptly to
communicate by notice as provided above,
it shall not lose its rights to the
indemnification pursuant to this Article,
except to the extent that such failure results
in prejudice to the Indemnifying Party.

5 If within thirty (30) days of receipt of
& Claim Notice, the Indemnifying Party
notifies the Indemnified Party that It elacts
to assume the defence of such claim, then
the Indemnifying Party shall have the rights
to defend, at its cost and expense, such
claim by all appropriate proceedings
incdluding compromise or settlement
thereof, so long as. any settlement
agreement does not provide for or result in
any continuing liability or ohligation on, or
an admission of fault by, the Indemnified
Party in respect of such third party claim. If
the Indemnifying Party fails to elect to
assume the defence of such claim within
thirty (30} days of receipt of a Claim Notice,
then the Indemnified Party shall have the
right to defend at the sole cost and expense
of the Indemnifying Party the third party
claim by all appropriate proceedings
including any compromise or settlemant
thereof,

6. Except as provided for in paragraph 6
of this Article, the Indemnified Party shall
not settle or compromise any third party
claim without the prior written consent of
the Indemnifying Party, and in the event that
it does so, the Indemnified Party shall not be
entitled to any indemnification or to be held
harmless in relation to such third party claim
so settled or compromised.

7. The Right Holders shall cause the
Contractors and Subcantractors to comply
with the provisions of this Article as if they
were parties thereto,
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1 Early Termination sall LVt )

a) The Minister may terminate
this EPA by giving all of the Right
Holders 90 days’ written notice (an
“EPA Termination Notice”) specifying in
reasonable  detail the relevant
circumstances if any of the following
events or circumstances (each, a
“Termination Event”) occurs and is
continuing:

(i) a material or repeated
breach by the Right
Holders or the Operator
of the law no 132/2010
(OPR Law), the decree no
10289/2013 (PAR) or this
EPA;

(ii) the Right Holders have
failed to comply within a
reasonable period of
time with any final
decision reached: (A) as
the result of arbitration
proceedings in
accordance with Article
38 of this EPA, or (B) by a
sole expert in
accordance with Article
39 of this EPA that is final
and binding in
accordance with the
provisions of this EPA,
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(i) the occurrence of an
Event of Force Majeure
that substantially
disrupts the conduct of
Petroleum Activities for
a period of at least thirty-
six (36) consecutive
months provided that
the Minister reasonably
believes, based on the
recommendation of the

Petroleum

Administration, that a
party qualified in
accordance with the

Lebanese Law would be
capable of conducting
the Petroleum Activities
in the Block pursuant to
this EPA notwithstanding
the events giving rise to
such Event of Force
Majeure; or

(iv) The revocation of the
Petroleum Right granted
hereunder pursuant to
Article 161 of the decree
no 10289/2013 (PAR).

b) If the Right Holders have
remedied the Termination Event within
the 90 days’ notice period, the EPA
Termination Notice shall be deemed to
be no longer in effect. If the Right
Holders notify the Minister that the
Termination Event is not capable of
remedy within such 90 day period, but
is capable of remedy in a longer period
of time, the Minister may grant an
extension and suspend the effect of the
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EPA Termination Notice, so long as the
Right Holders are diligently pursuing a
remedy.

c) Any termination of this
EPA pursuant to this Article shall be
effective notwithstanding any dispute
by the Right Holders of the grounds for
such termination. In the event that an
arbitral tribunal appointed pursuant to
Article 38 of this EPA determines that
such termination was not justified, the
remedy of the Right Holders shall be
limited to monetary damages based on
the fair market value (determined in the
manner set forth in paragraph (d),
except for the additional limitation
relevant to an Event of Force Majeure)
of their rights under this EPA as of the
date of termination.

d) No compensation shall
be paid to the Right Holders in
connection with any termination

pursuant to this Article, except that
upon any termination resulting from a
Termination Event set forth in
paragraph 1(a)(iii} of this Article, the
State shall pay to the Right Holders an
amount equal to the greater of (i) all
Recoverable Costs that have not been
recovered as of the time of such
termination, and (ii) 80% of the fair
market value of the Participating
interests of the Right Holders as of the
date of termination (such fair market
value being equal to the amount that a
willing buyer would pay to a willing
seller of such Participating Interests,
free of all Encumbrances, for cash
consideration in U.S. dollars and on
arm’s length terms, determined on a
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going concern basis and assuming that

the Event of Force Majeure ends as of | (34 0 Qalall (5 gl G 2aa3 o

the date of termination). 13) &0y el gliall DA (pe il LY
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The fair market value shall be iiuﬁ‘u (qj.) y ?J

determined by the Parties through > F o

negotiations, but if such negotiations do dw?d ﬁ“&ﬂ u\m‘ 5 :dﬁ'“
not result in an agreement within ninety Uy oSl d{)‘%‘. o }F’L‘” DA e
(90) days, then either the State or the ASEY) 038 (ga YA 3alall
Right Holders may submit the issue to
final resolution through arbitration | 838 slgi) d}‘h-” laa¥ oSy (=)
pursuant to Article 38 of this EPA. i Tdas T jla) 43 a0 &Lk Agy)
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that substantially disrupts the conduct
of Petroleum Activities for a period of at o3 (o ol L 6 sl oy

least thirty-six (36) consecutive months. | ¢ 4 3 ped sia (e J Ll 5 4,843
The Right Holders may also withdraw ¥4 saldl g;ﬂ lele Lo paiall Gy k)
from this EPA and surrender their rights 2\.«1‘:3‘)!!) ARRAVARR VIS (5’) a_}“_)“”
hereunder in the circumstances | (4l il aiiYL dslaiall ach il
contemplated in Article 39 of the decree | Jjluill 5 calaud¥) 13 Joany o cany
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appointed to do so by the Right| . . .
Holders). The withdrawal or surrender S8 Gall calia 8 (e 35l

of a Participating Interest by one or L Sy ol 4 (@‘“j‘ o USJJ
more (but less than all) Right Holders s (e TE 3aLall -LJJMJ 1—“} A o
shall be treated as an Assignment and | Glaal Gaysd ol a3ad Y Llasy)
may only be made in compliance with | J3Will 5 sled¥) L sndy (3s8all
the requirements of Article 34 of this Bl a3 b die a paldldl
EPA. No compensation shali be paid to
the Right Holders in connection with a
termination or surrender contemplated
in this paragraph.

2. Forced Assignment . @yl g Y
a) A “Forced Assignment ‘éJ‘*“ JOEY Gaa" ey (‘
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or circumstances
continuing:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

occurs and is

the occurrence of a
Termination Event
resulting primarily
from the actions or
omissions of, or an
Event of Force Majeure
affecting, a particular
Right Holder;

a material breach of
Article 26, 35 or 41 of
this EPA or Article 147

of the decree no
10289/2013 (PAR) by a
Right Holder;

a Right Holder has

provided any
materially false or
misleading

statement(s) to, or
withheld any
significant information
from, the Council of
Ministers or  the
Minister or the
Petroleum
Administration relating
to this EPA or any
Petroleum Activities;
or

the making of any
order or the passing of
any resolution or the
taking of any other
step by any person for
the receivership,
administration,
liquidation,
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bankruptcy,
insolvency, dissolution,
or reorganization for
the benefit of the
creditors, or any
similar or analogous
process in any part of
the world, of any Right
Holder or any Entity
that guarantees the
obligations of a Right
Holder pursuant to
paragraph 4 [or
paragraph 8] of Article
6 of this EPA, save
where the foregoing is
for the purpose of
amalgamation or
reorganization of a
Right Holder or such
guarantor and its
Affiliates.

b) In the event of a Forced
Assignment Event, the Minister may
elect to require the Right Holder
responsible  for the  Forced
Assignment Event (the “Defaulting
Party”) to assign its Participating
Interest unconditionally, without
consideration and free from all
Encumbrances to the other Right
Holders  (the  “Non-Defaulting
Parties”) in proportion to the Non-
Defaulting Parties’ Participating
Interests (a “Forced Assignment”)
by giving the Defaulting Party 90
days’ written notice and specifying
in reasonable detail the Forced
Assignment Event (a “Forced
Assignment Notice”).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the
Forced Assignment Event is a result of a
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breach of Article 41 of this EPA, the
Minister may require the Forced
Assighment to take place with
immediate effect.

c) if the Defaulting Party
has remedied the Forced Assignment
Event within the 90 days’ notice period,
the Forced Assignment Notice shall be
deemed to be no longer in effect. If the
Defaulting Party notifies the Minister
that the Forced Assignment Event is not
capable of remedy within such 90 day
period, but is capable of remedy in a
longer period of time, the Minister may
grant an extension and suspend the
effect of the Forced Assighment Notice,
so long as the Defaulting Party is
diligently pursuing a remedy. The
delivery of a Forced Assignment Notice
shall be deemed to suspend, and the
conclusion of a Forced Assignment shall
be deemed to remedy, any Termination
Notice delivered in respect of the same
events or circumstances.

d) In the event of a Forced
Assignment under Article 36.2(b) of this
EPA, each Non-Defaulting Party shall be
required to accept the assignment of its
share of the Defaulting Party’s
Participating Interest, provided that the
Non-Defaulting Parties shall not be
liable for any obligations of the
Defaulting Party accrued prior to the
Forced Assignment. From the date of
the Forced Assignment, the Non-
Defaulting Parties shall be jointly and
severally liable for all obligations arising
from the Defaulting Party’s Participating
Interest including but not limited to, any
Minimum Work Commitment. The
Right Holders may agree to
arrangements among themselves for

Cra £ 3alell Adllaal dagm
u‘ ﬁJJﬂ Sy c:k,gﬁm‘ﬂ XY
gl Joul ks ey

(S5 Jgniay

Aiallaay il Rl 8 B (2)
DY Alga I (g ad) S e
ladie  jiiay @Lo_ﬁ (°H) (o PEA (Y
(@t dmy ab 4d) (g el JoLEN Ny
daall sl all Ja A J gnial
%ﬁﬁbgﬂ‘djﬁﬂi&&diﬁjﬁ‘
Qags (0) Gl g JUA dnllaal
OSay e shal Aga A Aallasll 4 4iS)
Jnia GBlaa Ol Tuna asiay o sl
Ciphall of Llla gl Jol i)
O5S3 gtn JSE Aataall ok Jaall
Tl Y gria (gl Jotull 13 & 2LY
Jsal e gty ilis oled) Jlad] oY
U eled) (08 WS gy cag Hlall

i) 13 lallaa Y gmia (5 al

salall Wy gl JoWl Js 8 (o
JC Gle agay) o e () TNY
Gis oJol Jiy of Jae e Gask
o oladl e caLkW ol by
cliage gl co Ofdgsee 1S
okl 08 dga il cpdaall cal kS
bl gl e Tel gl
odaal e Gk S g el
g oo gebamilly JASHL Gl e
A Lhe At oo Aadlll il sall
i o dld b Ley cdaall iyl
I PO P IR g L
Gl s (Say danll Cilim el
Ol pein Lo b i i o A8 5al)
Ciphll (Uaigill ae f) gl

Printed by



YAQ4

YOYA/AINY — € v sl _ el sy sal)

the compensation (or absence of
compensation) of the Defaulting Party,
but no such agreement shall have any
impact on the effectiveness of, or result
in a delay in, any Forced Assignment.

e) Notwithstanding Article 36.2(b),
the Minister may elect to have the State
or an Entity wholly-owned by the State
{provided that such Entity will be
financially capable of meeting its
obligations under the EPA) (i) take a
Forced Assignment of the Defaulting
Party’s entire Participating Interest in
lieu of the Non-Defaulting Parties, or (ii)
take an assignment of a Participating
Interest of 0.01% from the Defaulting
Party, in which case the assignment to
each Non-Defaulting Party shall be
reduced accordingly. No compensation
shall be paid to the Defaulting Party in
connection with any such Forced
Assignment.

f) Any Forced Assignment
shall be effective notwithstanding any
dispute by the Defaulting Party of the
grounds therefore. In the event that an
arbitral tribunal appointed pursuant to
Article 38 of this EPA determines that
such Forced Assignment was not
justified, the remedy of the Defaulting
Party shall be limited to monetary
damages based on the fair value of its
rights under this EPA as of the date of
Forced Assignment, less any
compensation received.

g) Nothing in this Article
shall preclude the State from pursuing
any and all remedies in respect of a
default by a Defaulting Party available
under this EPA, Lebanese law or
otherwise.
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3. Consequences of Termination.
If the EPA is terminated in accordance
with an EPA Termination Notice, the
Right Holders shall:

a) forfeit all their future rights
and interests under the EPA as from the
date of termination;

b) release the State from any
and all actions, claims, demands and
proceedings that may arise out of such
termination other than in respect of a
dispute in relation to such termination;
and

¢) if termination  occurs
during an  Exploration  Period,
forfeit the Work Commitment
Guarantee, which the  Minister
may draw in an amount equal
to its face amount less the
Recoverable Costs incurred
during such  Exploration Period
and attributable to the relevant

Minimum Work Commitment.
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Art.44 Notices

1 Subject to the second paragraph of
this Article, all notices, invoices and other
communications  hereunder shall  be
deemed to have been properly given or
presented, if delivered in writing in person
or by courier or sent by facsimile or email at
the addresses indicated in this Article with
the charges associated with the delivery of
the notice, invoice or other communication
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being paid by the sender. Any notice shall be
effective upon receipt by the Party to which
it is addressed. All such notices shall be
addressed to the State or the Right Holder,
as the case may be, as follows:

a) The State:
The Ministry of Energy and Water
[address)
[Attention])
[email]
[fax]
with a copy to:

The Petroleum Administration
[address]

[Attention)

[email]

[fax]

b) The Right Holders:
[XXX]
[address)
[Attention)
femail]
[fax]

[¥yY]
[address]

[Attention]
[email]
[fax]

[227)
[address]
{Attention]
[email)
[fax]

2. If a Right Holder requests that the
Minister or the Petroleum Administration
provide its approval or take any other official
action under this EPA, the request shall be
registered at the office of the Minlster or the
Petroleum Administration, as the case may
be.
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3. Subject to the fourth paragraph of this
Article each Party to this EPA may substitute
or change the address provided in the first
paragraph of this Article by giving written
notice thereof to the others.

g, Each Right Holder shall at all times
maintain an address in Lebanon for the
purpose of service of notice,

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Minister of
Energy and Water herein representing the
Repubiic of Lebanon and each Right Holder
have signed this EPA in [four (4)] originals in
each of the Arabic and English languages, as
of the date first herein above stated.

The Republic of Lebanon
By:
Minister of Energy and Watar
Date

..................................................

...........................................

[XXXx]
By:

POSIHIONT o st st et cevaen
Date:

...............................................

.....................................

[yvy]
By:

POSItION: .o,
Date:

...............................................

.....................................

fzzz)
By:

POSIION; ciiinrer i neecssererersssennens
Date:

-----------------------------------------------
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Annex D
Accounting and Financial Procedure

This Annex is attached to and made part of
the Exploration and Production Agreement
dated { ...... , 20...] concludad between the
Republic of Lebanon and [XXXi, [YYY] and
[2Z2).

1. General provisions

1.1. Purpose

The purpose of this Accounting and
Financial Procedure is to determine the
manner in which the Right Holder's books
and accounts shall be prepared and
maintained, to establish the methods for
determining charges and credits applicable
10 Petroleum Activities pursuant to the EPA,
and to setile the Petroleum costs applicable
10 the entire EPA Block.

1.2. Definitions
{a} In addition to definitions stipuated in
this  Accounting and  Financial
Procedure, definitions stipulated in the
Law no 132/2010 {OPR Law) , the
Decree no 10289/2013 {PAR) and the
main body of the EPA apply to this
Accounting and Financial Procedure.

(b) The following words and tenms in the
Accounting and Financial Procedure
shali have the following meaning:

"Accrual Basls" means that basis of
accouniing under which costs and
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benefits are regarded as applicable to
the period in which the right to the
benefit arlses or revenues are earned,
and the liahility for the cost is incurred,
regarcless of when invoiced, paid, or
received, Cost and expenses shall be
deemed to have been incurred:

(i) with regard to physical items, in
the accounting period where the
Right Holder acquires title thereto,
and

(i) with regard to services, in the
accounting period when the services
are performed.

“Calendar year” means a period of
twelve (12] consecutive Months
according to the Gregorian calendar,
commencing with the first (15t day of
lanuary and ending with the thirty-first
(31%) day of December,

“Calendar month™ means any of the
twelve {12} months of the Calendar
year.

“Calendar day” means any of the seven
{7} days of the week,

“Excess Corporate Income Tax"” means,
for any calendar year, the excess (if any)
of the amount of Lebanese corporate
income tax actually accrued in respect of
such year with respect to net income
earned by the Right Holders from
Petroleum Activities, above the amount
of Lebanese corporate income tax that
would have accrued in respect of such
calendar year on net income earned by
the Right Holders from Petrolaum
Activities according to the corporate
income tax rate as pursuant to Article
28.3 of the EPA. if any Right Holder
conducts any trade or business
unrelated to Petroleum Activities that is
subject to corporate income tax in
tebanon, such other trade or business
shall be disregarded for purposes of
determining the Excess Corporate
Income Tax.
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“loint Account” means the account or
set of accounts maintained by the
Operator to record Recoverable Costs
and other amounts to be dehited and
credited theretoin accordance with this
Accounting and Financial Procedure.

"Material" means machinery,
equipment and supplies acquired and
held for use in Petrofeum Activities.

"Section" means a section of this
Accounting and Financial Procedure.

1.3. References to Laws and Accounting

(a)

th)

(a)

Principles

Any reference to a law, regulation,
agreement or other document shall
mean such law, regulation, agreement
or document as the same may be
supplemented, amended or madified
from time te time in accordance with
its terms, and referances to a specific
article or section of such law,
regulation, agreement or other
document shall be construed as
references to the relevant successor
article or section of such
supplemented, amended or modified
law, regulation, agreement or other
document.

Any reference to generally accepted
and recognised accounting principles
used in the international Petroleumn
industry shall mean these principles
generally used from time to time,

1.4. Accounting records and
statements submitted by the Right
Holders

Within sbiy (60} days of the
Effective Date, the Operator shail
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(b}

submit to  the  Petroleum
Administration a proposed outline
of charts of accounts, operating
records and reports, applicable to
Petroleurn Activities pursuant to the
EPA, which shall be in accordance
with applicable Lebanese law and
generally accepted and recognised
accounting principles used in the
international Petroleum industry.
Within sixty (60) days of receiving
the above submission the Petroleum
Administration shall either approve
the proposal or require revisions to
the proposal as it deems necessary
or appropriate in its soke discration.
Following the approval and within
one hundred and twenty days {120)
of the Effective Date, the Operator
shall expeditiously prepare and
provide all Right Holders and the
Petroleum  Administration  with
formal coples of the comprehensive
charts of accounts related to the
accounting, recording and reporting
functions for the Right Haolders to
implement the charts of accounts,
and in order to allow the Petroleun
Administration to examine the Right
Holder's manuals and to review
procedures which are, and shall be,
observed under the EPA. Right
Holders’ Final End-of-vear
Statement shall be issued by an
independent internationally-
recognised auditing company in
accordance with Section 6.6 of this
Annex. The Petroleum
Administration shall be permitted to
audit on site all of the Operator's
and/or the Right Holders’ records
that evidence any of the reports
issued by the Operator or any Right
Holder under the EPA in accordance
with the proceduras set forth in
Article 32 of the EPA.

The Right Holders shall also maintain
a chart of accounts that complies
with tebanese tax regulations with
respect to tax payments and tax
returns praparation.

Notwithstanding the generality of
the foregoing, the Operator on
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{c)

behalf of the Right Holders is
required to  make  regular
statements to the Petroleum
Administration relating to the
Petroleum  Activities performed
pursuant to the EPA.  These
statements shall as a minimum be as
foliows:

(' Production Report (see Section
6.1 of this Annex);

(i) value of Production and Rovalty
Statement (see Section 6.2 of
this Annex});

(iii) Cost Recovery Statement (see
Section 6.3 of this Annex);

{iv) Statement of Expenditure and
Receipts (see Section 6,4 of this
Annex);

{v) Profit  Petroleum  Sharing
Statement {see Section 6.5 of
this Annex);

{vi) Final End-of-Year Statement
{see Section 6.6 of this Annex);

{vi}Budget Statement {see Section
6.7 of this Annex); and

{viii) Local Procurement Staterment
{see Section 6.8 of this Annex).

In accordance with Article 164 of the
Decree no 10289/2013 {PAR), the
Operator on behalf of the Right
Holders shall provide to the
Petroleum  Administration such
additional information and
documents  relating to  the
Petroleum  Activities as  the
Petroleum  Administration  may
require, including any modifications
to or additional requirements
concerning the contents of the
statements listed in this Section
1.4b}.

All reports and statements shall be
prepared in accordance with the
EPA, spplicable LeBahese law and,
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{d)

(e)

{f)

where there are no relevant
provisions in either of these, in
accordance with generally accepted
and recoghised accounting
principles used in the international
Petroleum industry.

Each Right Holder shall be
responsible for preparing its own
accounting and tax reports to maet
the applicable requirements of the
Republic of Lebanon and of all ather
countries to which the Right Holder
may be subject. The Operator, to
the extent that the information is
reasonably available from the Joint
Account records, shall provide the
Right Holders in 2 timely manner
with the necessary information to
facilitate the discharge of such
responsibility.

The Operator shall at all times
maintain and keep in Lebanon true
and correct records of the
Production and disposition of all
tiguid and gaseous Petroleum, and
of all Recoverabte Costs, as well as
other Data necessary or proper for
the settlament of accounts between
the State and the Right Holders,
between the Operator and Right
Holders, and between Right Holders
hereto in connection with thair
rights and obligations under the
EPA. Such accaunts and records
shall also be maintained in Lebanon
50 as to enable the Right Holders to
comply with their respective
obligations under applicabia
Lebanese income tax and other
iaws.

Accounting records pertaining to
Petroleum  Activities Operations
shall be maintained in accordance
with applicable {.ebanese law and
the EPA, and when required,
generally  accepted  accounting
practices used in the international
Petroleum industry.
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The Accrual Basis for accounting
shall be used in maintaining the
Joint Account related to Petroleum
Activities, except for the calculation
of the Cumulative Cash Inflow for
purgoses of the computation of the
R-Factor in Article 24 of the EPA,

1.5. Language and units of account

(a)

{b)

Accounts shall be maintained in
United States dollars, and may in
addition be kept in such other
currency as may be required under
applicable Lebanese law.

Metric units and Barrels shall be
employed for  measurements
required under this Annex.

The language employed shall be
English and such othar language as
may be required under applicable
Lebanese law. Where necessary for
clarification the Right Holder may
also maintain accounts and records
in other languages, units of
measurement and currencies

1.6. Currency exchange

(a)

Conversions of currencies into and
from United States dollars shall be
recorded at the rate actually
experienced in the conversion,
which shall be at the prevailing rate
at the date of transaction, Unless
otherwise agreed, currency
translations to United States dollars
equivalents for non-United States
dollar expenditures accrued but not
paid and receipts shall be recorded
at the arithmetic average of the
buying and selling exchange rates
for conversions between United
States dolflars and the currency of
expenditure/receipt at the close of
the last business day as published by
the Lebanese Central Bank, or if not
published, then by the Wall Street
Journal or some other mutually
agreed publication.
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(b)

{c)

1.7. Payments

(a)

{b}

{c)

{d}

Any realized or unrealized gains or
losses from currency exchange
related to Petroleum Activities shall
be credited or charged 1o the Joint
Account, except as otherwise
specified in this Accounting and
Financial Procedure, Any such
exchange gains or josses shall be
separately identified as such.

A record of the exchange rates used
in converting Lebanese Pounds or
any other currencies into United
States dollars shatl be maintained.

between Parties;

Default interest rate

Except as provided in this Section
1.7 (b) and (c), all payments
between the Parties, unless
otherwise agreed, shall be in United
States dollars and through a bank
designated by each receiving Party.

Payment of any individually
chargeable tax by the Right Holder
shall be made in accordance with
the provisions of the EPA and
applicable Lebanese law.

Discharge of the Right Holder's
obligation with respect to Royalty
and the State's share of Profit
Petroteum shall be made in
accordance with the EPA and
applicable Lebanese Jaw.

All sums due by a Right Holder tothe
State or from the State to the Right
Holder pursuant to the EPA or
applicable Lebanese law during any
Calendar month shall, for each day
such sums are overdue during such
month, bear interest compounded
on a monthly basis at a rate
equivalent to the delay penalty paid
on withholding tax, ‘ccording to the
Lebanese Tax Procedures Law.
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1.B. State right to audits

{a)

{b)

Pursuant to applicable Lebanese kaw
and the EPA and upon giving the
Right Holder thirty (30) Calendar
days’ notice, the Petroleum
Administration either directly or
through its representatives
(including professional accounting
firms appointed by the Petroleum
Administration, provided that those
firms are not directly or indirectly
associated with the Right Holder
under audit, in order to avoid any
conflict of interest) shall have the
right at any time to audit the Right
Holder's accounts and records
maintained in  connection with
Petroleum Activities or otherwise
pursuant to the EPA with respect to
any Calendar year. For purposes of
auditing, the Petrolewm
Administration may examine and
verify at reasonable times all
charges and credits relating to the
Petroleum Activities such as books
of account, accounting entries,
iMaterial  recerds, inventories,
payrolls, tenders, invoices and any
other documents, correspondence
and records necessary to audit and
verify the charges and credits.
Furthermore the auditors shall have
the right in connection with such
audit to visit and inspect, subject to
reasonable notification, all sites,
Facilitias, warehouses and offices of
the Right Holders related to the
Paetroleum Activities pursuant to the
EPA, including wisiting personrel
associated with such Petroleum
Activities.

Without prejudice to the fisality of
matters as described in Section 1.8
{a) above, ali documents referred to
in that Section shall be maintained
and made available for inspection by
the State for such a time as is
prescribed by the EPA or applicable
lebanase faw {whichever is longer).
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{c}

{d)

No later than one hundred and
twenty (120} days after the end of
each Calendar year, each Right
Holder shall cause each of its
Affiliates that provides goods or
services in  connection  with
Petroleum Activities to provide an
audit  certificate from an
internationally recognized firm of
auditors  acceptable to  the
Petrolewsm Administration certifying
that all amounts paid or pavable to
the Affiliate for -such goods and
services that are charged to the Joint
Account in respect of such Calendar
year are done so fully in compliance
with this Accounting and Financial
Procedure, or noting any exceptions
{(which shall be applied as an
adjustment as soon as practicable
after delivery of the audit
certificate). Such audit certificate
shall be conclusive in the absence of
fraud, gross negligence or manifest
error. The Right Holder shall also
require its Affiliates to maintain
documents relating to Petroleum
Activities conducted pursuant to the
EPA as if they were a Right Holder,
In addition, each Right Holder shall
be required to Intlude in its
contracts with Contractors audit
certification and docuoment
maintenance  provisions  {(with
respect to which the State shali be a
third party beneficiary) which allow
the Petroleum Administration or its
representatives to request an audit
cartificate from the Contractors and
its Subcontractors as to compliance
of charges with the terms of the
relevant contract or subcontract, as
applicable.

The Right Holder shall reply in
writing on exceptions raised in the
audit report within ninety (90} days
after receipt of the report. Where
the Right Holder has, after the
ninety (90) days, failed to reply in
writing on the audit report
exceptions, the Right Holder shall be
deemed to have agreed on the
exceptions and the accounts shall be
adjusted accordingly.
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{e) All agreed adjustments resulting
from an audit agreed between the
State and the Right Holder shall be
promptly made in the Right Holder’s
accounts and any consecurential
adjustments to  the  State’s
entitiement to Petroleum shall be
made within thirty (30) days along
with interest due for late payment
under Section 1,7 (d).

if) If any dispute shall arise from the
audit adjustments, either party may
refer any dispute to arbitration
bursuant to Article 38 of the EPA or,
if the Parties so agree, to a sole
expaert pursuant to Article 39 of the
EPA.

(g} Any Information obtained under the
provision of this Section 1.8 which
does not relate directly to the
Petroleum Activities shall be kept
confidential by the State in
accordance with Article 35 of the
EPA or as is required by Lebanese
taw,

(h) Audit costs shall be borne by the
State,

{i} The Accounting and  Financial
Procedure is without prejudice to
the rights of the State or any
competent authority to audit
Petroleum Activities as and when,
including applicable time periods,
provided by applicable Lebanese
law.

e chlaal Sy 3 sael Ay 3 Ly

GAEl 8 sl euleliiayl
aXindd 3o Loy (34 s e A
Lﬂlﬁ&éﬂbﬁ@lg&h@)ﬁﬂgs
AT clload) Jaed g il L

oo Al CIARLY diad cang ()
Gl abia Gn lple iy 5800
A5y gl cnbie Slilua 4 4,0
(o it gl gt g LS olay)
Al Ja sl e dpall coilany
G Al DA Wil W5 e
GA N Alay, L (¢4
yudll 4 el e ddai.a
)Y (b Boaaall

anl i 2135 gl 0 o8 M i ()

st SR e Y say (bl

YA saall Ty afatlf Y o130l 1aa

B iy CHLASEu) A8l g

ST (R S S KU R

LS e ¥l Ta, o
N1y calissuy

Upeasl) &5 Aol gl a8 o cany ()
Y Al 1,A ‘.ﬂn]l(.lSaiuaa.JuLg.;ﬂc-
Ao A5 ) iYL 5 5800 S
4841 oo o ALl T, 5t 3 e
Gisthe g LS Ayl iliSiuY)
it oy A e gy

B S gl Jenti (7)

Agaaladll el s L Y (.La)

TR PO Y N R

¢ Ayl Adats) 3dw 8 doaiia

oA Al A e (pay W
RIFN |

2. Classification, definition and allocation
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Costs and expenditures shall be segregated in
accordance with the purpose for which such
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expenditures are made. All Exploration Costs
and Development Costs are considered Capital
Expenditures for purposes of the EPA, and ail
Operating Costs are considered Operating
Expenditures for purposes of the EPA, All
expenditures relating to the Petroleum Activities
shall, subject to applicable Lebanese law and the
EPA, he classified, defined and allocated as
follows:

2.1. Exploration Costs

“Exploration Costs” means all such direct
and allocated indirect costs agreed,
contracted or incurred after the Effective
Date in the search for Petroleum in the EPA
Block and Appraisal Activities conducted
during the Exploration Phase, including:

{a) Aerial, geophysical, geochemical,
paleontological, geological,
topographical and selsmic surveys

and studies and their interpretation.

{h) Core hole drilling and water well
drilling as part of exploration
operations.

{c) Labour, Materials and services used
in drilling Wells with the object of
finding new Reservoirs or for the
purpose of appraising the extent of
Reservoirs  already  discovered
provided such Wells are not
completed as Production Wells.

{d) Facilities used solely in support of
Exploration together with
purchased geological and

geophysical information.

(e) Service Costs (as defined below)
allocated to Exploration on a kasis
determined by the applicable
Lebanese law or, in the absence of
such basis, as agreed to betweenthe
Minister based on the opinion of the
Petreleum Administration and the

Operator on a systematic basis and,
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failing agreement, to be determined
by a sole expert in accordance with
the EPA,

() General and Administrative
Expenses (as defined below)
allocated to Exploration on a basis
determined by applicable Lebanese
law or, in absence of such basis, as
agreed to between the Minister and
the Operator, based on the opinich
of the Petroleum Administration, on
a systernatic basis and, failing
agreement, to be determined by a
sole expert in accordance with the
EPA.

2.2, Development Costs

“Development  Costs” wmeans  all
expenditures incurred in Development
activities (recorded separately for each
Development and Production Area),
including:

{a) Costs related to Appraisal Activities
conducted during the Development
Phase.

(b) Drilling Wells which are completed
as Production Wells and Wells for
purposes of Production from a
Reservoir  already  discovered
regardless of whether these Wells
are dry or producing.

{c) Tangible  drilling  costs  for
completing Wells by way of
installation of casing or equipment
or otherwise after a Well has been
drilled for the purpose of bringing
the Well into use as a Production
Well.

(d) Intangible drilling costs such as
labour, consumable Material and
services having no salvage value
which are incurred in drilling and
deepening of Wells for Praduction
purposes.
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{e)

(f)

(g}

(h)

(i)

Geological and geophysical
infarmation acquired in connection
with Development operations.

The costs of sites, Facilities, and
appurtenant equipment used In
Production pursuant to the EPA,
including but not Hmited to flow
lines, Production and treatment
units, wellhead equipment,
subsurface equipment, enhanced
recovery systems, offshore
platforms, Facilities for landing of
Petroleum onshore, including the
ultimate landing terminal, Facilities
for final processing or treatment of
Natural Gas for the purpose of
onwards shipment as Hguefied
natural gas or compressed Natural
Gas, Petroleum storage Facilities,
export terminals and piers, harbours
and related Facilities for Production
activities.

Engineering and design studies for
Facilities.

Service  Costs allocated to
Development activities on a basis
determined by applicable Lebanase
law or, in absence of such basis, as
agreed to between the Minister
based on the opinion of the
Petroleum Administration and the
Operator on a systematic basis and,
failing agreement, to be determined
by a sole expert in accordance with
the EPA.

General and Administrative
Expensas allocated to Development
activities on a basis determined by
applicable Lebanese law or, in
absence of such basis, as agreed to
between the Minister, based on the
opinion of the  Petroleum
Administration, and the Operatoron
a systematic basis and, failing
agreement, to be determined by a
sole expert in accordance with the
EPA.
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4.3. Operating Costs

“"Operating Costs” maans all expenditures
incurred in connection with Petroleum
Activities after the start of the Commaercial
Production other than Exploration Costs
and Devealopment Costs, including:

{a)

{b)

(c)

{d)

Operating, servicing, maintaining
and repalring Wells for Production
and all Facilities completed during
Development and Production.

Planning, producing, controlfing,
measuring and testing the flow of
Petroleum and collecting, gathering,
treating, storing and transporting
the Petroleum from the Reservoir to
the point of delivery as stipulated by
the approved Development and
Production Plan,

The decommissigning fund cost as
described in Section 2.6

The balance of General and
Administrative Expenses and Service
Costs not allocated to the
Exploration Costs or Development
Caosts.

2.4, Service Costs

(a)

*Service Costs” are direct and
indirect expenditures in support of
the Petroleum Activities, including
for warehouses, offices, camps,
piers, marine vessels, wvehicles,
motorised  rolling  equipment,
aircraft, fire and security stations,
workshops, water and sewage
plants, power plants, housing,
community  and recreational
facilities and furniture, tools and
equipment used in these activities,
Service costs in any Calendar year
shall include the total costs incurred
in such year to purchase and/or
construct said facilities as well as the
annual costs to maintain and
operate the same. AH Service Costs
shall be regularly allocated as
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(b)

{c}

(d)

specified in Sections 2.1(e}, 2.2{h)
and 2.3 to Exploration Costs,
Development Costs and Operating
Costs, respectively

Service Costs incurred during the
period commencing with the
Effective Date and ending with the
date of approval of the first
Development and Production Plan
and the approval of the Gas
Infrastructure and Marketing Plan
(in the case of a Natural Gas
Discovery) by the Council of
Ministers for a proposed
Development and Production Area,
shall be fully aflocated to
Exploration Cost.

Commencing with the date of
approval  of the first plan for
Development and Production and
the approval of the Gas
Infrastructure and Marketing Plan
{in the case of a Natural Gas
Discovery] by the Council of
Ministers for a proposed
Development and Production Area,
and if it becomes necessary to
allocate Service Costs to or between
Petroleum Activities pursuant to
different exploration and
production  agreements,  such
allocation shall be made on an
equitable basis in accordance with
applicable Llebanese law or, In
absence of such basis, as agreed to
between the Minister, based on the
opinion of the  Petroleum
Administration, and the Oparatoron
a systematic basis and, failing
agreement, the allocation to be
determined by a sole expert in
accordance with the EPA,

The Right Holder shall furnish a
description of Its  allocation
procedures determined as sat forth
above pertaining to Service Costs,
along with each proposed
Development and Production Plan.
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2.5. General

and Administrative

Exnenses

“Genaral and Administrative Expenses” means:

(a)

(b}

{c)

All main office, field office and
general administrative costs in the
Reputdic of Lebanon incurred by
Operator on hehalf of the Right
Holders, in¢luding but not limited to
supervisory, accounting and
employee relations services. If such
main office, field office or other
administrative functions are used
for Petroleum Activities and for
activities conducted under other
exploration and production
agreements or other activities
autside the scope of the EPA, such
costs shall be allocated on an
equitable basis in accordance with
applicable Lebanese law or, in
absence of such basis, as agreed to
hetween the Minister, based on the
opinion of the Petroleum
Administration, and the Operator
and, failing agreement, the
allocation shall be determined by &
sobe expert in accordance with the
EPA

An overhead charge for services
rendered inside and ocutside the
Republic of Lebanon by the Right
Holders’ Affiliates for managing the
Petroleum Activities and for staff
advice and assistance including
financial, legal, accounting and
employee relations services. This
charge shall be limited to one
percent {1%) of all Exploration Costs,
Development Costs, and Oparating
Costs for each year (excluding, for
the avoidance of doubt, Generaland
Administrative Expenses otherwise
included therein).

Al General and Administrative
Fxpenses shall be regularly allocated
as specified in Sections 2.1(f), 2.2{i)
and 23 1o Exploration Costs,
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(4)

(e)

()

Development Costs and QOperating
Costs, respectively

Gengral ang Administrative
Expenses incurred during the perlod
commencing with the Effective Date
and ending with the date of
approval of the first plan for
Development and Production and
the approval of the Gas
Infrastructure and Marketing Plan
{in the case of 'a Natural Gas
Discovery) by the Council of
Ministers for a proposed
Development and Production Araa,
shail be fully allocated to Exploration
Cost.

Commencing with the date of
approval of the first plan for
Development and Froduction and
the approval of the Gas
Infrastructure and Marketing Plan
{in the case of a Natural Gas
Discovery) by the Council of
Ministers for a proposed
Develogment and Production Area,
if it becomes necessary 1o allocate
General and Administrative
Expenses to or between Petroleum
Activities pursuant to different
exploration and production
agreements, such allocation shall be
made on an equitable basis in
accordance with applicable
Lebanese law, or, in absence of such
basis, as agreed 1o between the
Minister, based on the opinion of
the Petroleum Administration, and
the  Operator and, failing
agreement, the allocation shall be
determined by a sole expert in
accordance with the EPA,

The Right Holder shall furnish a

description of its  allocation
procedures pertaining to General
and Administrative Expenses
determined as set forth above,
along with each proposed plan for
Development and Production.
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2.6. Decommissioning Fund

(a)

{b)

{c)

{d)

(€)

For the purpose of costs related to
the implementation of a plan for
cessation of Petroleum Activities

and decommissioning of Facilities, a

Decommissioning Fund shall be
established for each Development
and Production Area as stipulated in
the Law no 132/2010 (OPR Law), the
Decree no 10289/2013 (PAR) and
the EPA.

For every CQuarter, commencing
from the Quarter in which the first
cost recoverable payment is made
into the Decommissioning Fund, and
for the remalning period in which
Petroleum is produced from the
Development and  Production
Areals}, Right Holders shall charge
as Operating Costs the Quarterly
amount to be paid to the
Decommissioning Fund in
accordance with the Law no
132/2010 {OPR Law)}, the Decree no
10289/2013 {PAR) and the EPA.

The first payment into the
Decommissioning  Fund  shall
commendce at the end of the Quarter
during which fifty percent (50%) of
the estimated recoverable reserve
stated in the approved
Development and Production Plan
has been produced.

Payment into the Decommissioning
Fund with cost recovery effect may
not commence bafare fifty parcent
(50%) of the estimated recoverahle
reseives stated in the approved
Development and Production Plan is
produced,

The amount 1o he paid to the
Decommissicning  Fund for a
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(f}

Duarter shail be charged to the Joint
Account as Operating Costs.

The amount to he paid to the
Decommissioning Ffund for a
CQuarter shall be calculated on the
basls of the estimated cost for the
implementation of an approved plan
(or, if there is not yet an approved
definitive plan, the preliminary plan
prepared pursuant to Article 18.3 of
the EPA) for cessation of Petroleum
Activities and decommissioning of
Facilities, the Production for such
Quarter and the remaining
Petroleum reserves to be recoverad
at the time of the first paymentinto
the Decommissioning Fund subject
to adjustments as described below.
This shall be calculated in the
following manner:

QD = (ECD X {QCPE/EPR)) - DSA

where;

QD is the amount of funds 1o be paid
to the Decommissioning Fund in
respect of the relevant Quarter;

ECD is the estimated total cost of
implementation of the approved
plan {or preliminary pian} for
cessation of Petroleum Activities
and decommissioning of Facilities,
as adjusted pursuant to the Law no
132/2080 (OPR Law}, the Decree no
10289/2013 {PAR} and the EPA;

QCPE is the total cumulative
Petroleum extracted from the time
of the first payment into the
Decommissioning Fund until the end
of the relevant Quarter;
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- EPR is the estimated remaining
Petroleum reserves to be racovered
durlng the remaining life of the
Reservoirs in  the relevant
Development and  Production
Areals) at the time of the first
payment into the Decommissioning
Fund as adjusted from time to time
for any reserves arising from
secondary recovery programmes or
other changes; and

- DSA is the cumulative amount of
moneys in the Decommissioning
Fund following the payment in
respect of the Iimmediately
preceding Quarter.

{) The payment in respect of each
Quarter shall be made within thirty
(30) days of the end of such Quarter,
and shalil be subject to adjustment
following the delivery of the
relevant  year-end  statement
pursuant to Section 8.6 of this

Accounting and Financial Procedure.

3. Charges to the Joint Account

The Operator shali charge the Joint Account for
all costs and expenditures incurred by the
Operator for the conduct of Petroleum Activities
within the limits of approved Work Programs
and budgets or as otherwise specified by the
EPA.

Charges for services normally provided by the
Operator such as those contemplated which are
provided by a Right Holder's Affiliate shall reflect
the actual cost to the Affiliate, on a no gain no
loss basis, without any element of profit and
with no allocation of fixed costs in the
determination of the relevant service fees, for
performing such services, except as otherwise
provided in this Accounting and Financial
Procedure,

The costs and expenditures shall be recorded as
required for the settlement of accounts
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between the Right Holders hereto in connectlon
with the rights and obligations pursuant to the
£PA, and for purposes of complying with the tax
aws of the Republic of Lebanon and of such
other countries to which any of the Right
Holders may be subject.

Costs and expenditures agreed, contracted or
accrued subsequent to the Fffective Date
chargeable to the Joint Account include, but are
not limited to, the following

3.1, Direct charges

Cost related to:

(a)

Acguisition and maintenance of surface
rights as described in Section 4.1 {a).

{b)
(c)

Labour as described in Section 4.1 {b).

Offices, warehouses, and miscellaneous
infrastructure as describedin Section 4.1
fc).

{d) Transportation costs as described in
Section 4.1 (d).

b Services as described in Section 4.1 (e}

{f) Material as described in Section 4.1 (f).

{g) Taxes and duties as described in Section
4.1 {g).

{h) Environmental costs as described in
Saction 4.1 {h).

{) Insurance as described in Section 4.1 {i).

(). Damages and losses as described in
Section 4.1 ().

{k} Legal expenses as described in Section
4.1 {j}.

{) Training expenses as described in
Section 4.1 {k).

{m} Communications expenses as describad
in Section 4,1 (m}.

{n) Cessation and decommissioning as
described under Section 4.1 (n).

{0) Cost related to recovery of anciilary
products as described in Section 4.1 (o).

{p] Audit and inspection fee as described

under Section 4.1 {p).
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(g) Other expenditures as described under
Section 4.1 (g}

3.2. Indirect charges

The Operator shall charge the Joint Account
monthly for the cost of General and
Administrative Expenses of the Operator
and its Affiliates not otherwise provided in
this Accounting and Financial Procedure,
General and Administrative Expenses
chargeable under this Section 3.2 represent
the cost of general assistance and support
services provided by the Operator or its
Affiliates as described in Section 2,5 (a) and
the charges described in Section 2.5 (b},
These costs are such that it is not practical
to identify or assoclate them with specific
projects, but are for services which provide
the Petroleum Activities with needed and
necessary resources which Right Holders
require and that provide a real benefit to
Petroleum Activities. The Operator shall
provide 1o the Petroleum Administration
such  infermation  and  documents
supporting the allocation of such costs
under this Section 3.2 as the Petroleum
Administration may request, including an
explanation of the benefit sueh costs
provide to Petroleum Activities, No cost or
expenditure included under Section 3.1
shall be included or duplicated under this
Section 3.2.

4. Costs, expenses, expenditures and
credits of the Right Holder

4.1, Costs recoverable under the EPA

Subject to the provisions of applicable
Llebanese law and the EPA, the Operator
shall subsequent to the Effective Date
charge to the Joint Account the following
costs and expenses in respect of the
Petroleum Activities pursuant to the EPA.
Costs and expensas incurred in connection
with  Petroleum Activities shall be
Recoverable Costs, and may be charged to
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the Joint Account, to the extent they are
incurred in accordance with approved
Exploration Plans, Appraisal Plans,
Development and Production Plans, Work
Programs and budgets, or otherwise
pursuant to Article 13 of the EPA {in respect
of allowances, continuation of operations
and emergencies). These costs and
expenses shall be classified under the
headings referred to in Section 2, and shall
constitute Recoverable Costs for purposes
of the EPA without further approval of the
State (subject to the audit and exception
rights described above and the contracts
approval conditions set out in Article 27.2
of the EPA), and include the following:

Surface Rights

All direct costs attributable to the
acquisition, renewal or relinquishment
of surface rights necessary In
connection with the construction of
onshore Facilities used in Petroleum
Activities,

(a)

(b)

Labour and associated labour costs,

including:
(i) The salaries, wages and related
costs of employees of Dperator
fincluding  secondees  from
Affiliates of the OQperator and
other Right Holders) temporarily
or permanently assigned in the
Republic of Lebanon and directly
engaged in Petroleum Activities;

(il  The salaries, wages and related
costs of employees of the
Operator {including secondees
from Affiliatas of the Operator
and other Right Holders)
temporarily or permanently
assigned outside tha Republic of
Lebanon directly engaged in
Petroleum Activities, and not
otherwise covered by Section 4.1

(e):
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{ii)

(iv)

Costs for salaries, wages and
related costs for employees
working full time on Petroleum
Activities shall be fully chargeable
to the Joint Account. Costs for
salaries, wages and related costs
for employees working part-time
on Petroleurn Activities shall he
chargeable to the Joint Account
on a pro rata basis, taking into
account time spent by the
relevant employees or such other
equitable basis as may be
determined by the Minister based
on the opinion of the Petroleum
Administration;

“Related costs” for purposes of
the foregoing include:

a) holiday, vacation, sickness,
severance  (unfess  far
dismissal of an employee
without cause as
determined by a court or
arbitral body of competent
jurisdiction), and disability,
refirement  and  survival
payments applicable to the
salaries and wages
recoverable pursuant to the
foregoing paragraphs. In
respect of the severance,
retirement, and  survival
payments mentioned
above, the amount that
shall be cost recoverable
shall be in proportion of the
total time the employee
was directly engaged in the
Patroleum Activities
pursuant to the EPA on a full
time equivalant basis to the
employee’s total tenure
with the Right Holder and
its Affiliatas,
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{v)

b) social charges, or similar
contributions made
pursuant to assessments or
obligations imposed under
applicable law which are
applicabie to the
Operator’s or Right
Holder's {as the case may
be} cast of salaries and
wages chargeable under
the foregoing paragraphs;

¢JOperator’s or Right Holder's
{as the case may be) cost of
established plans  for
employees’ life insurance,
hospitalisation, pensions,
and other benefits of a
similar nature customarily
granted to the Right
Holder's employees and
those of its Affiliates shall
also be chargeable to the
Joint Account; and

d) reasonable travel and
personal  expenses  of
employees of the Operator
and the Right Holders
including those mada for
travel and relocation of the
expatriate employees and
their immediate families
assigned to  Petroteum
Activities in the Republic of
Lebanon;

The Operator {on behalf of the
Right Holders) shall also pay and
may charge to the Joint Account
reasonable expenses incurred by
members and any observers of
the Management Committee
appointed pursuant to  Article
16.6 of the EPA in attending
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(c)

{d}

(e)

meetings of the Management
Committee;

Offices

Cost of maintaining in Lebanon any
offices and sub-offices, warehouses,
operating bases and other infrastructure
such as furniture, fixtures and supplies
necessary for the operation of offices of
the Operator located in Lebanon directly
serving the Petroleum Activities. If such
offices, sub-offices,  warehouses,
operating bases and other infrastructure
serve activities in addition to the
Petroleum Activities pursuant to the
EPA, then costs shall be allocated on an
equitable basis in accordance with
applicable Lebanese law, o7, in absence
of such basts, as agreed to between the

‘Minister, based on the opinion of the

Petroleum Administration, and the
Operator and, faiing agreement, the
allocation shall be determined by a sole
expert in accordance with the EPA,

Transportation costs

Transportation cost includes all cost of
transportation of employees,
equipment, Materials and supplies
necessary for conducting the Petroleum
Activities pursuant to the EPA.

Charges for Services and use of Affiliate

equipment and facilities

(i) Third Party Contracts
The actual costs of contracts
services, services of professional
consultant, utilities and other
necessary services to conduct
Petroleum Activities entered into by
the Operator, made with third
partles are recoverable provided
that the charges paid under such
contract by the Operator are not
higher than those generally charged
by other international or domestic
third party suppliers for comparable
work and services, In the case of
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contracts  entered into  with
Affiliates of Right Holders, costs may
only be chargeable to the loint
Account, and shall only be
recoverable, tg the extent the
relevant contracts are approved
pursuant to Article 27.2 of the EPA,
and anly to the extent set forth in {ii)
below,

(i} Affiliates of Right Holders

A. Professional and Administrative
Services and Expenses
Cost of professional and
administrative services provided
by an Affiliate of a Right Holder
for the direct benefit of
Petroleum Activities pursuant to
a service contract, including, but
not limited to, services related
to  production, exploration,
legal, financial, insurance, and
accounting. Without prejudice
to the tharges to be made in
accordance with Section 2.5, in
the case of services rendered in
the Petroleum Activities by an
Affiliate of the Right Holder, the
charges shall be based on actual
costs, on a no gain no loss basis,
without element of profit. The
charges shall be ne higher than
the most favourable prices
charged by the Affiliate to third
parties for comparable services
under similar terms and
conditions and no higher than
the prices charged for
comparable services currently
by non-Affiliates, When
required, certified evidence
regarding the basis of prices
charged by the Affiliate to third
parties shall be obtained from
the auditors of the Affiliate.

B. Scientific or Technical Personnel
Cost of scientific or technical
personnel services provided by
any Affiliate pursuant to a
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service contract for the direct
benefit of the Petroleum
Activities which cost shall be
charged based on actual costs,
en a no galn no loss basis,
without element of profit.
Charges shall not exceed
charges of comparable services
currently provided by outside
technical service organization of
comparable qualification.

C. Equipment and facilities

Use of equipment and facilities
owned and furnished by the
Affiliate, at rates commensurate
with the actual cost of
ownership and operation, on a
no gain no loss basis, without
element of profit, provided that
such rates shall not exceed
those currently prevailing for
the supply of like equipment
and facilities on comparable
terms. The equipment and
facilities referred to herein shall
exclude major investment items
such as, but not limited to,
drilling rigs, producing platform,
oil and pgas loading and
transportation, storage and
terminal facilities and other
rmajor facilities. Upon the State’s
request, the Operator shall
furnish a list of rates and the
basis of application.
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{f) Materials

(i} General

So far as s practicable and
consistent with applicable Lebanese
law and Best International
Petroleum Industry Standards, only
such Material shall be purchased or
furnished by the Operator on behalf
of the Right Holders for use in the
Petroleum Activities as may be
required for use in the reasonably
foreseeable future and to the extent
that such purchase or supply are in
accordance with the EPA {including
without limitation Article 27 of the
EPA).
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(1)

In case of defective Material or
equipment, any adjustment
received by the Operator from the
suppllers or manufacturers or their
agents shall be credited to the Jolnt
Account under the EPA,

Value of Material charged to the

accounts under the EPA

a} Except as otherwise provided in
item b) below, Materlal purchased
by the Qperator for use in the
Petroleum Activities shall be
valued at the actual net cost
incurred, including: inveoice price
less trade and cash discounts (if
any), purchase and procurement
fees plus freight and forwarding
charges between point of supply
and point of shipment, freight to
port of destination, insurance,
taxes, customs duties, consular
fees, other items chargeable
against imported Material and
where applicable handling and
transportation expenses from
point of importation to warehouse
or operating site or location, and
its costs should not exceed those
then cuwrrently prevailing in
normal arms-length transactions
on the open market.

b) Materhals purchased from
Affiliates of the Right Holders shall
be charged at the prices specified
in {1) and {2} hereof.

{1) New Material {condition "A"}
shall be valued at the current
international price which should
not exceed the price prevailing in
normal arms-length transactions
on the open market.

(2} Used Material {conditions "8"
and "C"} shall be vatued as
follows;
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{i) Material which is in sound
and serviceable condition and
is suitable for reuse without
reconditioning  shall  be
classified as condition "B" and
priced at seventy-five percent
{75 %) of the current price of
new Materials defined in (1)
above (Condition A).

{ii)Material which cannot be
classified as condition "8" but
which after reconditioning will
be further serviceakle for
original function as good
second-hand Material
condition "8", or which is
serviceable  for  original
function but substantially not
suitable for reconditioning,
shall be classified as condition
"C" and priced at fifty percent
{50%} of the current price of
new Material as defined in (1)
above (Condition A). The cost
of reconditioning shall be
charged to the reconditioned
Material provided that the
condition "C" Material value
plus the cost of reconditioning
does not exceed the value of
condition "B" Material.

(ifliMaterial which cannot be
classified as condition "B" or
condition "C" shall be priced at
a value commensurate with its
use,

{iv) Material involving erection
costs shall be charged at the
applicable  percentage, in
accordance te its condition, of
the current dismantled price of
new Material as defined in (1)
above {Condition A).
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{vl When the use of Material is
temporary and its service to
the Petroleum Activities does
not justify the reduction in
price as provided for in [2}{ii}
hereof, such Material shall be
priced on a basis that will result
in a net charge to the accounts
under the EPA consistent with
the value of the service
rendered,
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(g) Taxes, duties and other assessments Aoial
All taxes, and all those levies, charges, fees,
contributions and any other assessments and

charges levied by the State, in connection 3 fi<x)y D syl

with the Petroleum Activities, and paid s Lall b ebie Yooy eall
directly or indirectly by the Right Holders = ,‘t‘é‘;ﬁ 1“ . &’ i i
including, for the avoidance of doubt, any ‘S iyl S Sligedd (gl

Excess Corporate Income Tax, with the Unah Lo & sl e diaay ia
exception of the following: ddimy 4o gitally Ay gl UiVl

G AY) Cigad g g g My ih ol (3)

(i) Taxes that are measured by or based

upon the revenues, income and net
worth of a Right Holder or physical
person including but not limited to:

A.  Corporate Income Tax {save for any
Excess Corporate Income Tax);

Tax on capital gains;

Withholding tax on nen-resident
ingome;

Tax on dividends;

Tax on bank deposits returns;

Tax on movable capital;
Tax on direct or
Assignments, or

nw

ammE

indirect

H. Al taxes incurred by Right Holders

oh behalf of the tax payer in¢luding
payroll tax where incurred by the
Right Holders on behalf of the
empioyee,
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(i} Fines and penalties imposed by any
public authority in the Republic of
Lebanon.

(iii) Royalty shares, area fees, Profit
Petroleum shares or other Petroleum
entitlements, in each case paid to the
state in connection with or related to
the EPA,

(iv) Any taxes paid outside the Republic of
Lebanon.

{v} Any taxes subject to reimbursenent or
refund,

{vi) Any other taxes deemed to be non.
recoverable costs,

{h) Environmental casts by the Operator
incurred with respect to the Petroleum
Activities in order to comply with
applicable Lebanese law and Article 17
of the EPA.

(iy Insurance and losses

(i} Insurance premiums and costs
incurred for insurance arranged in
accordance with the EPA provided
that if such insurance is wholiy or
partly placed with an Affiliate of the
Operator or other Right Holder,
such premiums and costs shall be
recoverable only toc the extent
generally charged by competitive
insurance companies other than an
Affiliate of the Operator or other
Right Holder. Costs and losses
incurred as a conseguence of
events which are insurable, and in
so far as not made good by
insurance obtained under the EPA
through no fault of the Operator,
are recoverable under the £EPA.

(i} Al costs or expenditures necessary
to replace or vepsir damages or

losses  incurred shall be
recovetable. The Operator shall
provide the Petroleurn

Administration written notice of
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(i}

damages or losses incurred in
excess of one hundred thousand
United States dollars {USS 100,000)
as soon as practical after report of
the same has been received by the

Operator.  All losses in excess of
fifty thousand United States dollars
{Us550,000) shall be listed
separately in  the quarterly
statement of costs and
expenditures,

(i) Expenditures incurred in the

settlement of all losses, claims,
damages, judgements, and other
expenses for the account of
Petroleurn  Activities  shall  be
recoverable.

Legal expenses

AH costs and expenseas of litigation and
legal or related services necessary or
expedient for the procuring, perfecting,

. retention and protection of rights

pursuant to the EPA , and in defending
or prosecuting lawsuits involving the
EPA Block or any third party claim arising
out of Petroleum Activities pursuant to
the EPA, or sums paid in respect of fegal
services necessary or expedient for the
protection of Petroleum Rights pursuant
to the EPA or joint interest of the State
and the Right Holders, are recoverable.
Such  expenditures  shall  include
attorney’s fees, court costs, cost of
litigation, costs of investigation, and
claims provided that such costs are not
covered elsewhere in the Accounting
and Financial Procedure, Where legal
services are rendered in such matters by
salaried or regularly retained lawyers of
the Operator, an Affiliate of the
Operator or other Right Holder, such
compensation shall be included instead
under Section 4.1(b) or 4,1{e) above, as
applicable. Cost and expenses related to
legal assistance for the purpose of
challenging {or responding to 3
challenge of) cost recovery, Profit
Petroleum split or Royalty shall not be
cost recoverable, The preceding costs
and expenses shall not include costs of
any nature (including attorneys’ fees
and the fees of the ICC, arbitrators, the
sole expert, ather experts, professionsls
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{k}

{1

(m

(n)

and translators} incurred in connection
with any consultation, arbitration or sole
expert process under Articles 37 to 39
(inclusive) of the EPA,

Training costs

All costs and expenses incurred by the
Operator in tralning of its employees
located in Lebanon and engaged in the
Petroleum Activities pursuant to the EPA
and such other training or institutional
support as required under the EPA
{including the contribution provided for
in Article 20.2 of the EPA) or applicable
Lebanese kaw including the recruitment
tosts to lebanese citizens.

General and Administrative Expenses
General and Administrative Expenses
are the costs described in Section 2.5(a)
and the charge described in Section
2.5(b).

Communications

Cost of acquiring, leasing, installing,
operating, repairing and maintaining
communication systems including radic
and microware facilities between the
Block and the Operator's nearest base
facility.

Decommissioning fund

Payments into the Decommissioning
Fund and costs Incurred  for  the
preparation angd Implementation of a
preliminary or definitive  plan for
cessatlon of Petrolaum Actlvities and
decommissioning of Facilitias according
to applicable Lebanese law, the Decree
no 10289/2013 (PAR) and the EPA (and
subject to the llmitations contained

iy Addetall iy fuaddly cafiSal
) ol i i al A gl Bae sl
dojid e (Ualsie) e 2l
il g5 _’i d_,j.i._ﬁl ci—)‘é}‘h—b&.@j TR LN |
wadlel Jada W oaly fgall ALE el
Cil Lega  o2al sadaall cuaill
Adaadl clatl iy L) Velapde
(ACC) dsall b laall 4 lasly
¢|).3'&“J .?.Jii.n.“ _),3._6..“_, CreSaaldl 4
(Cuan ally  Cpalially 0 pAY)
sl oty La (8 Lo oy Al Sl
alatall el yd o) psSas gl 3 st
¥4 U]J Y ..\1_,4.“ Crigm gy §_dle g
20y ST A ¢ (Linna)

oz S (al)

lhj.)ﬁ-.)q:dl LQJL;.@»HJ'.M'I@A_A
Oxdggall  Agadiione Gyl Jada)
Madiit B rsdesy Oy QU A
GlaCiuy] Al Adladad A0, sl
AU (B agilae b LaS | passapallf
lede o seeniall Ranbnall llh i Ley)
OsNE b G e Yo ¥ ALl
W (0 shoafl el

ool Jlaall phasil Callss

daladl g Ay oY s jluadd! ()
3_)\-}6‘- L) L»J'I.J}“ 3 dalwll L,ﬂ.g_)'h.dn.'l'l
()05 ol 5 55 b g
() 00 sl 83 0all el

b3 (p)
Ll 6 QS o el ¢ caladS) 431K
W‘ .1::_91:-\5- .ﬂ-.!.ell_j &ﬂ.aw. sc:ﬁ-ua) ‘
bl b el ol o by Lty
wiyg g Saall g gpl Sl il gal b W g
SR RN PR e

sl 2ol 3850 Lo, ()
g clan g8 Ao gell e gadl
laass oy Y bl y Junadiald o3fal
Dasyl iy Alas ik, Mo} A
[EPR R PR R PR P
syl el g
AL YOAY/Y YA B o g gl



Y20 | Y1417 - V' ssal Babe — dyas sl 335l

therein) that are not covered by (Ady il daihy dalasdl act @
withdrawals from the Decommissioning  3le} ,a es) Uil Ll ASLN T ALt

Fund. Sia it b Ty (Leh 50 3 gl
f;‘:l.ﬂl gl s e bl
{0} Costs related to recovery of ancillary (il
products
All costs barne by the Right Holders in  abatiall 3la iy Adasi jall CANSSN (=)
respect of the recovery of ancillary agdlaty

products shall be recoverable costs s | WAy :;:‘”' Gl agas
pursuant to Article 19.4 of the EPA, siatidl sy iy alys l.egi &_,u.\cl
Ao iadll A8 CallSs < Adlaat
CHSSILYT AR e 14, ¢ skl s
{p} Any audit or inspection fees charged by E Y
the State. )
Lt jis G Sl dand pe asu) gt (8)
Ad gal
{q) Other expenditures
Any other legitimate expenditure, other . . .
than expenditures which are covered by . ‘5;}*&{‘ t"'u"'l] ()
the foregoing provisions of this section oY Wass & ‘:"JJ‘“"‘ ‘—‘}“‘
incurred for the necessary and proper s JSG Al Adadal
performance of Petroleum Activities in  Jaall & il 1ad 5 Gsay
accordance  with dapprovedd Wohrk LEE e sadinadl b3l
Programs and budgets under the ‘,-'l" Y EU'-"'-‘“J LT

reement. . o .
he i) 138 e ALl S Lgplans

4.2, Priority of Recoverable Costs
a1 e ALY At 4,50 3 ¢, Y
O Cangay 2l iR AN afisil o

Costs recoverable pursuant to applicable
Lebanese law, the Decree no 10289/2013
{PAR) and the EPA shal} be recovered in the

following order of priority: By paegally sl eoall SU

{a) Operating Costs pursuant to Section aalasali ac galh &ah‘a\'!) A\RRAYARR LS
2.3; Z LBV CRLESTLY AU 5 (A st adala™l

(b} Elef)rat:iao; Costs pursuant 1o :wi zﬂg‘ﬁ‘ . ;3 o g
ection 2.1; oty s B s el s g

(c) Development Costs pursuant to AR ?"“'HL“J Al sl (i)
Section 2.2; A ‘a.u'i.'ﬂ 8y CLISA.LY 4.43.?55(1..1)

JOY andll iy okl LallSS (i)

4.3. Costs not recoverable under the
EPA - .
wmiin gt A1t ALIRY 8 eI £, ¥
The following costs shall not be cost gl g il A
recoverable pursuant to the EPA:

(@) Petroleum marketing costs {except as 3143 i <allSs A VLIRS CJ‘ i

otherwise contemplated in  an ] s L) A o el
approved Gas Infrastructure and Ly CLASELYY AU e A

Marketing Plan} and Transportation -9" L“_"L"?‘:“'"L{) ‘-!J_‘):‘-.'-“_ (33 pud S (‘)
costs of Petroleum beyond the Al ihd 8 ) A (o gaie

Delivery Point{s) as set forth in an (Lh.ls Ol gall 4dygudiy Slall A8a50
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(b}

{c)

(d)

(e

{f)

{:4]

th)

(i)

i)

approved Development and

Production Plan.;

costs of any nature (including
attorneys’ fees and the fees of the
ICC, arbitrators, the sole expert, other
experts, professionals and
translators) Incurred in connection
with any consultation, arbitration or
sole expert process under Articles 37
10 39 {Inclusive) of the EPA;

Rovalty;

Costs and expenditures incurred as a
result of a breach of any provision of
the EPA, Gross Negligence or Willful
Misconduct on the part of the Right
Holders or the Operator, or their
Affiliates;

Costs that are not adequately
supported and documented;

Costs and charges incurred before the
Effective Date;

Interest, or any charge or payment in
the nature of, in lieu of, or having the
commercial effect of interest related
to the financing of Petroleum
Activities;

Any taxes measured by or based upon
the revenues, income, gains, dividends
and net worth of a Right Heolder or
physical person, wherever imposed
(save for any Excess Corporate Income
Tax);

The Value Added Tax paid by the Right
Holder except the non-deductible
Value Added Tax and the tax which
deduction is not approved by the tax
authorities.

Any taxes paid to authorities outside
the Republic of Lebanon;
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(k) Anytaxes subject to reimbursement or
refund;

() Any other taxes that should be
deemed non-allowable costs;

Fines and penalties imposed by any
public authority in the Republic of
Lebanon or elsewhere and any interest
due thereon;

{m}

{n)

Commissions and arrangement fees
paid to intermediaries;

(o) Commissions and arrangement fees
and other costs (including borrowing
casts, Interest or other costs to secure
guarantees {including professional and
advisory fees and expenses) relating to
guarantees including the Work
Commitment Guarantee and the

Parent Company Guarantee,

{p}Any amounts spent on indemnities with
regard to non-fulfilment of contractual
obligations;

(g} Donations and contributions made by
the Right Holders;

{r) Costs incurred by the Operator under
contracts or amendments thereto that
were (i) subject to approval by the
Minister, the Petroleum
Administration or the Management
Committee and were not so approved,
ot (i} required to be conducted on the
basis of a competitive tender in
accordance with Article 27.1 of the
EPA, but that were not awarded on the
basis of a competitiva tender or
otherwise in compliance  with
applicable Lebanese law or the
provisions of the lJoint Operating
Agreement governing the
procurement of goods and services;

Costs that are not documented in
accordance with applicable law, the
EPA or this Accounting and Financiaf
Procedure;

{s)

L seaall s aud Gy ol ()

Aglud

b o) Sl aeiedd Gl e g ()
Ay pal

allss b jiet oKey (s AT il e gl ()
Slajilid e e

OB e i jiall Dl giadly il jadl ()
S Ralalll & jppaall 8 dale dua
c%ﬁhiﬁaﬂmiﬁﬁ@b)&ldﬂatﬁlqﬁ

G Wby o e iy OV gandl (=)
Y1 s el i Ly ) el
celil Al cadss oy il

Sy a gt Al 6 Lay) llenall
Chilaually dabaiall (A ot s digal
andl il yag of VI AN Y 4 Loy

SRS, A

$0ha) g gail) Wil o5 ilse (o) ()
LAoailaall il YL 14 g ,PJAJ

laval (e Lesiall il s e jil(e)
B siadl

i gay Jokell Wy (A Sl ()
(V) M5 leale DUl 4l o giall
0 A b oW dE A s
A aly 5yl Aal o Jy ¢k
Lealadl g IS (Y) 5l clggle AdH gall
(6, dpdlil claibadl sl
LKLY R e YY,Y saladl
gialt odb gie gy ol Al e cprliiYiy
o3 iy Ll sactdll sl Y LS
Ao et Aol oyl Y SSa) e
dusdh Aglit el el et
By Slelal e 5 Al o il
¢ leadll g adud)

A G Lt 5 ) 0 e ()
SLESELT AEUEY ¢ ¢of Y syl



verafit o ¥ ssdl Gale - L 53500

{t) Costs of any disputes arising under the
Joint Operating Agreement entered
into among the Right Holders;

{u) Any Service Costs incurred for the
benefit of any operation or activity not
related to Petroleum Activitias;

{v) Costs assoclated with the acquisition
of seismic and other data incurred in
connection with the licensing round
pursuant to which the EPA was
awarded; Including any licensing fees

or uplift thereon;

{w} Area fee

4.4. Recoverability and deductibility

The determination of whether the costs
and expenses set forth herein are
Recoverable Costs or not shall apply only to
this EPA, and shall not be interpreted to
preclude the Right Holder from deducting,
or as providing the Right Holder with the
right to deduce, said amounts in computing
its net Income from the Petroleum
Activities for Corporate Income Tax
purposes under applicable Lebanese law,

4.5, Credits under the EPA

The net proceeds of the following

transactions pursuant to the EPA shall,

subject to the applicable law, be credited to
the Joint Account under the EPA:

{a) The net proceeds of any insurance or
claim in connection with the Petroleam
Activities or any assets charged as a
Recoverable Cost under the EPA when
such Petroleum Activities or assets were
insured and the premliums charged as a
Recoverable Cost under the EPA;
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(b}

{c)

{d)

(e)

)

(g

Ravenue received from third parties
includting Affiliated Companies for the
use of, or Right Holders' disposal of,
Material, property or assets charged as
a Recoverable Cost under the EPA;

Any adjustment received by the
Operator or any Right Holder from the
suppliers or manufacturers, or their
agents, in connection with defective
Material the cost of which was
previously charged by the Right Holders
as a Recoverable Cost under the EPA;

Rentals, refunds or other credits
received by the Operator or any Right
Holder which apply to any charge which
has been made as a Recoverable Cost
under the EPA;

Proceeds of interest received from bank
accounts opened in cannection with the
Petroleum Activities under the EPA;

The amounts received for inventory
Materials charged to the Joint Account
and subsequently exported from the
Republic of Lebanon without having
been used in the Petroleum Activities.

Legal expenses charged to the Joint
Account under Section 4.1() and
subsequently recovered by the Operator
or any other Right Holder and payments
obtained in resolution or settlement of
losses, claims, damages, Judgements

and other expenses related to
Petroleum Activities conducted
pursuant to the EPA,

4.6. Duplication of charges and credits
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Notwithstanding any provision to the
contrary in this Accounting and Financial
Procedure, there shall be no duplication of
charges or credits in the accounts under the
EPA.

5. Records and valuation of assets

The Operator shall on behalf of the Right
Holder maintain detailed records of
Facilities and other assets acquired and
charged as Recoverable Costs pursuant to
tha EPA in use for the Petroleum Activities
in accordance with the applicable Lebanese
law and Best International Petroleum
Industry Standards. The detailed records
shall include information on quantities,
location and whether such assats are leased
or owned. At reasonable intervals, but at
least once a year, with respact to movable
assels, and once every five (5) years with
respect to immovable assets, inventories of
the property under the EPA shall be taken
by the Operator. The Qperator shall give the
Petroleum Administration at least thirty
{30} days written notice of its intention to
take such inventory and the Petroleum
Administration shall have the right to be
represented when such inventory is taken,
The Operator shall clearly state the
principles wpon which valuation of the
inventory has been based. When an
Assignment of rights under the £PA takes
place, a special inventory may be taken by
the Right Holder at the request of the
assignee provided that the costs of such
inventory are borne by the Right Helder (for
its own account, as a non-Recoverable Cost)
or the assignee.

6. Statements and reports

6.1. Production Report

{a) Subseguent to the commencement of
Commercial Production from the
Block, the Operator, on behalf of the
Right Holders, shall submit daily,
monthly and annual reports on
production (hereinafter referred to as
the “Production Report”} to the

Petroleum Administration for each
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(b)

Development and Production Area
pursuant to Article 50 of the Decree no
10289/2013 {PAR) and the EPA,

The Production Report of each
Calendar month shall be submitted to
the Petroleum Administration no later
than fifteen {15) Calendar days after
the end of such Calendar maonth.

6.2. Value of Production and Royalty

(b)

Statement

The Operator, on behalf of the Right
Holders, shall prepare with respect to
each Calendar month a wvalue of
production and royaity statement
(hereinafter referred to as the “Value
of Praduction and Royalty Statement”)
covering the determination of the
value of Crude Qil and other Petroleum
(determined in accordance with the
Law no 1322010 (OPR Law), the
Becree no 10289/2013 (PAR) and the
EPA) respectively, produced during
each Calendar month and the value of
Rovalty payable {if taken in cash). This
statement shall contaln the following
information:

{i} The quantities and prices
realised by the Right Holder in
each sale of Crude Oil and other
Petroleum respectively, other
than to Affiliates, made during
the Calendar month in question;

{if) The guantities and the prices
realised by the Right Holder in
each sale of Crude Oil and other
Petroleum  respectively, to
Affiliates made during the

Calendar month in guestion;

{iii) The quantity and location of
stocks of Crude Oil, and if
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{c)

applicable other Petroleum, at
the end of the preceding
Calendar month;

(iv) The quantity and location of
stocks of Crude OQil, and if
applicable other Petrolewm, at
the end of the Calendar month
in question;

(v} The total Royalty llability for
Crude Oil and other Petroleum
respectively, for the Calendar
month  and the detailed
supporting calculation;

{vi) Published information avallable
to the Right Holder, when
requested by the Petroleum
Administration, concerning the
prices of relevant qualities of
Crude Ol or other Petroleum
produced by the main
Petroleumn  producing  and
exporting countries, including
contract prices, discounts and
premia, and prices obtained in
the spot markets for such
qualities of Crude Ol and other
Petroleum and for other
relevant Petroleumn products.

The Value of Production and Royalty
Statement of each Calendar month
shall be submitted to the Petroleum
Administration no later than thirty
{30} Calendar days after the end of
such Calendar month.

6.3. Cost Recovery Statement

(a)

The Operator, on behalf of the
Right Holders, shall prepare with
respect to each Quarter a cost
recovery statement (hereinafter
refarred 10 as the “Cost Recovery
Statement”} with respect to costs
that are allowable and recoverable
uncder Section 4.  of this
Accounting and Financial
Procedure containing the following
information; -
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(b)

{i) Recoverable Costs
carried forward from
the previous Quarter, if
any,

(ii) Recoverable Costs
charged to the Joint
Account for the Quarter
in question;

(iii}  Total Recoverable Costs

for the Quarter in
question (the sum of (i)
and {ii));

{iv) Quantity and value of
Cost Petroleum taken
proportionally in Crude
Oil and other Petroleum
for the Quarter in
question; '

{v) Credits for costs
recovered for the
Quarter in question;

{vi) Total cumulative
Recoverable Costs
recovered up to the end
of the Quarter in
question;

(vii)  Recoverable Costs to be
tarried forward into the
next Quarter.

The Cost Recovery Statement of
each Quarter shall be submitted to
the Petroleum Administration no
later than thirty (30) Calendar days
after the end of such Quarter,

6.4. Statement of Expenditure and

{a)

Receipts

The Operator, on behalf of the
Right Holders, shall prepare with
respect to  each Quarter a
statement of expenditures and
receipts under the EPA {(hereinafter
referred to as the “Statement of
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Expenditure and Receipts”). The
Statement of Expenditure and
Recelpts shall distinguish between
Exploration Costs, Development
Costs and Operating Costs and cost
related to cessation of Petroleum
Activities and decommissioning of
Facilities, including amounts drawn
from the Decommissioning Fund,
and shall identify major items of
expenditures within these
categories. The statement shali
show the following;

(i) Actual expenditures and
receipts for the Quarter in
guestion;

(i)} Cumulative expenditure and
receipts for the budget year
in question;

{il) Latest forecast cumulative
expenditures at the year end;

{iv} variations between budget
forecast and latest forecast
and explanations thereof;

{v} Price per barrel of Crude Oil
soid:

(vi) Price per barrel of oil
equivalent of MNatural Gas
sold.

(b} The Statement of Expenditure

and Receipts of each Quarter shall
be submitted to the Petroleum
Administration no later than
thirty {30) Calendar days after the
end of such Quarter.

6.5. Profit Petroleum Sharing
Statement
(a} The Operator, on behalf of the Right

Holders, shall prepare with respect
to each Quarter a statement of
profit sharing (hereinafter referred
to as the “Profit Petroleum Sharing
Statement”). This statemant shall
contain the following information:

{i} The total amount of Profit
Petroleum to be shared
between the State-and the Right
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Holder for the Quarter in

guestion;

(i) The amount of Profit Petroleum
due to the State and to the Right
Holders {collectively) for the
Quarter in question;

(iiy The details of R-Factor
calculation for the Quarter in
question and the R-Factor to be
applicable to the following
Quarter:

(b} The Profit Petroleum Sharing
Statement of each Quarter shall be
submitted to the Petroleum
Administration no later than thirty
(30) Calendar days after the end of

such Quarter,

6.6. Final, End of Year Statement

The Operator, on behalf of the Right
Holders, shall prepare a final end-of-year
statement. The statement shall contain
information as provided in the Production
Report, Value of Production and Royahy
Statement, Cost Recovery Statement and
Statement of Expenditures and Receipts,
Profit Petroleum Sharing Statement, but
shall be based on actual quantities of
Petroleum produced, and cost and
expenses incurred.  Based upon this
statement, any adjustments that are
necessary shall be reported to the
Petroleum Administration Promptly and
made to the payments made by the Right
Holder pursuant to the EPA. The final end-
of-year statement of each Calendar year
shall be submitted to the Petroleum
Administration within ninety (90) Calendar
days of the end of such Calendar year.

Together with the end-of-year statement,
the Operator shall submit to the Petroleum
Administration an audit report prepared by
an auditor of international standing that is
authorized to practice in Lebanon, including
an attestation (audit opinion) that the
infermation in such end-of-year statement
is in accordance with the requirements gf
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the EPA, including this Accounting and
Financial Procedure.

6.7. Budget Statement

()

{b)

The Operator shall, on behalf of the
Right Holders and In accordance
with Article 13.3 of the EPA, prepare
an annual budget statement
{hereinafter referred to as the
»Budget Statement”). This shall
distinguish between Exploration
Costs, Development  Costs and
Operating Costs and shall show the
following:

{i) Forecast expenditures and
receipts for the budget year
under the EPA;

(i} Forecast cumuliative
expenditures and receipts @
the end of the said budget year;

{iil} A schedule showing the most
important individual items of
forecast Exploration Costs and
Development Costs for the said
hudget year; and

{iv) Decommissioning Fund
statement, showing cumulative
payments made into the
Decommissioning Fund and the
estimation of payments to be
made the following year, and
cumulative withdrawals from
the Decommissioning Fund, and
withdrawals expected to be
made during the following year.

The Budget Statement shall be
submitted to the Petroleum
Administration with respect to each
budget year on or before the date
set forth in Article 13{3) of the EPA.

A3 healt G LY
el o Al (Jabdl (e (

BAE e VY,F L Uy (b sial
O das] U, S
s L ] ) Rasid) 3555
o b e g (s G
i At GRS G ol
iagy il CBNSS;  pshed

bl 1 b Gl e el

cliaghdly i (V)
AN . pap Agllalt ALl B dad el
EGEISY‘J(_‘LMS.\H vt Y'I

o gially il (Y)
il ) il oo Al gialt St il
gl sl

ylie al iy e (V)
okl Y S
ol A Al A gd

e

A Wil e e (E)
e dadl ey (gl e ol
a4 doagdd AgaSh sl
iy Jaail) Alalt a8 i
IDa Lgnis pigial e giadl

Clagandly  edll sl
bt (e S yiadh
Aaudl OMA Gadi il iy gauaill

A

e S 0o R oot o ()
6 3 b Jaid A 1 Lgd Ae
REE e VYT salalt daaall as gall

PR IR



VY

Y1911 = Y saall Gake - dse ) 3y ol

6.8. Local Procurement Statement

(a) Tha Operator, on behalf of the
Right Holders, shall prepare a Local
Procurement  Statement  that
should at 2 minimum include the
following information:

i} Anovendew of the Right
Holders compliance with
Article 20 of the EPA,
including the percentage of
the Right Holders and their
Contractors and
Subcontractors’ total
employees that are Lebanese
nationals;

{iiy The amount of expenditure
incurred by the Right Holder
directly or indirectly on
Lebanese originating
goods/services;

{li} The amount of recorded local
purchases (goods and services)
represented as a percentage
of of the total expenditures;

{iv) A comprehensive description
of the procedures adopted to
source and purchase local
goods and services; and

(v} A comprehensive variation
analysis between the actual
and budgeted local purchases.

(b) The Local Procurament Statement
shall be submitted to the
Petraleum Administration not later
than ninety {90) Calendar days after
the end of each year.

7. Language and revision of the
Accounting and Financial Procedure

This Accounting and Financial Procedure has
haen made in Arabic and English, However, in
case of conflict the Arabic orlginal shall
pravail,
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The provisions of this Accounting and
Financiat Procedure may be amended only in
accordance with Article 33 of the EPA,
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8. Conflict with the EPA A BN s sl A
In the event of any conflict between the
provisions of this Accounting and Financial
Procedure and the EPA main document, the

provisions of the EPA main document shall
prevail.
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SCHEDULE 1 -~ FORIMV OF CERTIFICATE OF
RECOVERABLE COSTS

To be presented on the stationary of the
Ministry of Energy and Water of the
Republic of Lebanon]

[Fatel

[The Company] (the “"Company”)

1. On [insert date], [insert the legal
name of the bank] provided a
guarantee in favour of the Republic
of Lebanon in respect of certain
obligations of the Company (the
“Wark Commitment Guarantee™}.

2. De™'tions set forth in the Work
Conunitment Guarantee and the
Exploration and Production
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Agreement dated [insert date]
between, inter alia, the Company
and the Republic of Lebanon, shall
apply to this Certificate, unless
otherwise stipulated or the context
otherwise requires.

. The State hereby certifies that

[wnena] United States Dollars
{UsS$ [......]) of Recoverable Costs
incurred by the Company in
fulfilment of the Minimum Work
Commitment during [Insert
calendar year] may be applied to
reduce the Guaranteed Amount.

. The State acknowledges and agrees

that the Guarantead Amount set
forth in the Work Commitment
Guarantee shall be reduced by an
amount equal to the amount
specified in paragraph 3 above.

IN  WITNESS  WHEREQF, the
undersigned being duly authorised
to execute this certificate on behalf
oi the Republic of Lebanon has
signed this certificate as of the date
first herein above stated.

Signed
The Republic of Lebanon
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Lebanese Ministry of Energy and Water

Petroleum Administration

SECOND LICENSING ROUND FOR HYDROCARBON EXPLORATION
WITHIN THE OFFSHORE OF THE LEBANESE JURISDICTION

Tender Protocol

For the Pre-Qualification of Applicants
And the

Award of Exploration and Production Agreements

Beirut, Lebanon
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(“Tender Protocol”) related to the Second
Exploration and Production Licensing Round
within the Lebanese Offshore (the “Second
Offshore Licensing Round” or the “Licensing
Round”} is the award to pre-qualified companies
of Petroleum Rights to conduct Petraleum
Activities as defined in Article 1 of the Law No
132/2010 (Offshore Petroleum Resources Law)
in designated blocks of the Lebanese offshore
through an Exploration and Production
Agreement ("EPA”).

This Tender Protocol for the Pre-Qualification of
Applicants and the Award of Exploration and
Production Agreements (this “Tender Protocol”)

YV
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describes the procedures by which companias
interested in applying for the award of a
Petroleum Right {each, an “Individual Company”)
may pre-qualify and participate in this Licensing
Round.

1.2.  The Lebanese offshore has been divided
into 10 blocks (Block 1 to Block 10) with
determined coordinates of latitude and
longitude pursuant to Decree No. 42/2017 {the
division of maritime waters subject to the
jurisdiction of the Lebanese State into areas in
the form of blocks) (each, a “Block”). In 2017,
following the successful conclusion of the First
Offshore Licensing Round, Petroleum Rights in
the form of EPAs were awarded for Blocks Nos. 4
and 9. The Minister of Energy and Water, in
consultation with the Petroleum Administration,
will announce the Blocks to be offered in this
Licensing Round in the Official Gazette and on
the website of the Petroleum Administration as
provided in Article 2.2.

1.3.  Asdescribed more fully in Articte 7 of this
Tender Protocol, 10 participate in this Licensing
Round, Individual Companies must join together
in consortiums of at least three Individual
Companies (each such consoertium, an
“Applicant”} and submit an application {the
“Licensing Round Application™) consisting of the
following:

1.3.1. Pre-Qualification Apnlication,
which shall include:
o Separate pre-gualification

materials in respect of each
Individual Company forming
part of the Applicant, each in
the forms provided at
Schedules A, B, C and D to
Exhibit 3D; and

o Administrative Materials,
consisting of the wvarious
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administrative documents and
materials specified in
Article 5.7,

1.3.2. EPA Application, which shall
include:
o A Bid Bond in the form

prov|ded at Exhibit 4; and

o Applicant's
consisting of:

Proposal,

u A Technical Proposal in the
form provided at Exhibit 5,
including a Technical Report
prepared in accordance with
the guidelines in Exhibit &;
and

« A Commercial Proposal in
the form provided at Exhibit
7.

Applicants may apply for the award of an EPA to
conduct Petroleum Activities in one (1) or more
Blocks, but must submit a separate Licensing
Round Application for each Block.

14,  Upon receipt of the Licensing Round
Applications, the Petroleum Administration will
review and evaluate the Pre-Qualification
Applications and  will communicate its
recommendation to the Minister, who will
announce the results of the pre-guallfication
process by notice published in the Official
Gazette and on the webslite of the Petroleum
Administration. If an Applicant includes one or
maore Individual Companies that are not pre-
qualified, the Applicant’s EPA Application will be
returned unopened and the Minister will
communicate to such Individual Companies in
writing the reasons they were not pre-qualified.
Only Applicants consisting of Individual
Companies that are each pre-qualified will have
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their EPA Applications reviewed and evaluated
by the Petroleum Administration.

1.5.  Applicants selected as the winning
Applicant in respect of a given Block will be
required to enter into an EPA identical in all
material respects to the Model EPA attached
hereto as Exhibit 1, as the same may be amended
prior to the deadline for submission of Licensing
Round Applications {the “Model EPA”), updated
to incorporate the relevant terms of the
Applicant’s Technical Propasal and Commercial
Proposal, including any revisions thereto agreed
between the Minister and the Applicant and
approved by the Council of Ministers.

2. Announcement of the Licensing Round

2.1 The opening of the process for receiving
Licensing Round Applications by the Petroleum
Administration shall be announced by notice
published in the Official Gazette and in local and
international media as well as on websites as
shall be determined by the Minister based on the
opinion of the Petreleum Administration,

2.2 The announcement shall include the
Blocks on offer, the date, place and method of
receiving Licensing Round Applications, the
deadline for submitting Licensing Round
Applications {the “Closing Date”}, the date on
which the pre-qualified Applicants will be
announced, and the date on which the winning
Applicants will be announced.

3, Definitions

31 Capitalized terms not defined in this
Tender Protocol shall have the respective
meanings they have in the Offshore Patroleum
Resources Law No. 132/2010 {the "OPRL"), the
Petroleum Activities Regulations Decree No.
10289/2013 {the “PAR"} and the Moadel EPA
attached hereto as Exhibit 1.
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3.2 Whenever used in this Tender Protocol, & <)y Lail 4l cilallheadl o & 1, Y

the following terms shall have the meanings
provided below:

“Ultimate Parent Company” means, in refation
to a group of Affiliated Companies, the company
within such group that is not itself subject to
Control by any ¢ther company.

“Affiliate” or “Affiliated Company” means, with
respect to a specified company, a company that
directly or indirectly Controls or is Controlled by,
or is under common Control with, such specified
company.

“Control” means, with respect to a company, the
ownership of a majority of the voting capital of
such company or the power to appoint a
majority of the board of directors or similar
management body of such company.

“Minister” means the Minister of Energy and
Water.

“Petroleum  Administration” means the

Lebanese Petroleum Administration.

“Pre-Assessed Operator” means an Individual
Company that was pre-qualified as a Right
Holder- Operator and awarded an exclusive
Petroleum Right through an EPA in a3 prior
Licensing Round.

“Pre-Assessed  Non-Operator” means an
Individual Company that was pre-qualified as a
Right Holder- Non-Operator and awarded an
exciusive Petroleum Right through an EPA in a
prior Licensing Round.

“Retrieval Fee” means a fee in the amount of
US$50,000 (Fifty Thousand United States dollars)
payable to the Lebanese Treasury - Ministry of
finance as specified in Article 26 of the PAR.

“First Ranking Applicant” means the Applicant
that has obtained the highest Global Mark based
on the evaluation of its Proposal (Technical and
Commercial) in a given Block.
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“provisional Winner” means the Applicant that
the Minister recommends to the Council of
Ministers to sign an Exploration and Production
Agreement with, based on the results of the
conclusion of the Tender.

4, Submission of Licensing Round Applications
/ Timetable

41 Below is the indicative timetable for the
Licensing Round following the publication of this
Tender Protocol:
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* Evaluation of the Pre- | Upto four
Qualification Applications and | (4) weeks
announcement of the pre- after
gualification results.

* Evaluation of  the EPA | Up toseven
Applications and announcement (7) weeks
of the bid results after

» Signature of Exploration and Wp te four
Produttion Agreements. {4) months

after

The Minister will communicate any changes to
the indicative timatable above.

42 The Petroleum Administration has made
or will make available to Individual Companies
the data described in Exhibit 2. The data
described in Schedule A of Exhibit 2 can be
accessed free of charge at:

http://www.lpa.gov.|b/geopackages.php.

The data described in Schedule B of Exhibit 2 will
be provided to Individual Companies by the
Petroleum Administration upen receipt of the
Retrieval Fee. The data described in Schedule C
of Exhibit 2 {the enhanced data package) will be
available to Individual Companies desiring to
obtain it from the data providers for a fee of
US$50,000 {fifty thousand United States dollars),
This fee is in addition to the Retrieval Fee
described in Article 11.

4.3 The Minister, upon the recommendation
of the Petroleum Administration and with the
approval of the Council of Ministers, may annul
all or part of the Licensing Round at any time
without any liability incurred by the Lebanese
Republic towards any Applicant, Individual
Company or any other person. In particular, this
would apply in situations where, as a result of the
number and/or quality of Applications submitted
for a certain Block or due to other compelling
circumstances, the Minister in consultation with
the Petroleum Administration determines that
the objectives of the Licensing Round have not
been or could not be adequately served.
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5. Pre-Qualiflcation Applicatlon Requirements

Pre-Quualification Materials for Each Individual
Company

5.1 Each Applicant must submit a Pre-
Qualification Application that contains separate
pre-gualification materials in respect of each

Individual Company forming part of the
Applicant,
52 To perticipate in the Licensing Round,

each {ndividual Company must satisfy the pre-
qualification  requirements  applicable o
companies desiring to participate in this
Licensing Round as a Right Holder-Operator or
Right Holder-Non Operator, respectively, as
described in Article 7.2 of this Tender Protocol.
Each Individual Company must be a joint stock
company whose abject allows the carrying out of
Petroleum Activities as defined in Article 1 of the
OPRL. Individual Companies incorporated
outside the Lebanese Repukiic in countries
which jurisdictions are fully transparent to
lebanese authorities are deemed 1o be
equivalent to joint stock companies provided
that the articles of association of such companies
prove that the company possesses the following
legal criteria:
5.2.1 The capital of the company shall
be divided into shares.
The shareholders liahility is
limited to the percentage of their
participation in the company.
The shares of the company shall
be subject to assignment or
transfer to third parties, without
the shareholders having a
preempiive right to acquire those
shares.
The company shall be managed by
a board of directors or an
equivalent body.

5.2.2

5.2.3

5.2.4

5.3 Individual Companies seeking pre-
guaiification that belong to a group of Affiliates
shall present the evidence that the company
seaking pre-gualification is the Parent Company
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of such group of Affiliates or is in compliance
with the applicable pre-qualification criteria
either directly or indirectly through the
credentials of Affiliates under its control, Pre-
qualification determinations apply solely to the
Individual Company seeking pre-qualification,
and do not extend to its Parent Company or
Affillates.

5.4 Individuat Companies that are Pre-
Assessed Operators or Pre-Assessed MNon-
Operators may apply for pre-qualification in this
Licensing Round in the same capacity as
previously pre-gualified by submitting the
following pre-qualification materials:

¢ The documents set forth at paragraphs 5
and 7 of Schedule A 1o Exhibit 3D of this
Tender Protocol, updated from those
submitted in the latest pre-qualification
round in which the Right Holder
participated; and

e The documents required by paragraphs
1 and 2(j) through 2{v) of Schedule B to
Exhibit 3D of this Tender Protocol,
updated from those submitted in the
fatest pre-qualification round for the
Lebanese offshore in which the Right
Holder participated.

tn addition, Pre-Assessed Operators may apply to
pre-qualify as a Right Holder-Non-Operator in
this Licensing Round by submitting the
documents specified in this Article,

5.5 The provisions of Article 5.4 do not apply
to Right Holders operating in the Lebanese
Offshore that were not themselves pre-gualified
in a prior Licensing Round. In the event that such
companies desire to pre-gqualify for participation
in thls Licensing Round, they must submit the full
scope of pre-qualification materials set forth at
Schedules A, B, C and D to Exhibit 3D of this
Tender Protocol. Similarly, a Pre-Assessed Non-
Operator seeking to pre-qualify as a Right
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Holder-Operator in this Licensing Round must
submit the full scope of pre-qualification
materials set forth at Schedules A, B, Cand D to
Exhibit 3D of this Tender Protocol.

5.6 If an Individual Company is submitting
pre-qualification materials in connection with
separate Licensing Round Applications for
different Blocks, only one set of the pre-
qualification materials described in Schedules A,
B, C and D to Exhibit 30 must be provided in
accordance with the notarization, authentication
and Formalization requirements set forth at
Articles 9.6 and 9.7. Accordingly, where the
Individual Company's pre-qualification materials
are included in multiple Pre-Qualification
Applications, the Individuai Company may
submit copies of such materials only, together
with a document instructing the Petroleum
Administration that the original, notarized,
authenticated and Formalized materials are
included in a separate Pre-Qualification
Application, and identifying the Applicant and
Block in respect of which such Pre-Qualification
Application was submit,

Administrative Materials

5.7 In addition to pre-qualification materials
in respect of each Individual Company
comprising an Applicant, an Applicant's Pre-
Qualification Application must include the
following documentation {ccliectively, the
"Administrative Materials"):

+ The Application Form set forth at Exhibit
3A indicating the Individual Company
nominated to be the Operator {the
“Designated  Operator®) and  the
participating interest of each Individual
Company comprising the Applicant ;

* A separate Power of Attorney of
Authorized Representative ("POA"} set
forth at Exhibit 3C signed by each
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Individual
Applicant;

Company comprising the

= Evidence demonstrating that the person
signing the POA on behalf of the
individual Company is authorized to do
50;

+ A copy of any cooperation agreements
entered into between the Individual
Companies comprising the Applicant
concerning participation in this Licensing
Round or the conduct of Petroleum
Activities following the award of an EPA;

» Proof of payment of the Retrieval Fee;

s Proof of payment of the purchase price
of the license to all the 3D multi-client
seismic data for the Block that is the
subject of the Licensing Round
Application (the “3D License Purchase
Price”);

& Proof of payment of the purchase price
of any other geophysical surveys other
than the 20 and 3D seismic surveys
required to be purchased in respect of
the Block that is the subject of the
Licensing Round Application (the “Other
Geophysical Surveys License Purchase
Price ”); and

s A parent company guarantee, |f
applicable {see Article 19.1),

58 By signing the Application Form, the
Designated Operator indicates that it accepts
such nomination, and that each other individual
Company constituting the Applicant has
appointed the Deasignated Operator to act in
such capacity and be responsible for all matters
vis-3-vis the Minister and the Petroleum
Administration for the purpose of the Applicant’s
participation in  this Licensing Round.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the appointment
of the Designated Operator as Operator under
the EPA shall remain subject to the approval of
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the Council of Ministers at the time of awarding
an £PA based upon a proposal by the Minister
following consultation with the Petroleum
Administration in accordance with Article 20-2 of
the OPRL.

5% In allocating participating interests,
Applicants should note that the Model EPA
provides that:
(i} the Operator shall hold a
minimum thirty five percent
(35%) participating interest and
that
each other participating Right
Holder shall hoid a minimum ten
percent (10%) participating
interast,
5.10 Each Individual Company comprising the
Applicant must sign a separate POA, but the
same person must be appointed 1o act as
Authorized Representative by each Individual
Company. The Authorized Representative must
be a natural person residing in the Republic of
Lebanon or such other jurisdiction as the
Minister may approve,

{i}

511 If a cooperation agreement has been
signed between the Individual Companies
comprising the Applicant, the copy provided
must  be certified by the Authorized
Representative appointed by the Individual
Companies pursuant to their individual POAs.

512 For the avoidance of doubt, one
Retrieval Fee, one 3D License Purchase Price
and/or Other Geophysical Surveys License
Purchase Price per Block are due. In the event
where more than one Individual Company
comprising an Applicant has paid the Retrieval
Fee and/or the 3D License Purchase Price and/or
Other Geophysical Surveys License Purchase
Price, the amounts paid will not be refunded, but
the payment of a Retrieval Fee may instead be
used to bid for additional Blocks.
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6. Pre-Qualification Questions and Requests

for Clarification / Preliminary Evaluations

6.1 Individual Companies may submit to the
Petroleum  Administration  quastions and
requests for clarification regarding the Licensing
Round, including the  pre-qualification
requirements generally or a¢ applied to the
patticular circumstances of the Individual
Company. Individual Companies may also
request a preliminary evaluation of whether the
Individual Company satisfies one or more of the
pre-qualification requirements. Al such
questions and requests may be submitted to the
Petroleurn  Administration by e-mail to

ole2@lpa.gov.lb up until Two (2) weeks prior to
the Closing Date.

6.2 The Petroleum Administration witl
publish written responses to questions and
requests for clarification via the Petroleum
Administration website at www.lpa.gov.lb. The
Petroleum Administration may edit questions
and responses for clarity, 10 protect confidential
information, or to <ombine duplicative
questions.  Individual Companies that have
joined togather as an Applicant are requested to
aggregate their questions in order 10 minimize
the number of submissions by any given
Applicant.

6.3 While the Petroleum Administration
intends to answer all reasonable questions
submitted in a timely manner, it is under no
obligation to do so. Any answers given by the
Patroleum Administration shall be deemed to be
unofficial guidance.

Preliminary E valuations

6.4 if an Individual Company requests a
preliminary evaluation of whether it satisfies one
or more of the pre-qualification requirements, it
may provide 10 the Petroleum Administration
such data, information and documents as may
assist the Petroleum Administration to perform
the requested evaluation. The Petroleum
Administration may request such additional
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data, information and documents as it deems
necessary to perform the requested evaluation,
and shall provide any such evaluation directly to
the requesting individual Company.

6.5 Any preliminary evaluation provided by
the Petroleum Administration shall be
considered non-binding, and shall be without
prejudice to the right of the Petroleum
Administration to reach a  contrary
determination at any time, For the avoidance of
doubt, the Petroleum Administration resetves
the right, in its sole discretion, to withdraw,
modify, or amend any preliminary evaluation
provided to an Individual Company, and to reject
any Pre-Qualification Application as insufficient
or not compliant with the applicable pre-
qualification requirements in any material
respect, without any lishility to an Applicant,
Individual Company or any other party.

7. Conditions for Participation

Pre-Qualification

7.1 In order to participate In this Licensing
Round, an Applicant must consist of three (3) or
more Individual Companies, including one (1)
Individual Company that satisfies the pre-
qualification criteria applicable to a Right Holder-
Operator and no fewer than two (2) other
Individual Companies, each of which satisfies the
pre-gualification criteria applicable to a Right

Holder-Operator or a Right Holder-Non-
Operator.
7.2 The pre-qualification criteria are defined

on the basis of legal, financial, technical and
QHSE requirements, in accordance with the
following Exhibits:

a, Legal criteria and relevant data and
documents, as set forth in Schedule
A to Exhibit 3D hereto,

b. Financial criteria and relevant data

and documents, as set forth In
Schedule B to Exhibit 30 hereto,
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C. Technical criteria and relevant data
and documents, as set forth in
Schedule C o Exhibit 30 hereto.

Quality, HMealth, Safety and
Environment (“QHSE”) criteria, and
relevant data and documents as set
forth in Schedule D to Exhibit 3D
hereto.

7.3 The Petroleum Administration shall
review and evaluate the Pre-Qualification
Applications and ensure that the pre-
qualification information and documentation
provided by the Applicants are in accordance
with the criteria set forth in the Schedules 0
Exhibit 3D referenced in Article 7.2.

7.4 The Petroleum Administration may
eliminate from the Licensing Round any
Applicant’s whose Pre-Qualification Application
is lacking information, is incomplete or is missing
any required documentation.

7.5 The Petroleum Administration reserves
the right to request that additional data,
information, documentation and/or clarification
be provided by the Applicant to assess its
compliance with the applicable pre-qualification
criteria,

7.6 In the event a required document may
not be produced under the applicable laws in an
Individual Company’s country of incorporation
or where the Applicant is unable to provide a
document without incurring prohibitive efforts
or costs, the Petroleum Administration may
authorize the Applicant to provide alternative
documentation or information. The Petroleum
Administration reserves the right to eliminate
fram the Licensing Round any Applicant that fails
to provide such alternative documentation or
information,

7.7 The Petroleum Administration shall
eliminate from the Licensing Round any
Applicant that includes an ind’ 4dual Company
which fails to meet all applicable pre-
qualification criteria set forth in the Schedules to
Exhibit 3D referenced in Article 7.2.
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7.8 An Individual Company may be part of
different Applicants bidding for different Blocks.
However, if an Individual Company is part of an
Applicant for any given Block, neither it nor any
of its Affiliates may be part of ancther Appticant
bidding for the same Block. No Individual
Company may join any of its Affiliates within the
same Applicant.

7.9 Applicants are only allowed to bid for
any or ali opened Blocks, and any given Applicant
or Operator may only be awarded a maximum of
two {2) blocks in the Second Offshoare Licensing
Round.

Pre-Qualification Results

7.0 The Petroleum Administration shall
endeavor to decide upon the Pre-qualification
Applications within Three (3) weeks following
the deadline for submission of Licensing Round
Applications. The Minister may, upon 2a
recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration, decide to extend such period by
an additiona! One (1) week. Following the
issuance of its decision regarding the Pre-
Qualification  Applications, the Petroleum
Administration  shall  communicate  its
recommendations to the Minister regarding the
list of pre-gualified Applicants and their
respective Individual Companies as well as the
list of Applicants and their respective individual
Companies that were not pre-qualified. If an
Applicant includes one or more Individual
Companies that were not pre-gualified, the
Applicant’s EPA Application will be returned
unopened and the Minister will communicate to
such Individual Companies in writing the reasons
they were not pre-quallfied.

7.11  The Minister will announce the pre-
gualification results by a decision published in
the Official Gazette and on the website of the
petroleum  Administration. Only Applicants
consisting of Individual Companies that are each
pre-qualified will be entitled to continue
participating in the Licensing Round and have
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their EPA Applications reviewed and evaluated
by the Petroleum Administration.

8. EPA Application Requirements
8.1 Applicants that have been pre-gualified

by the Minister will proceed to have their EPA
Applications reviewed and evaluated by the
Petroieum Administration. Each EPA Application
shali include a Bid Bond, a Technical Preposal
and a Commercial Proposal.

Bid Bond

8.2 In order to guarantee the winning
Applicant’s obligation to sign the EPA for the
relevant Block(s), each Applicant must present a
Bid Bond in favor of the Ministry for each Block
for which the Applicant submits a Licensing
Round Application. Each Bid Bond will be in the
amount of 1$$5,000,000 {Five million United
States Dollars} or €5,000,000 (Five million Euros).
The form of Bid Bond is included as Exhibit 4 to
this Tender Protocol and must be dalivered with
the EPA Application as specified in Exhibit 3A.
Alternative forms of Bid Bond {if proposed by the
relevant issuing bank or financial institution) may
be delivered but will only be accepted if such Bid
Bond has been approved by the Minister, based
on the recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration, prior to submission of the
Licensing Round Application and provides for full
and unconditional payment to the Ministry of
Energy and Water In circumstances identical to
those in¢luded in the form of Bid Bond inchided
as Exhibit 4. The Minister shall have full
discretion to decide whether to accept or reject
an alternative form of Bid Bond. Proposed
alternative forms must be submitted to the
Petroleum  Administration according to the
timetable in Article 4.1 of this Tender Protocol in
order to be considered.

83 Bid Bonds will take the form of Letters of
Credit issued by a bank or financial institution,
which are rated “A” or better in the publications
of Standard & Poor's Rating Group or the
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equivalent ratings of Fitch Ratings or of Moody's
Investors Service, or issued by Alpha rated
Lebanese banks.

8.4 Within Two (2} weeks following Council
of Ministers approval of the State entering into
an EPA with the winning Applicant for a given
Block, the Bid Bond of any other Applicant for
that Block will be returned, along with all other
documentation necessary for its cancellation.

85 The Minister may draw on the Bid Bond
presented by a winning Applicant in the
following circumstances:

a. The winning Applicant does not sign
the EPA and deliver it to the Minister
of Energy and Water within the
duration defined in Article 17.4 of
this Tender Protocol;

b. The  fully  executed Work
Commitment Guarantee for the first
Exploration Period is not delivered to
the Minister within the duration
described in Article 17.4 of this
Tender Protocol; or

C The fully executed Parent Company
Guarantee(s) (if any), required by
the Model EPA, are not delivered to
the Minister within the duration
described in Article 17.4 of this
Tender Protocal {to the extent they
have not been provided at the time
of submission of the Licensing Round
Application).

If none of the foregoing events occur, the Bid
Bond will be returned to the winning Applicant,
along with the documentation necessary for its
cancellation within two weeks following the date
on which the documents set forth above are
delivered to the Minister (provided they are
delivered in a timely manner}.
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Technical and the Commercial Proposal

8.6 The EPA Application shall include both a
Technical Proposal and a Commercial Propasal in
the forms provided respectively in Exhibits 5 and
7 of this Tender Protocol.

8.7 The Technical Proposal shall provide the
proposed Minimum Work Commitment broken
down into the items specified and for each
Exploration Period, together with the other
information specified in Exhibit 5. The Technical
Proposal shall also include indicative United
States Dollar amounts (the “Indicative Minimum
Work Commitment Amounts”) the aggregate of
which will be set forth in Article 8.2 and Article
9.1 of the EPA (with respect to the first
Exploration Period) and in Article 8.3 and 9.2 of
the EPA (with respect to the second Exploration
Period). The Indicative Minimum Work
Commitment Amounts are meant to be the
Applicant’s good faith estimate of the cost of
carrying out the Minimum Work Commitments
for the first and second Exploration Periods,

8.8 The Commercial Proposal shall provide
the commercial terms open to bid specified in
Exhibit 7 of this Tender Protocol.

Minimum Requirements

8.9 Considering the significant quantity of
available 20 and 3D seismic coverage of the
Blocks offered in this Licensing Round, it is
required that the Minimum Work
Commitment to be proposed by an Applicant
in its Technical Proposal shall include at least
One (1) Exploration Well {All Exploration
Wells shall penetrate the SHS Horizon as
defined in Exhibit & of this Tender Pretocol}
for each exploration period as illustrated in
the following:
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with the above requirements shall not be
considered for evaluation by the Petroleum
Administration.

9. Instructions to Applicants

Submission of Licensing Round Applications

9.1 Licensing Round Applications shall be
submitted to the Petroleum Administration by
the Authorized Representative of the Applicant
{(who shall be the legal representative for
purposes of Article 7 of the PAR) in accordance
with the Application Form set forth in Exhibit 3A
of this Tender Protocol, and must include both a
Pre-Qualification Application and an EPA
Application, including the required documents
and information described in Articles 8 and 8 of
this Tender Protocol, respectively. The
Authorized Representative must be a natural
person residing in the Republic of Lebanon or
such other place as approved by the Minister of
Energy and Water following the consultation of
the Petroleum Administration. For this purpose,
the Applicant should request the approval of the
Minister of any jurisdiction of residence that is
not Lebanon in advance of the deadline for the
submission of a Licensing Round Application as
specified in the indicative timetable in Article 4.1
of this Tender Protocol.
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9.2 The requirements of this Tender
Protocel notwithstanding, Pre-Qualification
Applications may also be submitted in
accordance with the procedures stipulated in the
law no. 81 dated 10/10/2018 {(Electronic
Transactions and Personal Data} or other
applicable laws in the event the Minister so
decides upon recommendation of the

Petroleum Administration.

9.3 Licensing Round Applications must be
submitted by hand hy the Authorized
Representative in a package sealed with wax,
addressed to the Minister. The Authorized
Person shall also submit with the Licensing
Round Application a separate sealed envelope
containing copies of the POA and documentation
evidencing the identity of the Authorized
Representative {e.g. passport or national identity
card}.

S.4 Applicants must include within the
Licensing Round Application Two (2) separate
sealed packages, the first containing the Pre-
Qualification Application and the second
containing the EPA Application. The Licensing
Round Application and the Pre-Qualification
Application and EPA Application contained
therein must each be clearly labeled 1o indicate
the Block which is the subject of the Licensing
Round Application, but should not identify the
Applicant or the Individual Companies
comprising the Applicant.

Submission Requirements for Pre-Qualification
Applications

9.5 The data, information and documents
provided by the Applicant must all be in Arabic or
English or accompanied by a transiation In
English in case it was not possible to translate
them into Arabic.

9.6 The data, information and documents
provided by the Applicant must be notarized by
a notary public in the country of origin and must
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be consularized by the consulate with
jurisdiction over the place of notarization and
authenticated by the Ministry of Foreign Affairs
and Emigrants, in each case as specified in the
applicable Exhibits, and should be translated into
Arabic or English in case it was not possible to
transiate them into Arabic,

9.7 The POA, the evidence of authority to
issue the POA described in Exhibit 3A and certain
other documents specified elsewhere In this
Tender Protocol must be Formalized. A
document I3 deemed “Formalized” in the
following circumstances: (i) if the document is
issued in Lebanon, it is notarized, and (ii) if it is
issued outside of Lebanon, it must ba notarized
by a notary public in the country of crigin,
consularized by the consulate with jurisdiction
over the place of notarization, and authenticated
by the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Emigrants.
Applicants should note that Formalization will
require them to translate any non-Arabic
language documents into Arabic in one of the
two following manners: (i) have the documents
translated into Arabic in the country of origin,
consularized at the relevant Lehanese consulate,
and then authenticated at the Ministry of
Foreign Affairs and Emigrants in Lebanon; or (ii)
as advised by the Lebanese consulate in certain
jurisdictions, have the documents in the foreign
language consularized at the Lebanese consulate
in such jurisdiction, translated into Arabic by a
certified translator in Lebanon, notarized by a
public notary in Lebanon, authenticated by the
Ministry of Justice, and finally authenticated by
the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Emigrants,
Applicants are advised to contact the Lebanese
consulate in their jurisdiction as to the
translation requirements applicable to the
consularization of documents.

o8 The Applicant may submit the original
data, information and documents specified at
Schedule A of Exhibit 3D with the Pre-
Qualification Application or copies of such data,
information and documents provided to show
the original data and documents upon
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submission of the Pre-Qualification Application
and prior to their Formalization, provided it
submits the Formalized data, information and
documents within Two {2) weeks following the
Closing Date. No such Farmalization requirement
shall apply in the circumstances described in
Article 5.7. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in all
cases the POA set forth in Exhibit 3C of this
Tender Protocol shali be Formalized when
submitting the Pre-Quazlification Application. If
the Applicant falls to submit the required
Formalized data, information and documents
within Two (2} weeks following the Closing Date,
the Applicant’s Pre-Qualification Application will
be rejected and accordingly the Applicant’s
Licensing Round Application will be eliminated.

9.9 In accordance with Article 5.7 above,
each Pre-Qualification Application must include
evidence of payment of the Retrieval Fee and the
3D License Purchase Price {in the case of the
Retrieval Fee, in the form of the receipt to be
issued by the Petroleum Administration).

Submission Requirements for EPA Applications

9.10 EPA Applications must comply with the
submission requirements described above for
Pre-Qualification Appiications in Articles 9.3
through 9.6, as the same may be appliad to the
data, information and documents required to be
included in the EPA Application.

Additional Requirements for Licensing Round
Applications

9.11  Applicants undertake to inform the
Petroleum Administration promptly of any
material changes occurring after the date of the
Licensing Round Application with respect to the
information disclosed therein.

89.12 The checklist of documents submitted
included in Exhibit 38 of this Tender Protocol
contain the applicable requirements for
Formalization of documents and translation, All
Hocuments are to be submitted in hard copy and

iy ol A 2 of Lo (LBl s
Ligle oliaadl chlaiiaaadl g e glaadt g L)
g el g8 il il e s 1 Jla
RS EE O T S FPRR R T R (=
ge 0,V salall B lgde s aidl YL
aall Llﬂﬁjﬂiﬁ_ugﬁ ca)SﬁCg..l_mLAB‘.c.'lJ.n
Q.a MI&&H]&&@&D@M\
[ B YY ‘aJ.:I_iS ge il ‘g.}_in wlas Ja
Pl Lo ol hainally sl

ﬂa—n ote-ui B o bady oyl c_ucHY'
o_)_g..\gs;_'.b.\_uﬁ’h_ﬁ.h.\g.\.l_m u.lla.i Lt..u_;

et M

o g el 0, salall dlsal Y 4,9
e 33 LA Gasna Jials il S iy
bl 4 md y ol 3 & iy el
i pan ) A Aailly) CPR BT Y RARN
2ot L}.\ﬂ Ubmar’y} Ca_g.u daicl a3y allall

(s

iy st QoL peio Cilulls ardli b g

LIS A prie il )05 0 Cang 9,0
Ailla bgle e smnaiall da y -3l diae 2Lt
LY Apalt 6 Gl Jualid Gl LY
Ql.ll.l‘.ﬂl(:}.: L&_mi.'t.]a_,_)_&“ g;J—uG_g Q,".
oo L gibaall Calaii el Gl gladl
Wy LIS A il

oA LAY Sty N Apndlly L) br g
il § g

15 Ll Moty callall gadia agaty 4,11
gl gy U5y Zaad A ja e il i gl
Bla L (8 i) il 850 A 8!l

A ga gde Flai) (g oa A il sheally

(o 5553l Aaaiall culaiio al) A58 ) 4,0 Y
w_hhiﬁqjhjlh_’)_uﬂ’lﬁ.\w B ,_35_\4.“
4_15_)_54.&._;.;;.1‘-.1 u.:.;g m_)dh_ll_xl.'lau_,



Yora/ it - VA sl ale — fnnsyl) sagsal 10+
in soft copy {portable document format PDF} (PDF 4 geaall 4333 Aad W daya)y iy ).&H FERP
unless otherwise indicated. e L‘}""‘Sn.r“‘-“ Yl ‘;lm '._"l NS JE e

9.13  Inthe event the required infermation or
a required document may not be produced
under the applicable laws in an Individual
Company's country of Incorporation or where an
Individual Company or an Applicant is unable to
provide a document without incurring
prohibitive efforts or costs, the Petroleum
Administration may authorize such Individual
Company or Applicant 1o provide alterpative
documentation or information. The Petroleurn
Administratlon reserves the right to disqualify an
Applicant or an Individual Company if it fails to
provide such alternative documentation or
information.

9.14  Upon submifting its Licensing Round
Application, each Applicant shall receive a
receipt signed by the Petroleum Administration
attesting that a Licensing Round Application has
been submitted and the date of such subkmission.

9.15 An Applicant, at its discretion, may
include in its Application such additional
information that it deems relevant or useful,
even if such information is not required by this
Tender Protocal.

10. Validity of Licensing Round Applications

10.1. A Licensing Round Application shall
remain valid for a period of one hundred and
eighty {180} days as fror following the deadline
for submitting applications Closing Date,

10.2. The Minister of Energy and Water may,
upon a recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration, decide to extend such period by
an additional period of time which will he further
specified by the Minister of Energy and Water
{but which in any event shall not exceed ninety
{90} days), at least fifteen {15) days prior to the
expiry of said period of validity., Any further
extensions of the validity of the Licensing Round
Application shall be subject to the approval of
the Applicant.
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11. payment of the Retrieval Fee

11.1. The payment of the Retrieval Fee shallbe
made to the Treasury Account, Ministry of
Finance of the Republic of Lebanon within the
period defined in the timetable in Article 4.1.

11.2. The Applicant maldng the payment will
be delivered a receipt upon acknowledgement of
payment.

12. Costs and expenses incurred by the

Applicant
12.1. Each Applicant shall bear all costs and

expenses incurred in the preparation and
submission of its Licensing Round Application.
Regardless of the final outcome of the Licensing
Round (including, for the aveoidance of doubt,
any cancellation of the Licensing Round}, the
Petroleum Administration will in no case be
responsible or liable for any such costs and
expenses incurred by any Applicant or Individual
Company comprising an Applicant {including,
inter afia, the Retrieval Fee and the 3D License
Purchase Price, and seismic uplift).

13. Confidentiality of  Licensing _ Round
Application
13.1. Aayinformation not in the public domain

contained in a Licensing Round Application shall
be kept confidentlal by the Petroleumn
Administration, provided, however, that
following the announcement of the winning
Applicants the Petroleum Administration may
disclose the contents of the Commercial
Proposal and the Technical Proposal {excluding
the Technical Report described at Exhibit 6,
which shall remain confidential}.
Motwithstanding the foregoing, any information
may be disclosed as is required by applicable
laws,
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24.1. The Model EPA applicable to this LSS WY1 BN il z3gaill b 1€

Licensing Round is attached to this Tender
Protocol as Exhibit 1.

14.2. The following provides a general
overview of the EPA that will be entered into
between the Lebanese State and a winning
Applicant in the Licensing Round for the right to
conduct Petroleum Activities in the selected
offshore Block. The Applicant will be required to
enter into an EPA in a form identical to the Model
EPA provided at Exhibit 1, updated to
incorporate  the relevant terms of the
Applicant’s Tachnical Proposal and Commercial
Proposal including any revisions hereto agreed
batween the Minister and the Applicant and
approved by the Council of Ministers. This
overview does not amend or modify in any way
the terms of the Model EPA.

14,3, Pursuant to the OPRL, an EPA shall be
executed by no fewer than three (3) Right
Holders, among which one shall be the Operator.
Each “Individual Company” that is awarded a
Petroleum Right may appoint a Signing Affiliate
in accordance with the requirements of
Articles 18 and 1819 of this Tender Protocol.

14.4. The EPA extends over the exploration,
appraisal, development and production up until
decommissioning and accounts for all necessary
legal provisions in relation to Petroleum
Activities. Under the EPA, the Operator is
responstble  for carrying out  day-to-day
Petrofeum Activities on behalf of the other Right
Holders, and all Right Holders are jointly and
severally Hable for their obligations.

145, The EPA authorizes the Right Holders to
explore for oil and gas during an exploration
phase of maximum Seven (7) vears, which is
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divided into two periods of Three (3] years (that
may be extended One {1} additional year in case
the Right Holder committed to drill Three (3)
wells in such period) and Two {2} years (that may
be extended Cne (1} additional year based on
Minister's decision upon the recommendation of
the Petroleum Administration), respectively.
Upon approval of the Council of Ministers, the
Exploration Phase may be extended for a period
not to exceed Ten {10} years.

14.6. Petroleum produced from the Block
covered by the EPA will be split between the
Lebanese State and the Right Holders. First, the
Right Holders must pay Royalties (in kind or in
cash) to the Lebanese State, equal to 4% of the
gas produced, and a varying percentage
(between 5% and 12%) of the oil produced.
Second, the Cost Recovery Ceiling is up to 65% of
the disposable Petroleum which is allocated to
the Right Holders to recover their costs, with the
actual percentage determined by the winning
Applicant’s Commercial Proposal. The Profit
Petroleum Is split between the State and the
Right Holders in proportions determinad by the
winning Applicant’s Commercial Proposal under
a formula pursuant to which the States’s share
increases after the Right Holders have recovered
their Costs. Right Holders are subject to the
provisions of Law No0,57/2017 (Tax Provisions
related to Petroleum Activities in accordance
with Law 132/2010).

14.7. The EPA requires the Right Holders to
conduct Petroleum Activities in accordance with
Best International Petroleum Industry Standards,
to safeguard health, safety and the environment
and remedy any accidents, and to pay cash into
a Decommissioning Fund to ensure that facilities
are properly dismantled during
Decommissioning.

The Right Holders must give preference to
Lebanese goods and services in awarding
contracts when the Lebanese companies are
qualified, and at least 80% of the employees
must be Lebanese nationals, with an exemption
when the 80% Is not reachable,
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15. Evaluation oo o ]

15.1, The Petroleum Administration may
ellminate any Licensing Round Application that is
facking information, that is incomplete or that is
missing any required documentation,

15.2. The Petroleum Administration shall
eliminate any Licensing Round Application that
does not meet the conditions set forth in this
Tender Protocol.

15.3. The Petroleum Administration shall
review and evaluate the EPA Applications on the
basis of the following:
s The Technical
including:

Proposal (Exhibit 5),

#*  Number of committed wells in
the First Exploration period;

¢ The Indicative Minimum Work
Commitment Amount for each
exploration period; and

= The Technical Reportin line with
the guidelines as per Exhibit 6

* The Commeicial Proposal (Exhibit 7)

154. During the evaluation process, the
Petroleum Administration reserves the right to
request that additionat information,
documentation and/or clarification be provided
by the Applicant, within a specified time period.

15.5. The Petroleum Administration may
retain experts and consuftants, where it deems
appropriate, subject to obtaining appropriate
confidentiality undertakings from those experts
and consultants.,

16. Evaluation Mark

The table below identifies the criteria of
the Technical Proposal and the Commercial
Proposal that the Petroleum Administration shall
evaluate, and the grading methodology. For the
avoidance of doubt, the Technical Report
submitted in line with the guidelines as per
Exhibit 6, will not be subject to a grade, but will
be taken into account during the discussions
referred to in Article 17.2 of this Tender Protocol
and in the overall evaluation of the quality of the
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submitted application. Similarly, the Indicative
Minimum Work Commitment Amounts will not
be subject to a grade, but will be taken into
account during the discussions referred to in
Article 17.2 of this Tender Protocol; and the
Minister and the Provisional Winner or the
Second Ranking Applicant {as the case may be)
will attempt to agree upon the final amounts to
be set forth in the retevant Articles of the
executed EPA during the final negotiation stage.

16.2. The Technical Proposal will contribute up
to twenty (20) marks of the overail grade. It will
be evaluated based on the number of
Exploration wells commitied in the First
Exploration period according to the following:

e The Technical Proposals with only one
committed exploration well in the first
Exploration pericd will receive Zero (0)
marks.

s The Technical Proposals with the highest
proposed number of committed
exploration wells (MNme) amongst
Applicants in the first Exploration period
in a given block (on the condition that
this number is greater than 1} will
receive Twenty (20) marks.

s Each other Technical Proposal with a
number of committed exploration
wells(N) in the first Exploration period
will receive a technical mark based on
the following pro-rata formula:

N1

Technical Mark = ——
Nmax— 1

%20

If the total number of committed exploration
wells in the first exploration period is three or
more, the first exploration period is extended
one additional year from the originaily
predefined 3-year period {see Article 7 of the
Madel EPA).
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16.3. The Commercial Proposals wili be
evaluated on the basis of the total government
take under a number of identified scenarios. The
Petroleum Administration shall evaluate the
Commercial Proposals for any given Block using
the same set of scenarios (with the same
assumptions regarding costs and production
profiles) in order to compare the Commercial
Proposals for each Block. The scenarios shall not
provide for cost and price escalation. Exhibit 8
Includes detatled Information regarding the

scenarios and the commercial evaluation
methodology.
. 16.4. The respective Technical mark and

Commercial mark will be added in order to
obtain a global mark.
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Component Criteria Marks
For N =1 {one}, Technical Mark = 0 {zero)
Otherwise,
] N-1
Number of committed Technical Mark = T ¥ 20
. exploration wells () in max
Technical
chnical (T) the First exploration | Where,
period* Neax refers to the maximum number of proposed
committed  exploration wells amongst
Applicants for a given block in the first
Exploration period.
c ol Mark TGT — TGTyin « 80
‘r =
ommercial Ma FGTo = TGT o
Where,
Discounted Average TGTmin is computed as the average discounted Total

Commercial {C)

Totat Government Take
{TGT) under predefined
scenarios

Government Take {calculated based on the
predefined scenarios) using the following
commercial parameters:

A=8=30%
CP = 65%.

TGTwo is the highest average discounted Total
Government Take {calculated based on the
predefined scenarios} among all commercial
bids received in a given block.

Global Mark {T+C}

{Maximum Mark: 100)

* All committed exploration wells shall penetrate horizon SHS defined in Exhibit 6
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16.5. The Petroleum Administration shall
prepare and submit to the Minister a report with
respect to the evaiuation of the Licensing Round
Applications by Black, including a ranking of the
Applicants on the basis of their respective global
mark as determined in accordance with
Article 16.416.4 of this Tender Protocol and
recommendations on the selection of the
Applicants to proceed. This report shall be kept
confidential by the Petroleum Administration.

16.6.  As aresult of its overall evaluation in the
context of the Block concerned and the
objectives of the Licensing Round, the Petroleum
Administration may recommend selecting no
Applicant as the winning Applicant for a Block.

17. Conclusion of the Tender

17.1. The Minister based on the
recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration shall decide, on the basis of the
report referred to in Article 16.516.5 of this
Tender Protocol, to invite the first ranking
Applicant for a given Block (the “First Ranking
Applicant”} to proceed to the negotiation stage.

17.2.  For each Block the negotiation stage will
be conducted in accordance with the following
procedure:

17.2.1. The First Ranking Applicant will be
invited to discuss its Proposal with
the Minister in cooperation with
the Petroleum Administration,

17.2.2. The First Ranking Applicant may be

requested to improve its Proposal

for any aspects that are considered
by the Minister, upon the
recommendation of the Petroleum

Administration, to be unrealistic or

sub-optimal.

17.2.3. The Minister in cooperation with

the Petroleum Administration and

the First Ranking Applicant will

discuss any potential
improvements to the First Ranking
Applicant's  Proposal and  will
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17.2.4.

17.2.5.

17.2.6.

attempt to agree upon any such
improvements.

If the Minister and the First Ranking
Applicant reach agreement on
improvements to the First Ranking
Applicant's Proposal, the Minister
will submit a report to the Council.
of Ministers containing the results
of the negotiations and a
recommendation that the State
sign an EPA with the First Ranking
Applicant as Provisional Winnet, in
accordance with Article 18-3 of the
OPRL.
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If the First Ranking Applicant and
the Minister fail to reach
agreement on improvements to the
First Ranking Applicant's Proposal
proposed by the Minister, the
second ranking Applicant for the
relevant Block {the "Second
Ranking Applicant") will be invited
by the Minister to follow the
procedure described in
Articles 17.2.1 to 17.2.3 above in
place of the First Ranking
Applicant, if the Second Ranking
Applicant's Commercial Proposat
received a higher mark than the
First Ranking Applicant's
Commercial Proposal in the
evaluation described in Article 16.3.

if the Minister and the Second
Ranking Applicant reach agreement
oh improvements to the Second
Ranking Applicant's Proposal which
render it superior to that of the
First Ranking Applicant's Proposal,
the Minister shall conduct
additional negotiations with the
First Ranking Applicant aimed at
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17.2.7.

17.2.8.

matching or exceeding the
improvements proposed 1o the
Second Ranking  Applicant's
Proposal.

if the Minister and the First Ranking
Applicant reach an agreement on
such improvements to the First
Ranking Applicant's Proposai, the

procedure described in
Article 1724 shall  apply.
Otherwise, the Minister may

submit a report to the Counci! of
Ministers containing the results of
the negotiations and a
recommendation that the State
sign an EPA with the Second
Ranking Applicant as Provisional
Winner, in accordance with Article
18-2 of the OPRL.

Without prejudice to Article 17.5
of this Tender Protocol, if the
Minister and the Second Ranking
Applicant fail to reach agreement
on improvements to the Second
Ranking Applicant's Proposal, the
Minister shall have the discretion to
recommend to the Council of
Ministers that the State sign an EPA
with the First Ranking Applicant as
Provisional Winner in the form of
the definitive Madel EPA, as
supplemented by the Commercial
Proposal and Technical Proposal

originally  submitted by the
Provisionat Winner (Including the
Indicative Minimum Work

Commitment Amounts), and by any
improvements subseqguently
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agreed by the Minister and the
Provisional Winner,

17.3. Each Licensing Round Application shall
he deemed an offer made 1o the State by the
Individual Companies comprising the relevant
Applicant, to enter into the EPA, as
supplemented by the Commercial Proposal and
Technical Proposal submitted by such Applicant
{inctuding the Indicative Minimum Work
Commitment Amounts), together with any
improvements subsequently agreed by the
Applicant and the Minister, and such offer shall
remain effective during the period described in
Articke 10.

174, At the request of the Minister, the
Provisional Winner shall deliver to the Minister,
within Thirty {30) days of such request, a fully
executed EPA together with all fully executed
Parent Company Guarantees(s} required by the
definitive Model EPA {to the extent that these
have not been provided at the time of
submission of the Licensing Round Application),
as well as the fully executed Work Commitment
Guarantee for the first Exploration Peried. Upon
receipt of such fully executed agreement and
other documents, the Minister shall submit a
report to the Council of Ministers containing the
results of the negotiations with the selected
Applicant{s) and the relevant fully executed
agreement with its annexes for approval. The
EPA shall become effective from the date of the
Council of Ministers’ approval. Following such
approval, the Minister will countersign the
agreement{s}.

17.5. The Council of Ministers reserves the
right, in its sole discretion, to decide whether or
not to award an EPA and to accept or reject any
Licensing Round Application, for any reason it
deems proper upon the suggestion of the
Minister based on the recommendation of the
Petroleum Administration.
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18, Substitution of Affiliates

18.1. Any Individual Company that is awarded
a Petroleum Right may appoint an Affiliate (the
“Signing Affiliate”) to enter into the relevant EPA,
provided the conditions set forth in this Article
are met. The Signing Affiliate meeting the
conditions set forth in this Article is deemed pre-
qualified within the meaning of the OPRL.

18.2.  Any such Signing Affiliate must be wholly
owned by and under the Control of the
appointing Individual Company.

18.3, The shares of the Signing Affiliate must
be either:

18.3.1, Directly or indirectly wholly owned
by the Individual Company. For
purposes of this Article, a company
is deemed to be directly wholly
owned by the Individuat Company if
the Individual Company owns
directly 100% of the shares of the
owned company. As an exception
1o the foregoing, if required by the
faw of the jurisdiction in which the
owned company is organized, some
of the owned company’s shares
may also be held by:

(i} the owned company’s directors
(pursuant to the legal requirement
that a director also be a
shareholder of the owned
company) and/or

(ii)such minimum number of other
shareholders as are required for the
owned company to be properly
formed under the law of its
jurisdiction of organization, in
which case the owned company
shall be deemed to be wholly

Ao jal) syl Hadad 1A

G le 50 53 A8 )l Y oK VALY
A8 iy Ly Adasf o 48 ) it of (9 i
A AL g8 5 dal G (Ml palt Adag yal
$et ada 2 (bl A3 LY g aLASE LY
Tisoun 408 30 yios 53l 038 (4 53 gl Ja gy
YoVa/ATY gl 8ol eall
(ol sl (8 Ay sl 3 sl 0 53)
dag il 85 A A palf gl 2S5 811

Bakall 038 30 )i Sl

38 gall idai sall A5 il 55 of camy VALY
g 5 ikl AS 5 2N Ji8 e JelKH AS glas
,3.)_)55.«]”&5‘)&”03&?3;5

A all 485l ag ol 5585 (f oy VALY
L) Aad gl

Sﬁll-.ui_)_,-sag ‘&ISJL.-I\SJL‘. VAT
4S80 8 gy 6 pmdilas 5
Jiat B3l o3 el 3ajanadl
Jalslly 48 shaa L3l e L iS50
A5 -t U e B pllia By puay
Al eslS Jla s
RPLARER BH I AS RPN |
Qi 1€ Ll € 5 2 g
LIPS, > .| BT PG
Ol 25 Cga A3 500 il 8
GsS3 OF )sag S glaalt 45 )M
O A8 glea 5 a1 ag (g
Jd
A8 il 3l (pala sLac| ()
ety A YL ) A el
oddme p—stae (65 o e 5360
(A8 slaalt 45 501 & Laalusa 5 )1aY)
M
Osaal—uall (e Y1 sl ()
A8l o3y s_d 45 skl o AW
i Gl oy 00 g8 LG
Al pha 84S lad A<, Y
Al 48 e Jualshly A8 las
(Al YAl 8 Jid oy 6_diall
P L S ORI P 3



TRLYATA NN (. WSVURTIRPUNE TR RYW

Yié

owned by the Individual Company,
but only if the shares held pursuant
to clauses {i} and (ii) represent the
strict minimum number of shares

required to meet the legal
requirements In  the owned
company’s jurisdiction of

organization and do not represent
more than 1% of the owned
company’s share capital

A company is deemed to be
indirectly wholly owned by the
Individual Company if ali of its
shares are owned by the Individual
Company or companies directly or
indirectly owned by the Individual
Company (subject to the limited
exception set forth in Article 18.3.1
of this Tender Protocol}; or

18.3.2. Partly owned by the Individual
Company, with all of the remaining
shares in the Signing Affiliate
owned by the state under whose
laws the Individual Company is
organized or  agencies or
instrumentalities of such State, or
companies wholly owned by such

state.

18.4. The Signing Affiliate must be a joint stock
company whose object must permit the conduct
of Petroleum Activities. The Signing Affiliate may
be incorporated in Lebanon pursuant to Article 9
of the Law No. 57/2017 (Tax Provisions related to
Petroleum Activities in accordance with Law
132/2010).1f the Signing Affiliate is incorporated
outside the Lebanese territories, the Signing
Affiliate shall be incorporated, registered and
headquartered in a jurisdiction fully transparent
to Lebanese authorities. Upon request, the
Petroleum  Administration will  determine
whether a certain jurisdiction would be
considered as a jurisdiction that is fully
transparent to Lebanese autherities.
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18.5. The Signing Affiliate must, as a condition
1o being eligible to sign the EPA, provide the
disclosures and meet the criteria set forth in
Schedule A to Exhibit 3D{except that, in lieu of
the document required by paragraph 1 of
Schedule A, the Signing Affiliate must present to
the Petroleum  Administration evidence
(whether in the form of an extract of a
commaercial register, a copy of a resolution of the
board of directors, or a legal opinion by a
reputable attorney practicing in the jurisdiction
of incorporation of the Signing Affiliate) showing
that the person it proposes to sign the EPA on its
behalf is duly authorized to bind the Signing
Affiliate). The requirements of Article 9.6
regarding  translation, notarization and
consularization apply to such documents as if
they had been submitted as part of the Pre-
Qualification Application. The evidence to be
submitted of the authority of the person signing
the EPA on behalf of the Signing Affiliate shall be
Formalized,

18.6. On or prior to the signing of the EPA by
such Signing Affiliste, the Individual Company
must issue a parent company guaraniee with
respect to the Signing Affiliate in the form
attached as an Annex E to the Model EPA.

19. Certain Conditions

Conditions related to companies relying on the
credentials of Controlling parent companies

19.1. Certain Individual Companies may be
pre-qualified by relying in part on the ¢redentials
of a parent company that Controls such
Individual Company. On or prior to the
submission of a Licensing Round Application by a
consortium  comprising  such  Individual
Company, such parent company must issue a
parent company guarantee with respect 1o the
Individual Company (or its Signing Affiliate, if itis
to appoint one pursuant to Article 18 of this
Tender Protocol) in the form attached as Annex
E to the Model EPA,
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Replacement of Guaraniees

19.2.  In the event where the obligations of an
individual Company are guaranteed by {a Parent
Company Guarantee {as described in Article 19.1
above), and such Individual Company elects to
appoint a Signing Affiliate to enter into the
Exploration and Production Agreement, the
Minister reserves the right to require that a
Parent Company Guarantee be replaced by a
guarantee in the same form but guaranteeing
the obligations of the Signing Affiliate.
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EXHIBIT 1 -) i

MOOEL EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION AGREEMENT
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EXHIBIT 2 - ¥ (ialdll

SCHEDYULE A OF EXHIBIT 2 -~ FRAMEWORK Gi5 PROJECT

_REF____| DESCRIPTION

[ Cultuire

FORMAT

1.1 Lebanon Shaded Area

ESRI-Digital

1.2 Coastline ESRI-Digital
1.3 Cauntries Names £SRI-Digital
1.4 Cities ESRI-Digital
1.5 Rivers ESRI-Digital
1.6 Lakes

ESRI-Digital

2 “|"International Boundaries - © .. .-

2.1 Lebanen Onshore Boundarles

ESRI-Digital

2.2 Lehancn Offshore Boundaries ESRI-Digital
23 Regionai International Boundaries ESRE-Digital
| Contract Areas/Blocks - S T

3.1 | Contract Areas / Blocks

~ ESR-Digital

4,1 well Coordinates

ESRI-Digital

4.2 Well Attributes {Formation Tops) Digital
4.3 Well Summary Digital
5 |-Geology (Onshore) : e
5.1 Stratlgraphlc Column pdf
5.2 Geological Cross Sections (Hyperlinked) Pdf
5.3 Stratigraphic Correlation {Hyperlinked) Pdf
5.4 Field Trip Photographs pdf

55 Geology {200,000 Scalej

ESRI-Digital

5.6 Structural Elements (Regional)

| Geophysical Surveys

ESRI-Digital

6.1 2D Seismic Surveys

ESRI-Digital

6.2 3D Seismic Surveys

ESRI-Digital

6.3 Airborne Surveys

ESRI-Digital

Ty j‘selsmic Interpretation

7.1 Regional Selsmic Prcf'les (Hyperlmked}

pdf

7.2 Seabed Horizon (Two Way Time)

ESRI-Digltal

7.3 Seabed Horizon (Depth}

ESRI-Digital

8.1 Regional Bathymetry 250m

ESRI-Digital




V14 CARTATATS i WYV RESC VRS . ET

CCREF . . o) DESCRIPTION; T <5 e 0 Do £ FORMAT - 7%
8.2 Gebco - Topography ESRI-Digital
8.3 Gebco - Global Bathymetry ESRI-Digital

8.4 Lebanon Hillshade 50m ESRI-Digital
. Presentationsa po ————— T
91 Overview pdf

9.2 Strategic Environmental Assessment {SEA) ESRI-Digital & pdf
Volumes1to 5
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EXHIBIT 2 - ¥ (ld)
SCHEDULE B OF EXHIBIT 2~ DIGITAL ATLAS GIS PROJECT

1.1 Labanon Shaded Area ESRI-Digital

1.2 Coastline ESRI-Digital
13 Countries Names _ ESRI-Digital
1.4 Cities ESRI-Digital
15 Rivers ESRI-Digital
1.6 Lakes

ESRI-Digital

~{’ Intérnational Boundaries’ c.: ¢ "

2.2 Lebanon Onshore Boundanes ESRI-Digital

2.2 Lebanon Offshore Boundaries £SRI-Digital

23 Regional International Boundarles ESRI-Digital
G g-Contract Areas | Biocks TR : :

31 | Contract Areas / 8locks ESRI-Digital

41 | WellCoordinates ESRI-Digital

4.2 Well Attributes (Formaticn Tops) Digital

4.3 Well Summarv Digital
“-5 | Geology.{Onshore)-... R S RN NOLES S 1 i S

51 Stratlgraphlc Column . pdf

5.2 Geological Cross Sections (Hyperlinked) Pdf

53 Stratigraphic Correlation from Welis {Hyperlinked) pdf

5.4 Field Trip Photographs pdf

5.5 Gaology (200,000 Scafe) ESRI-Digital

5.6 Structural Elements {Regmnal) £5Ri-Digital
6. _| Geophysical Surveys B G AR

6.1 2D Seismic Surveys ESRI-Digital

€2 3D Seismic Surveys ESRI-Digital

6.3 Alrbome Su rveys ESRI-Digital

71 Reglonal Seismic Profiles {Hyperimked} pdf

7.2 Seabed Horizon (Two Way Time) ESRI-Digital

7.3 Seabed Horizon (Depth) ESRI-Digital

7.4 Plio Quaternary TWT (10 km) ESRI-Digltal

7.5 Plio Quaternary Depth {10 km) ESRI-Digital

7.6 Base Messinian TWT (10 km) ESRi-Digital

7.7 Base iviessinian Depth (10 km) ESRI-Digital

7.8 Base Middle Miocene TWT {10k} ESRI-Digital
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| DESCRIPTION : i e ‘FORMAT .~ .

Base Middle Mlocene Depth (10km] ESRI-Digital

Base Miocene TWT (10 km) ESRI-Digital

Base Miocene Depth (10 km) ESRI-Digital
7.12 Senonian Unconformity TWT (10 km) ESRI-Digital
7.13 Senonian Unconformity Depth (10 km) ESRI-Digital
7.14 Upper Jurassic TWT (10 km) ESRI-Digital
7.15 Upper Jurassic Depth (10 km) ESRI-Digitat
81 Bouguer Gravity (Global) Digital
8.2 Free Air Gravity (Giobal) Digital
83 World Digital Magnetjc Anomaly Map (WDMAM)

Digital

"Natlonal il Spil Contlgency' :

Oil Spill Simulation Scenarlos

ESRI-Digital

9.1
9.2 Environmental Sensnwlty {ESH} Maps ESRI-Digital

: 10, | Topography and Bathymetry . v o N
1¢.1 Regional Bathymetry 250rr| ESRY-Digital
10.2 Gebco - Topography ESRI-Digital
10.3 Gebco - Global Bathymetry ESRI-Digital
10.4 Lebanon Hlllshade S0m ESRI-Digital

Presentations and Reports. BRI

11.1 Overview Presentation pdf
11.2 Strategic Environmental Assessment {SEA) ESRI-Digital & pdf

Volumes1to5
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EXHIBIT 2- Y Falall
SCHEDULE C OF EXHIBIT 2 - ENHANCED GIS PROJECT

. DESCRIPTION: x5

T FORMBT

Lebanon Shaded Area ESRI-Digital

1.2 Coastline ESRI-Digital
1.3 Countries Names ESRI-Digital
1.4 Cities ESR1-Digital
1.5 Rivers ESRI-Digital

16 Lakes ESRI-Digital
. International '

ndaries.

2.1 Lebénﬁn Onshore Boundaries . . ESRI-Digital
2.2 Lebanon Offshore Boundaries ESRI-Digital

ESRI-Digital

2.3 Regional International Boundaries
31 | Contract Areas / Blocks

ESRI-Digital

41 Weli Coordinates ESRI-Digital

4.2 Well Attributes {Formation Tops) Digital
4.3 Well Sumrary Digital
ology (Onshiore}  :.: ¥

51 Stratigraphic Column 7 pdf

5.2 Geological Cross Sections (Myperlinked) Pdf

53 Stratigraphic Correlation from Wells {Hyperlinked) ~ Pdf

5.4 Faults {200,000 Scale) ESRI-Digital
5.5 Geology (200,000 Scale} ESRI-Digital
5.6 Structural Elements (Regional) ESRI-Digital
5.7 Faults {50,000 Scale) ESRI-Digital
5.8 Geology (50,000 Scale) ESRI-Digital
59 Fietd Work Module

ESRI-Digital-pdf

6.1 2D Seismic Surveys

ESRI-Digital

6.2 3D Seismic Surveys ESRI-Digital

6.3 Airborne Surveys ESRI-Digital

6.4 Seismic Images ESRI-Digital-pdf
eismicinterpretation RS g

71 Regional Seismic Profiles (Hyperlinked) pdf

72 | Seabed Horizon {Two Way Time} ESRI-Digital

73 Seabed Horizan {Depth} ESRI-Digital

7.4 Plio Quaternary TWT (1 km) ESRI-Digital
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Upper Jurassnc Depth (1 km)

CURERS G DESCRIPFION " FORMAT
75 Pllo Quaternary Depth (1 km}) ESRI-Digital
76 Base Messinian TWT {1 km) ESRI-Digital
7.7 Base Messinian Depth {1 km} ESRI-Digital
7.8 Base Middle Miocene TWT (1 km) ESRI-Digital
79 Base Middle Miocene Depth (1 km) ESRI-Digital

7.10 Base Miocene TWT {1 km} ESRI-Digital
7.11 Base Miocene Depth (1 km) ESRI-Digital
7.12 Senonian Unconformity TWT (1 km} ESRI-Digital
7.13 Senonian Unconfarmity Depth (1 km) ESRI-Digital
7.14 Upper Jurassic TWT {1 km) ESRI-Digital
7.15

‘Glavity & Magnitic Data

ESRI-Digital

Bouguer Grawty {1 803 cm3) with SOkm Resuiual f|!ter

Digital

8.1
8.2 Bouguer Gravity {1.80g-cm3) Digital
8.3 Bouguer Gravity {2.00g-cm3) with 50km Residual filter Digital
8.4 Bouguer Gravity [2.00g-cm3) Digital
8.5 Bouguer Gravity (2.20g-cm3) with 50km Residual fitter Digital
8.6 Bouguer Gravity (2.20g-¢m3) Digital
8.7 Free Air Gravity Digital -
8.8 Magnetic Anomaly with 60km Residual filter Digital
8.9 Magnetic Anomaly RTP Digital
8.10 Magnetic Anomaly Drigital
8.11 Gravity Onshore Digital
8.12 Bougtrer Gravity (Global) Digital
8.13 Free Air Gravity (Global) Digital
World Dlgltal Magnetlc Anoma[y Map {WDMAM} Digital

Reglonal Bathymetry 250m

ESRI-Digital
9.2 Gebco - Topography ESRI-Digital
9.3 Gebco - Global Bathymetry ESRI-Digital
9.4 ESRI-Digital

Lebanon Hifishade 50m

10.1

Overview Presentation

pdf

10.2

Strategic Environmental Assessment {SEA)

Volumes 1to 5

pdf

11.1

Reference Listing

pdf
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EXHIBIT3 - T !
PRE-QUAULIFICATION APPLICATION MATERIALS

EXHIBIT 3A: APPUCATION FORM

EXHIBIT 3B: CHECKLIST OF DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED

EXHIBIT 3C: POWER OF ATTORNEY

EXHIBIT 3D: PRE-QUALIFICATION CRITERIA
SCHEDULE A — LEGAL CRITERIA AND REQUIRED DOCUMENTS AND DISCLOSURES
SCHEDULE B — FINANCIAL CRITERIA AND REQUIRED DOCUMENTS AND DISCLOSURES
SCHEDULE C - TECHNICAL CRITERIA AND REQUIRED DOCUMENTS AND DISCLOSURES
SCHEDULE D — QHSE CRITERIA AND REQUIRED DOCUMENTS AND DISCLOSURES
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EXHIBIT 3A
APPLICATION FORM
fto be provided on the Designated Operator’s letterhead)

H.E. Minister of Energy and Water

C/fo Lebanese Petroleum Administration
Lebanese Petroleum Administration

1% Floor — Marfaa 200 Building

George Akouri Street ~ Down Town
Beirut, Lebanon

Having examined the Tender Protocol for the Second Offshore Licensing Round dated [insert date] {the
“Tender Protocol”), issued pursuant to Law No. 132 dated 24/08/2010 (the Offshore Petroleum
Resources Law), with due care, and having examined the applicable legislation, the Applicant,
constituted by the individual companies set forth in the list below (the “Individual Companies”} acting
jointly and severally, hereby informs you that it wishes to submit a Licensing Round Application for a
Petroleum Right in respect of Block [insert Block number] offered pursuant to the second Licensing
Round for Hydrocarbon Exploration within the Offshore of the Lebanese Jurisdiction {the “Second
Offshore Llicensing Round”). Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meanings
provided in the Tender Protocol.

The Applicant encloses herewith, for this purpose, in duplicate hardcopies (one original and one copy)
and a soft copy, the data, documents and information required pursuant to Articles 5 and 8 of the
Tender Protocol, All documents that are not in English or Arabic are accompanied by a translation in
English.

The Applicant has also agreed to submit this Licensing Round Application and the documents attached
hereto in a sealed package delivered by hand by its Authorized Representative to the following
address:

H.E. Minister of Energy and Water

C/o Lebanese Petroteum Administration
Lebanese Petroleum Administration

1* Floor — Marfaa 200 Building

George Akouri Street ~ Down Town
Beirut — Lebanon

Tel. 00961-1-998784

Beirut = Lebanon

The Applicant represents that the pre-qualification information presented by each Individual Company
in the Pre-Qualification Application included in this Licensing Round Application is complete, true and
accurate. The Applicant represents that each Individual Company seeking pre-qualification that
belongs to a group of Affiliates has provided evidence in its Pre-Qualification Application that it is the
Parent Company of such group of Affiliates or otherwise satisfies the applicable pre-qualification
criteria either directly or indirectly through the credentials of Affiliates under its control. The Applicant
represents that each Individual Company comprising the Applicant understands that pre-qualification
determinations apply solely to the Individual Company seeking pre-qualification, and do not extend to
its Parent Company or Affiliates.
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The Applicant agrees that it is bound by this Licensing Round Application for a period of validity of one
hundred and eighty [180) days following the Closing Date, and for any additional period for which it
has been extended pursuant to the provisions of Article 10 of the Tender Protocol. This Licensing
Round Application constitutes an offer made to the State by the Individual Companies comprising the
Applicant to enter into the EPA in the form of the definitive Model EPA attached as Exhibit 1 to the
Tender Protocol, as supplemented by the Commercial Proposal and Technical Proposal included in the
Applicant’s EPA Application inciuded herein, and any improvements subsequently agreed by the
Applicant and the Minister of Energy and Water.

The Applicant hereby indicates whether any of the Individual Companies was previously awarded an
exclusive Petroleum Right in the Lebanese Offshore.

O Yes [ No
If yes:'
Identity of Individual Company:
Previous Prequalification: 1 Right Holder - Operator O Right Holder - Non-Operator
Year of Pregualification:
Previous Awari: [ Right Holder - Operator O Right Holder - Non-Operator

Year of Award: Block{s):

Seeking qualification as: O Right Holder - Operator O Right Holder - Non-Operator

[Repeat the above information in respect of each Individual Company comprising the Applicant that
was previously awarded an exclusive Petroleum Right in the Lebanese QOffshore]

Please note that this application relates to the following [Applicant to insert number} Individual
Companies constituting the Applicant:

Name of potential Right Holder - Operator
(the “Designated Operator”) '
Jurisdiction of Incorporation:
Registered address:
Participating interest: %

Name of potential Right Holder:
Jurisdiction of Incorporation:
Registered address:

Participating interest: %

Name of potential Right Holder:
Jurisdiction of Incorporation:
Registered address:

Participating interest: %

(To be repeated if there are more participating companies)
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Each Individual Company comprising the Applicant has designated the following Authorized
Representative.’ Originals of the necessary powers of attorney? are attached. Also attached is
evidence (whether in the form of an extract of a commercial register, a copy of a resolution of the
board of directors, or a legal opinion by a reputable attorney practicing in the jurisdiction of
incorporation of the Individual Company providing the refevant power of attorney) demonstrating that
the power of attorney granted by each Individual Company appointing the Autharized Representative
was signed by a person or persons duly authorized to bind such Individual Cormpany.

Represenfative’s Name:

- Position:

- Address:

- Tal:

- Fax:

- E-mail:

The Right Holder — Designated Operator hereby accepts its appointment as such. Each other Individual
Company hereby appoints the Right Holder — Designated Operator to act in such capacity and to be
responsible for all matters with the Petroleum Administration and the Minister of Energy and Water
for the purpose of this Licensing Round Application and participation in the Second Offshore Licensing
Round.

The Applicant akso hereby submits as part of its Pre-Qualification Application:
(i} proof of payment of the Retrieval Fee; [and]
(i) proof of payment of the 3D License Purchase Price{.}{;] [and
(il proof of payment of the Other Geophysical Surveys License Purchase Price.J*

The Applicant represents that it has accurately completed the enclosed checklist of documents
submitted, which contains reguirements for submission of documents in electronic form, translation
and Formalization reguirements.

The Applicant represents that:
{i) all the documents submitted as originals are suthentic;

{i)  all of the documents submitted as photocopies are true and complete copies of the
original documents;

(i)  all data and information submitted is responsive, in all material respects, to the
required disciosure and contains no material misstatements or omissions; and

1 The Authorized Representative must be a natural persen reslding in the Republic of Lebanon or such other place
as approved by the Minister following consultation with the Petroleum Administration.

2 The power of attormey presented by each Indlvidual Company should be in the form attached as Exhibit 3C to
" the Tender Protocal (as the same may be modified in accordance with the instructions provided therein},

3 Ta be Inserted if applicable
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{iv] the submitted translations are true and fair translations of the originals.

The Applicant undertakes to inform the Lebanese Petroleum Administration promptly of any material
changes occurring after the date hereof with respect to the data and information provided in the
Licensing Round Application submitted herewith,

The Applicant agrees that it wili be subject to all applicable Lebanese laws and regulations. The
Applicant acknowledges that the Lebanese Petroleum Administration may seek further data and
information from the Applicant, and that any decision to pre-qualify any Individual Company or
Applicant remains the sole prerogative of the Minister, in accordance with applicable faw. The
Applicant also acknowledges that the Minister may withdraw any pre-qualification following the
granting thereof or annul the entire process of the Second Offshore Licensing Round at any time
without incurring any liability towards any Applicant, Individual Company or any other person.

Date:

[Typed Name of Authorized Representative]

[Signature of Authorized Representative]
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EXHIBIT 3B
CHECKLIST OF DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED

PRE-QUALIFICATION APPLICATION DOCUMENTS

Ex. | Administrative Materials submission | Formalhed® [
Formae*
3A Application Form {Exhibit 34) S&H No
3C Power of Attorney of Autherized Representative (Exhibit 3C) S&H. Yes
{from each Individual Company comprising the Applicant)
NfA | Copy of any cooperation agreements between the Individual
. L . S&H No
Companies comprising the Applicant
N/A | Proof of payment of the Retrieval Fee S&H No
N/A | Proof of payment of the 30 License Purchase Price S&H No
N/A | Proof of payment of the Other Geophysical Surveys License S&H No

Purchase Price {if applicable)

NfA | Parent company guarantes (Annex E to the Model EPA)
(2pplivable  for Individual <Companies seeking pre- C8H
qualification based wholly or partly on credentials of parent
company per Article 15,1 of the Tender Protocol}

No

PRE-QUALIFICATION MATERIALS FOR [INSERT NAME OF INDIVIDUAL COMPANY]
[{DESIGNATED OPERATOR)] INON-OPERATOR]

A Exhiblt 3D - Schedule A — Legal Criteria & Required | Submission | Formslized® |/
Documents Formaet

1 Evidence of authority of persons signing Power of Attorney Yes

2 An official copy of the constituent documents {as applicable
by the jurisdiction): Certificate of Incorporation, Yes
Memorandum of Assoclaticn, Articles of Incorporatlon, ete.

3 Extract of comemercial registry showing specified information
regarding the Individual Company OR notarized, signed
statement from the company secretary or similar ¢fficer
providing such Information

Yes

4 If not submitted in 3, document from a governmental or S&H
official antity showing that the Individual Companyis in good Yes
standing in its jurisdiction of incorporation

S If not submitted in 3, document from a governmental or
official entity showing that the Indlvidual Company is not
being liguidated and i not in insolvency proceedings OR Yes
notarized, signed statement from the company secretary or
simllar officer providing such infarmation

[} Partner{s) or Shareholder(s) {more than 20%t) details. If not
ultimate parent, organization chart showing chain of Np
swhnership
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Exhibit 30 - Schedule A - Legal Crlteria & Required
Documents

Signed statement from the general counsel or similar officer
that there are no pending material fitigatlon, arbitration,
legal proceedings

Subralssion
Format*

Formakzed®

Ves

Exhibit 30 - Schedule B - Financial Criteria and Required Documents & Disclosures

Proof far meeting ellgibility criteria

Audited consolidated financial statements for the fast 3 years

Auditor's or auditors’ report(s) referencing the financiat
statements for the last 3 years

Reference from a reputable bank or financlal institution

Present and historical [prior three (3) years'} credit rating

Description of the material lines of credit, credit agreements,
publicly traded debt securitles, off-halance shest Labilities
and guarantees of third party obligations

Details of any medium-term plans andfor material
contingent liabilities

A staterment describlng any materlal changes in any of the
information set forth above, since the date as of which such
information was prepared

Any additional information regarding financial capacity

S&H

No

Exhibit 30 - Schedule € - Technical Criteria and Required Documents & Disclosures

Proof for meeting eligibility criteria

Technical data recquired

S&H

Mo

Exhlbit 3D - Schedule D - QHSE Criteria and Required Documents & Disclosures

Description of the Quality, Health, Safety and Environment
Management Systemis}

Evidence of established and implemented QHSE
Management System (s}

QHSE performance records for the previous five (5) years

Copy of CSR reports or initiatives for the past five {5) years

Experience of Operatorin environmentatly sensitive areas

L= I, B I T

Cemmitrngnt of company ta GHSE through membership and
affiliations with internationalinitlatives
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EPA APPLICATION DOCUMENTS

Ex. Submission
Format*

Bid Bond
4 Bid Bond (Exhibit 4} S&H
Proposal
5 Technical Propasal Form (Exhibit 5) SEH
6 Technical Report {inline with Exhibit 6} S&H
7 Commercial Proposal Form (Exhiblt 7) S&H
Miscellaneous
Any additionsl information that may be useful {see oM
Article .15 of the Tender Protocol)
a 5: Soft Copy {pdf or M5 Office})  H: Hard Copy
b For documents issued outside Lebanon, notarize , transiate to Arablc ar to English when it is not possile 10 translate to Arabic,
and consulariza and seal by the Ministry of Forelgn Affairs in Lebanon. For documents issued Lebanan, they shall be notarized
afly.

Notes to Applicant

1 - Applicants should include a separate checklist indicating the pre-qualification materials submitted
by each Individual Company comprising the Applicant in response to the requirements of Schedules A,
8, £ and D to Exhibit 3D

2- Document submission options:

i. Option 1:
The Applicant submits the individual Company’s documents Formalized with the Pre-
Quaiification Application,

i, Option 2:
The Applicant submits the Individual Company’s original documents (not Formalized ot
the closing date) with the Pre-Qualification Application, on a condition that the
documents shall be submitted Formalized within Two (2) weeks following the closing
date.

fit. Optlon 3:
Where the conditions described in Article 5.7 of the Tender Documents are present, the
Applicant submits copies of the Individual Compeny’s original documents (not
Formalized) together with a document instructing the Petrofeum Administration to the
Pre-Qualification Application for a seporate Block that includes the Individual
Company’s Formalized documents.

3- For any submission option selected, the individual Company’s Power of Attorney (Exhibit 3C of the
Tender Protocol) shall be submitted Formalized with the Pre-Qualification Application. Failure to submit
the Farmalized Power of Attorney with the Pre-Quallfication Application shall lead to the rejectfon of
such Application, .
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EXHIBIT 3C
POWER OF ATTORNEY OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

By the present instrument, [insert name af Individual Company] (the “Company”}, organized and
existing in accordance with the laws of [insert Individual Company’s country of incorporotion], with
registered address [Insert registered address of Individuat Companyl, through [insert name(s) of legal
representative(s) of Individual Company] who is legally authorized to bind the Company, hereby
nominates {insert name of and full title of Authorized Representative] (the “Authorized
Representative”), as its duly authorized representative empowered to represent the Company before
the Ministry of Energy and Water of the Republic of Lebanon, in connection with the Second Licensing
Round for Hydrocarbon Exploration and Production within the Offshore of the Lebanese Jurisdiction
{the “Second Offshore Licensing Round”) relating to the exploration and production of oif and natural
gas, with the power te take any and all actions and to assume any and alt obligations, in our name and
on our behalf (including in our capacity as an individual company constituting an applicant for pre-
qualification and for the award of an Exploration and Production Agreement), in respect to such
Second Offshore Licensing Round, including without limitation (i) to submit the Licensing Round
Application on behalf of any applicant of which we constitute an individual company, (i} to execute
any contracts, documents or instruments as may be necessary or useful in connection therewith, (iii}
to submit atl documents and information to be submitted by the Company in connection with the
Second Offshore Licensing Round, (iv) to receive information and/or data packages, or to authorize
third parties to receive information and/or data packages, and (v) to pay any fees required in
connection with the Second Offshore Licensing Round.

Signed by:

[insert name(s) of the person legally guthorized to bind the Individual Company with signature.)
Position:

{insert position(s} of the person legally authorized to bind the tndividual Company]

finsert location and date]

INFORMATION RELATING TO AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

{insert name and signhature of Authorized Representative]
[insert position of Authorized Representative]

[insert address of Authorized Representative]

[insert phone, fax and e-mail of Authorized Reprasentative]

SNore to Incividuef Company executing Power of Attorney [POA”}:

I-  ThePOA shall comply with the farm of Exhibit 3¢ ta the Tender Protocol, However, odditiong! provisions moy be included, Iif needed,
reflecting those provisions.

2= Al Individua! Componies comprising the Applicont must gppoint the same Authorized Representative, wha must be o natural
person residing In the Republic of Leboron or such other place as approved by the Minister follawing consultotion with the
Petroleum Administration,

3-  itis acceptable to have an expiry date on the POA,
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EXHIBIT 3D - SCHEDULE A
LEGAL CRITERIA AND REQUIRED DOCUMENTS AND DISCLOSURES

The Individual Company (whether applying to become a Right Holder-Operator and/or a Right Holder-
Non-Operator (each as defined in Article 1 of Law 132/2010 (the “Offshore Petroleum Resources Law” )}
should submit the following documents:

(1

(2}

(3}

(4)

{5)

(6)

{7}

Evidence {whether in the form of an extract of a commercial register, a copy of a
resolution of the board of directors, or a legal opinion by a reputable attorney
practicing in the jurisdiction of incorporation of the Individual Company) showing that
the Authorized Representative Power of Attorney was signed by a person or persons
duly authorized to bind the Individual Company.

An official copy of the constituent documents of the Applicant (i.e., depending on the
jurisdiction of incorporation of the Individual Company, the Certificate of
Incorporation, Memorandum of Association, Articles of Incerperation, statuts and/or
By-Laws). (The Individual Company should be aware that, pursuant to Article 15 of the
Offshore Petroleum Resources Law, Exploration and Production Agreements may only
be awarded to pre-qualified joint stock companies or the equivalent under local law.
The Individual Company’s corporate object must permit the undertaking of Petroleum
Activities as defined in Article 1 of the Offshore Petroleum Resources Law.

An extract of the commercial registry relating to the Individual Company, showing its
full name, main business address, and capital stock. Where such information is not
availeble from the commercial registry, a notarized, signed statement from the
company secretary or similar officer providing such information,

If not indicated in document {3) above, a document from a governmental or official
entity showing that the Individual Company is in good standing in its jurisdiction of
incorporation.

If not indicated in document {3} above, a document from a goveromentat or official
entity showing that the Individual Company is not being liquidated and Js not in
insolvency proceedings. Where such infermation is not available from the commercial
registry, a notarized, signed statement from the company secretary or similar officer
providing such infermation.

‘The name, nationality/jurisdiction of incorporation and address of any partner or
shareholder who, directly or Indirectly, holds twenty (20) percent or more of the voting
shares of the Individual Company or otherwlse has an interest that could constitute
control, together with the names, nationality and addresses of the officers and
directors of such partner or sharehoider. Such information should be provided to the
extent known by the Individual Company or its directors and officers after due inquiry.
Where the Individual Company is not the parent company of the group of companles
of which it is a member, a corporate organization chart showing the chain of
ownership from the parent to the Applicant. '
A notarized, signed statement from the general counsel or similar officer that there
are no pending litigation, arbitration, legal proceedings or other circumstances which
may lead to the insolvency or bankruptcy of the Individual Cempany or that could
reasonably be expected to prevent Individual Company from fulfilling its obligations
under the Exploration and Production Agreement.



YAQ EXLTATA U I WSURETC IO TP [FEVPRT

EXHIBIT 3D - SCHEDULE B
FINANCIAL CRITERIA AND REQUIRED DOCUMENTS AND DISCLOSURES

An individual Company may seek pre-gualification as a Right Holder - Operator and/or as a Right Holder
- Non-Operator by satisfying the criteria and presenting the documents and disclosures set forth below.

1 Eligibility Criteris
An Individual Company is eligible for such pre-qualification if it is able to demonstrate, to the

reasonable satisfaction of the Petroleum Administtation, that the Individual Company had, as of the
end of its most recent financial year:

{iy tnthe case of Individual Companies seeking pre-gualification as a Right Holder - Operator,
total assets of USS10 billion or more.

(i} In the case of Individual Companies seeking pre-qualification as a Right Holder - Non-
Operator, total assets of USS500 million or more.

2 Financial Data

The Individual Company {whether seeking pre-gualification as a Right Holder - Operator and/or Right
Holder - Non-Operator) should submit the data below. All financiat statements must be prepared under
International Financial Reporting Standards or other internationally recognized generally accepted
accounting principles. Companies may furnish their published annual reports filed with a stock
exchange or securities regulators, and supplement those reports with any data below that is not
contained therein.

(1) The audited consolidated financial statements for the Individual Company for the last
three (3) years, including the balance sheet, income statement, statement of changes
in shareholders” equity, cash flow statement, notes to the accounts and, where
required under local law or applicable accounting principles, the Directors’ report.

(2) The auditor's or auditors’ report(s) referencing the abovementioned financial
statements of the Individual Company, signed by an independent public accountant of
international standing and prepared in accordance with applicable auditing standards.
Akcernatively, in the case of a state-owned companies organized in a jurisdiction that
does not provide for an external audit of such companies’ accounts, and no such
external audit has been performed, the financial statements described in clause {1)
must be prepared by a certified public accountant, and should be submitted together
with a statement signed by alawyer affirming the absence of an audit requirement for
such state-owned company under the law of such jurisdiction,

(3) Reference from a reputable bank or financial institution doing business with the
individual Company.

{4) Present and historical {prior Three (3) vears} credit rating of the (ndividual Company’s
(or its parent company's) long-term unsecured debt from Standard & Poor’s Rating
Services, Moody's Investor Services Inc. or Fitch Ratings, if available.

{5) A description of the Individual Company’s material lines of credit, credit agreements,
puhblicly traded debt securities, off-balance sheet liabilities and guarantees of third
party obligations.
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(6) Details of any medium-term plans and/or material contingent liabilities, if these could
reasonably be expected materially and adversely 1 impact the financial status of the
Individual Company,

{n A statement describing any material changes in any of the data set forth ahove, since
the date as of which such information was prepared.

{8} Any additional information supporting the financial capacity of the Individual
Company.

Note: The details provided under Section 2 will be checked to demonstrate evidence of fulfilling -
the Eligibility Critetia,
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EXHIBIT 3D - SCHEDULE €
TECHNICAL CRITERIA AND REQUIRED DOCUMENTS AND DISCLOSURES

An Individual Company may seek pre-qualification as a Right Holder - Operator and/or as a Right Holder
- Non-Operator by satisfying the criteria and presenting the documents and disclosures set forth below.

1 Eligibility Criteria

An Individual Company is eligible if it is able to demonstrate, to the Lebanese Petroleum
Administration:

1) For Individual Companies seeking pre-qualification as a Right Holder - Operator:
Evidence of Operatorship
i With established experience in exploration drilling in water depths in excess of
Three Hundred meters {300 m)
iil.  With an approved field development plan in water depths in excess of Three
Hundred meters (300 m) by a competent authority
lit.  With at least one offshore field in the production phase

{2) For Individual Companias seeking pre-qualification as a Right Holder - Non-Operator:
. Having experlence in petroleum production,

2 Techpical Data

The Individual Company (whether seeking pre-qualification as a Right Holder - Operator and/or Right
Holder - Non-Operator) should disclose details on the Individual Company’s experience with respect to
exploration and production activities including specifically {to the extent applicable):

| - For Individual Companies seeking pre-qualification as a Rlght Holder - Operator
A - Data requested:
{1) Provide a good faith estimate of operated deep water wells as per the table below:
Number of Exploration Wells Number of Development Wells

Year in water depths: in water depths:
300-500m | 500-1,%00m | > 1,500m 300~ 500m | 500-1,500m | >1,500m

Prior to 2014
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

(2} Provide at least one example of your experience as Operator in a field development (or
approved development plan) in water depths greater than Three Hundred (300) meters,
clearly identifying field name, location, water depth.

(3) Provide atleast one example of your experience as Operator of a producing offshore field,
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B - Additional information requested!:
(1) indicate a good faith estimate of the total capital expenditure for the last five {5) years as
per the table below.

Total CAPEX
{Mms)

Other Upstream
CAPEX (MRAS)

Exploration

Vear CAPEX (MMS)

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

It- For individual Companies seeking pre-yualification as a Right Holder - Non-Operator:
A - Data requested:
{1) Provide at least one example of your experience it field production, clearly identifying field.
name, location, and volume produced.

8 - Additional information requested:
(1) indicate a good faith estimate of the total capital expenditure for the last five (5) years as per
the table below.

Other Upstream Total
CAPEX (MM3}) CAPEX {MiM3)

Exploration

Year CAPEX {MMS}

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

{2} Indicate a good faith estimate of the number of wells and yearly production for the last five
{5) years as per the table below.

Year

Number of Exploration
Wwells

Number of
Develepment Wells

Yearly Production
BOE*

Prior to 2014

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

* Barrel of oil equivalent

Note:

» The details provided under Sections 2{1-A) and 2{i-A} will be checked to demonstrate evidence
of fulfilling the Eligibility Criteria.
« The detalls provided under Sections 2(I-8) and 2 (i1-8) will be used for information oniy.
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EXHIBIT 3D - SCHEDULE D
QHSE CRITERIA AND REQUIRED DOCUMENTS AND DISCLOSURES

An Individual Company may seek pre-quallfication as a Right Holder - Operator and/or a Right Holder
- Non-CGperator by satisfylng the criteria and presenting the documents and disclosures set forth balow,

1 Eligibility eriteria.
(1) For Individuat Companies seeking pre-qualification as a Right Holder - Operator

The Individuat Company shall be able to demonstrate, to the reasonable satisfaction of the
Lebanese Petroleum Administration, its abiiity to manage safe and secure operations in offshore
waters through its organizational and technical capacity, Specifically, the Individual Company is
required to submit:

(1)

(2)

A description of the Quallty, Haalth, Safety and Environment Management System(s)
(QHSEMS), or equivalent {with scope applicable to offshore exploration and
production) Including the management system arrangements for high risks and major
accidents.

Evidence of established and Implemanted QHSE Managament System(s) {with scope
applicable to offshore exploration and productlon) l.e. valid QHSE certification(s)
according to best internatlonal industry practice {such as IS0 5001, IS0 14001, OHSAS
18001 ete.) and/or audlt reports.

{ll) For Individual Companles seeking pra-qualiflcation as a Right Holder - Non-Operator:
The Indlvidual Company is required to submit:

(1)
{2}

2 QHSE Data

A description of the Quallty, Health, Safety and Environmant Management System(s)
{QHSEMS), or equivalent (wlth scope applicable to petroleum production).

Evidence of established and implemented QHSE Management System(s) (with scope
applicable to petroleum production) Le. valid QHSE certification{s} according to best
International industry practice and/or audlt reports.

The Individual Company (whether applying to become a pre-qualified Right Holder - Operator and/or
Right Holder - Non-Operator) shall additionally disclose the following data:

(1)

(2)

{3}

QHSE performance records for the previous five (5) vears including:

8. Annual QHSE reports

b. Major reported accidents

¢.  Maijor reported environmental incidents

d. Other e.g. Prohibition notices, criminal convictions, civil penalties, fines

related to cccupational

A copy of Corporate Social Responsibitity reports or initiatives for the past five (5) years
in line with international best standards i.e. Global Reporting Initiative or equivalent
Experience as operator in environmentally sensitive areas as well as the general
approach and management arrangements for identification, assessment and
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management of environmental aspects and impacts, taking account of local
sensitivities.

{4) Commitment of company to QHSE through membership and affiliations with
international initiatives such as International Association of Oil & Gas Producers
{lOGP}, International Petroleum Industry Environmental Conservation Association
{IPIECA), Offshore Pollution Liabllity Association {OPOL), Oil and Gas Climate Initiative
{0OGC), World Bank Zero Flaring Initiative ... etc.

Note: The detalls provided under Section 2 will be checked to demonstrate evidence of fulfilling
the Eligibility Criteria.
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EXHIBIT 4~ ¢ (dalall
FORM OF BID BOND

IRREVOCABLE STAND-BY LETTER OF CREDIT

Issued by [Name of Bank]

Date:
Mo.

Face Amount: [US$5,000,000 or €5,000,000]

The Ministry of Energy and Water of the Republic of Lebanon {the “Ministry”)
Ministry of Energy and Water ~ Republic of Lebanon

Corniche Al Nahr

Beirut, Lebanon

Dear Sirs:

1I

[Name of Bank], a organized under the laws of _ (the "Issuer’},
hereby establishes in favor of the Ministry of Energy and Water of the Republic of Lebanon its
irrevocable stand-by Letter of Credit No. (this “Letter of Credit”}, whereby the
Issuer authorizes the Ministry to draw hereunder, in a single drawing, the sum of [U$$5,000,000
or €5,000,000] {the “Face Amount”) by presentation of a Draft and a Drawing Certificate {each as
defined below) at the Issuer's office specified in Article 3 of this Letter of Credit. :

The Face Amount of this Letter of Credit may be drawn by the Ministry in the manner specified in
Article 3 of this Letter of Credit between 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on any
Banking Day, on or after the date of this Letter of Credit and prior to the expiration of this Letter
of Credit. A “Banking Day” is any day other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a day on which
commercial banks in New York City are authorized or required by law, regulation or executive order
to close.

A drawing may be made hereunder only by the presentation by the Ministry to the Issuer of a sight
draft of the Ministry drawn on the Issuer in the form attached hereto as Appendix 1 {a “Draft”)
and a certificate executed by the Ministry in the form attached hereto as Appendix 2 (a "Drawing
Certificate”). Presentation of a Dvaft and Drawing Certificate must be made at the Issuer’s office
in New York Chy located at , O at such other address in New York City as the
Issuer may designate to the Ministry by notice given in accordance with Article 8 of this Letter of
Credit.

Upon the presentation by the Ministry to the [ssuer of the Draft and Drawing Certificate at the
office of the Issuer designated pursuant to Article 3 of this Letter of Credit, the Issuer shall pay the
Face Amount by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the Ministry of Energy and Water
{or other body of the Lebanese Republic) as designated in the Drawing Certificate, within two 2}
Banking Days.

This Letter of Credit shall expire upon the eartiest of (1) the date on which a certificate executed by
the Ministry, in the form attached hereto as Appendix 3 {an “Expiration Certificate”), is presented
to the fssuer, {ii) the indefeasible payment by the Issuar to the Ministry in the manner set forth in
Article 4 of this Letter of Credit of the Face Amount upon a drawing properly made hereunder, and
{ili) 5:00 p.m,, New York City time, on November 3, 2014 (the “Long Stop Date”). Notwithstanding
the foregoing, any drawing properly made hereunder prior to the expiratlon of this Letter of Credit
shall be honored by the Issuer. Notwithstanding anything contained in Rule 3 of ISP98 (defined
betow) or herein, in the event that the Issuer’s office designated in Article 3 of this Letter of Credit
Is closed on the date set forth in (iii) of this Article 5, the expiration date of this Letter of Credit
shall be extended to the next Banking Day on which such office is open.




Yara/aft o ¥R aad Gate o dpos i sagpall Va4

6.

9.

10.

This Letter of Credit may only be drawn by, and other rights hereunder may only be exercised by,
the Ministry.

This Letter of Credit is issued subject to the International Standby Practices 1998, ICC brochure 590
{“ISP98”}, and to the extent not inconsistent therewith, shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of.... The courts of ...shall have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute
or claim arising out of or in connection with this Leiter of Credit or its subject matter or formation
{including non-contractual disputes or claims}.

All notices, demands, instructions, waivers or other communications to be provided pursuant to
this Letter of Credit shall be in writing in Engiish, shall be effective upon receipt, and shall be sent
by persanal delivery, courier or first class mail, to the following addresses;

{i) If to the Issuer, to:

[to be completed)

(i) Ifto the Ministry, to:

Ministry of Energy and Water - The Republic of Lebanon
Ministry of Energy and Water ~ Republic of Lebanon
Corniche Al Nahr

Belrut, Lebanon

Attention: The Minister of Energy and Water

With a copy to;

The Petroleum Administration

1* Floor, Marfa 200, Georges Akour] Street, Downtown
Belrut, Lebanon]

Attention; President of the Petroleum Administration

The addresses for notices given pursuant to this Letter of Credit may be changed by the Issuer or
the Ministry by means of a written notice given to the other at least fifteen (15) Banking Days prior
to the effective date of such change.

This Letter of Credit sets forth in full the Issuer’s undertaking, and such undertaking shall not in
any way be modified or amended by reference to any document, instrument or agreement
referred to herein, except the Draft, the Drawing Certificate and any Expiration Certificate.

Very truly yours,
[NAME OF BANK]
By:
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT 4 — ¢ (Saldl
APPENDIX 1

FORM OF DRAFT
Letter of Credit No,
{New York, New York]

[Date OFf Draft)

At sight

Pay to the arder of the Ministry of Energy and Water, the Republic of Lebanon the sum of US$5,000,000
(Five Million U.S. Dollars}, for value received. Drawn under [Name of lssuer] Letter of Credit No.

MINISTRY OF ENERGY AND WATER, THE REPUBLIC OF
LEBANON

By

Name:

Title:

To: [Name of Issuer]

[Address of issuer]
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EXHIBIT 4~ ¢ (Gatall
APPEMDIX 2

FORM OF DRAWING CERTIFICATE

Reference is made to the Letier of Credit (the “Letter of Credit”}, No. dated

, issued by in favor of the Ministry of Energy and Water, the

" Republic of Lebanon. Capitalized tetms used herein and not defined have the respective meanings set’
forth in the Letter of Credit or the Final Tender Protocol dated [[date), 2019] {the “Tender Protocol”)
issued by the Ministry of Energy and Water of the Lebanese Republic with respect to the Second
Licensing Round for Hydrocarbon Exploration within the Offshore of the Lebanese Jurisdiction (the
“Second Licensing Round”),

The undersigned, being duly authorized to execute this certificate on behalf of the Ministry, hereby
certifies that pursuant to the Second Licensing Round a consortium composed of [include names of
consortium members] (the “Applicant”) was selected to enter inte an Exploration and Production
Agreement with the Republic of Lebanon, and that one of the following events has occurred:

1, The Applicant did not sign the Exploration and Production Agreement and
deliver it to the Minister of Energy and Water (the “Minister”) by the date
defined in Article 17.4 of the Tender Protocol; or

2. The fully executed Work Commitment Guarantee for the first Exploration
Period required by the Exploration and Production Agreement was not
delivered to the Minister by the date defined in Article 17.4 of the Tender
Protocol; or

3. The fully executed Parent Company Guarantee(s} required by the Exploration
and Production Agraement was/were not delivered to the Minister by the date
definad in Article 17.4 of the Tender Protocol.

Payment of the Face Amount of the Letter of Credit is to be made by the Issuer to the following
account: (to be communicated by the Ministry in due course)

This certificate has been duly executed by the undersigned as of the day of

MINISTRY (OF ENERGY AND WATER, THE REPUBLIC OF
LEBANON

By:
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT 4 - ¢ Jalal
APPENDIX 3

FORM OF EXPIRATION CERTIFICATE

Reference is made to the Letter of Credit {the "Letter of Credit”) Mo, , tated
, issued by in favor of the Ministry of Energy and Water, the

Republic of Lebanon. Capitalized terms used herein and not defined have the respective meanings set
forth in the Letter of Credit.

The undersigned, being duly authorized to execute this certificate on behalf of the Ministry, hereby
certifies that conditions permitting the expiration of the Letter of Credit have occurred, and that
accordingly the Letter of Credit shall expire as of the date of this Certificate.

This certificate has been duly executed by the undersigned as of the day of

MINISTRY OF ENERGY AND WATER, THE REPUBLIC OF
LEBANON

By:

Name:

Title:
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EXHIBIT 5 — ¢ (dall
TECHNICAL PROPOSAL FORM
Block No. {tha “Block”)
Applicant [state names of individual Companles):
1. The technical report in line with the guidelines as per Exhibit 6
2. Proposed Minimum Work Commitments and Indicative Work Commitment Amounts:
Perlod Unit ay. (N}
1. First Exploration Period* Committed Exploration Wells {to be filled)
2. Second Exploration Period Commitied Exploration Wells {to be filled)
* Please refer to the minimum requirements with respect to the number of Exploration Wells stated in
Article 8.9 of the Tender Protocol,
Work item Unit Flrst Second Third Total
Committed | Committed Committed Indicative
Exploration | Exploration | Exploration |  Work
well Well Well** Commitment
Amount
1. First Exploration Perfod
Indicative Work Milllons of US Dollars | {tobe filled) | {tobe filled, | {to be filled, {to be filled)
Commitment Amount {MUSD) if opplicable} | if applicable)
True verticat depth (to be filled) | (tobe filled, | (tobe filled,
Estimated Well Depth measured from mean if applicable) | if applicable) §
sea level {meters)
2. Second Exploration Perlod
Indicative Work Millians of US Dollars § {to be filled} | (tobe filled, | (tobe filied, {to be filled)
Commitment Amount {MUsD) if appiicable) | if applicalde)
True vertical depth {to be filled) | (to be filled, | (io be filied,
Estimated Well Depth measured from mean if applicable) | if applicable)
sea level (meters)

e Right Holders to include an additionai column in respect of each additional Exploration Well propesed as
part of the Minfmim Work Commitment.

3. The Applicant hereby attests that the Indicative Work Commitment Amounts provided above are
the Applicant’s good falth estimate of the cost of carrying out the Minimum Work Commitments
for the first and second Exploration Periods.

Date:

[Typed Name of Authorized Representative]

[Signature of Authorized Representative]
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EXHIBIY 6 = 1 (5alal
GUIDELINES FOR THE TECHNICAL REPORT

E6.1 - GENERAL INFORMATION

The purpose of these guidelines is to outline the required report that each Applicant shall submit in
addition to the Technical and Commercial Proposals. The required report includes the following:

- the overall geological understanding and exploration strategy

- the preliminary development concepts and gas commerciatization vision

- the national content vision

- The QHSE understanding and implementation tailored to the Lebanese context

The content of the technical report submitted by the Applicant shall be considered confidential by the
Petroleum Administration and shall be treated accordingly as per Article 13 of the Tender Protocol.,

E6.1.1 General Procedures

The technical guideline shall be delivered both as paper copy {in binder) and electronic format on USB
Memeory Stick {USB). A label with the Applicant’s name must be securely affixed to the USB. The USB
must be tabelled in a manner which clearly shows which Licensing Round Application it relates to. The
UsB version of the geologic report will be digitally archived by the authorities. Note, the paper copy
and the USB copy should be identical,

E6.1.2 Report Publishing Guidelines / Standards

1. Font: Times New Roman - size 12

2. Single/standard line spacing

3. Allinformation in the figures and maps is legible

4. Alf maps must have coordinates and scale

5. Allmeasurements (depth, area, volume etc.} must be given in metric units

6. Digital Versions (PDF)

7. GIS format {layers) — shapefile {.shp} or ArcGIS Geodatabase Including attribute tables
8. Additional Information {per aforementioned layer) — Metadata

9

GIS Project fotmat - .mxd project (ArcGIS Version 10.x}, Coordinate System ~ UTM 36 N
{Universal Transverse Mercator) Spherold WGS 84

10, Maps must be presented as separate files and must Include (see section 1.4)
- GIS format (layers) ~ shapefile {.shp} or ArcGI§ Geodatabase including attribute tables

- Metadata
- GIS project format - .mxd project (ArcGIS verslon 10.x)
- Coardinate System (UTh 36 N} Spheroid WGS 84
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£6.1.3 Deliverables

1. Loose-leaf binder
2. Paper copy of report based on tables supplied at the end of this guide
3. USB attached inside each binder, Tha USB must contain:
— One file in pdf-format {Adobe Acrobat Document) with the report

~ One file pdf-format showing the block applied for, with outline of all prospects/leads
prasented in the report representing the good middle estimate (P50} of the prospect
assessment, unless it is deemed necessary to include outlines representing other
statistical confidence levels for estimates, spacifically P10 and/or P90

—~ Components of Tables 2, & 3 duly and accurately supplied

Templates of the forms for use in the report can be found on the LPA’s website,
www.lpa.gov.lb/technicalproposalforms. These should be filled in as accurately as posslble and
supplied along with the report. There are stated guidelines for the number of pages in the different
parts of the report.

E6.1.4 Nomenciature of Seismic Horizons

formal nomenclature should be used where it exists. Thera are seven main seismic horizons (SH)
throughout the whole ofishore Lebanon, plus additional local horizons (LH).

Table 1 lists the following seismic horizons that have been interpreted offshore Lebanon and mapped
regionally along with a short description.

Figure 1 shows a horizen identification example along an arbitrary line.
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Table 1 Formal Nomenclature for Horlzons

Horizon Identification

Short Description

Seabed
{SH1)

Corresponds to a strong and continuous reflaction induced by the contrast
of velocity between the seawater and the Quaternary sediments below the
seabed

Selsmic Horizon 2
(SH2)

Shallowest interpreted reflector which separates the sadiments above
from the Messinian Evaporites

Seismic Horizon 3
{SH 3)

Comprises both the base of the evaporites in the basin and the Messinian
erostonal surface on the margin:

- Strong reflector corresponding to the contrast between high velocities in
the Messinian Evaporites and low velocities in the underlying unit.

- On the margin, the base Messinian is the shallowest unconformity.

Seismic Horizon 4
(SH 4}

In the deep basin, this horizon corresponds to the base of a strong
amplitude reflections package that becomes thinner towards the margin
and pinches out on the unconformity {see below).

Seismic Horlzon 5
(SH 5)

Corresponds to a strong regionally continuous selsmic reflection. This
horizon pinches out on unconformity eastward on the margin,

Seismic Horizon 6

(SH 6}

Corresponds to the top of a significant transparent unit that ends with two
serles of reflectors slightly more powerful.

Seismic Horizon 7
{SH7)

This is a regional unconformity:
- Inthe basin, it corresponds to the top of high amplitude package.

- On the margin, it corresponds to the top of the carbonate platform.
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E6.2 GEOLOGICAL UNDERSTANDING AND EXPLORATION STRATEGY

The objective of the exploration work programme is to effectively evaluate and test the petroleum
resource potential in all parts of the license area. Hence, the Applicant shall submit an exploratien
strategy that will advance the understanding of the petroleum potential and test the viable targets,
The strategy will explain and qualify the proposed work programme and should include:

e« The database that has been utilized and special studies done to evaluate the blocks applied for

« The understanding of the regional geclogy in terms of sedimentology and structural geology
and how this applies to the evaluation of the area

s An analysis of the hydrocarbon system and risk elements

» The mapping process of the areas applied for regarding the identification of plays, feads and
prospects

* The resource assessment of leads and prospects and the evaluation of probability of discovery

» The plan for implementation of the work program reflecting the time schedule, milestones and
prospect interdependency

£6.2.1 Database

This section should contain the following components presenting the amount, type and details of the
geophysical datasets and any new reprocessing the applicant proposes to undertake, if any. It should
be limited to three pages, including maps/figures/tables/charts,

In this regard, the Applicant should address the following points :
. Confirmation that the Applicant has met the requirements of the Tender Protocol with
regard to licensing the Geophysical data within the block
s Additional proprietary or multiclient data used in their wider evaluation
* Justification of the amount of data to be reprocessed in the block, if any
s Plan to acquire additional technical data in the block that will add value, if any

£6.2.2 Regional Geology

This section should contain the following components presenting a regional approximation of the
prospectivity of the block applied for. It should be limited to 10 pages, including
maps/figures/tables/charts.

The foliowing items should be discussed:

«  Geodynamic evolution of the eastern Mediterranean
«  Main Tectonic and Stratigraphic events

&« Play Fairway and Play Fairway Map

¢  Play Models

s Description of relevant studies used for evaluationi.a. short summary, limited to ona page,
consisting of conclusions and arguments for the relevance of each report
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£6.2.3 Petroleum Systems Analysis

This section should contain the following components presenting a petroleum systems analysis of the
acreage applied for. It should be limited to 10 pages, including maps/figures/tables/charts.

The following items should be briefly discussed:

e Basin Development

o Stratigraphic and sedimentological framework, including  reservoir
development and prediction of reservoir quality

o Structural framework, including trap development and evaluation
seal/retention characteristics

o Basin development, including source rocks, maturity and migration
e Modeling & evaluation of petroleum system elements

The analysis must focus on the elements of the petroleum system which are considered critical for the
prospectivity of the area and for its evaluation. lfustrations should be provided to accompany text.

£6.2.4 Block Evaluation [Geologicat and Technical)

A geological and technical evaluation report shall be prepared for each block, containing a technical
evaluation for the prospect and/or leads identified, in the format defined below. The report should
include completed summary sheets as shown in table 2 below.

Table 2: Summary - Resource Potentiel

£6.2.4.1 Prospect Description
The following should be documented and assessed for each prospect:

Depositional environment and reservoir type
Trap and seal

Hydrocarbon type

Source

Migration

«a & o o @
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© Trap fil
The evaluation must explain conditions which are considered critical for the prospect.

The following documentation should be included for each prospect;

¢ Qverview map with coordinates, clearly showing the outlines reprasenting statistical
confidence levels for estimates of high case (P10), expected case (P50} & low case (P90)
Position of the seismic line and the geological profile (should alsa be submitted digitally)
Setsmic profiles in crossing directions and geological profile across the prospects

Time- and depth maps of reservoir horizons presented at identical scales, If available

If relevant, seismic attribute maps

Other documentation and figures can be included if they are relevant to the prospect
description

Available key data for each prospect should be listed in Table 3.

E6.2.4.2 Estimation of Prospective Resources
The following should be documented and briefly commented upon;

- @ Estimation of rock volume and uncertainty

® Description and reasoning behind the choice of reserveir parameters, gas/oil ratlo,
expansion/shrink factors, recovery rate

*  Total resource estimate

® Resource estimates in metric unit with their uncertainty ranges for estimates (P90, P10 and
expected value} should be stated in table 3

If only parts of the mapped prospect occur in the block applied for, you must clearly Indicate the
percentage this constitutes within the block, as well as the total resoutce estimate. lllustrations should
be provided to accompany text.

£6.2.4.3 POS and Method for Risk Analysis
The following should be documented and assessed for each prospect:

+  Risk analysis method used
e Probability of success of the identified prospect
e Probability of the individual risk elements

£6.2.4.4 Leads
The following should be documented and assessed for each lead;

¢ Luads identified
¢ Estimate of the resource potential, if possible
*  Description of what is needed to mature the lead {0 a prospect
¢ lllustrations to accompany text
Available key data for each lead should be fisted in Table 3.
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Tubfe 3 Key Data for Praspect / Lead
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E6.2.5 Tentative Duration of the Projected Activities

This section should contain the following components presenting a tentative duration of the projected
activities for the exploration phase:

* Timing and duration of projected activities
*  Explanation and justificstion for projected actlvities
+  Timeline {e.g. figure}

E6.3 DEVELOPMENT CONCEPTS AND GAS COMMERCIALISATION

Future developments and preduction from petroleum fields will create significant value to the
Lebanese society. Based on the results from regional petroleum activities and the present
understanding of the resource potential, it is likely that future discoveries will be gas.

Hence, the Applicant’s competence and capacity in field development under similar conditions and the
understanding and experience in bringing gas to the market will be essential. The Applicant is
therefore reguested to Include a submlssion addressing the following key issues:

+ The main concepts and relevant experlence for the development of gas resources under
offshore conditions similar to those axpected in the Lebanese offshore

¢ The key barrlers and challenges for the commerclallzation of gas resources offshore Lebanon
» Strategic options for bringing the gas resources to the market

E6.4 NATIONAL CONTENT

One of the fundamental plilars for the oil and gas sector in Lebanon states that the sector must produce
positive spill-over effects on the Lebanese economy. Additional value must be achieved through
enhanced Lebanese participation in oil and gas activities. These requirements are further stipulated in
the legal and contractual framewaork for the sector.

The Applicant should demonstrate how these national content requirements will be met and give
proper references to the capabilities and experlences in this regard and provide the following
submissions:

¢ The procurement strategy to be implemented to enhance the national content reflecting the
preferential treatment of Lebanese goods and services (see the requirements in Article 27 of
the Moadel EPA)

+ The measures to be taken to integrate Lebanese suppliers in in the supply chain

+ The identification of potential barriers for the antrance for Lebanese suppliers and measures
- to be taken to overcome such barrlers
¢ The plan to be followed tc establish an effective recruitment program and to meet the

required staff level of Lebanese nationzls in the organization (see the requirements in Article
20.%1 of the Model EPA)

¢ The training strategy to be implemented to facilitate employment of Lebanese and to ensure
that personnel engaged in petroleum activities have adequate qualifications
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E6.5 QHSE UNDERSTANDING AND IMPLEMENTATION

The Applicant is expected to describe:

Its approach to an established and implemented management system for its petroleum
activities in Lebanon including potential challenges, limitations and tentative timeframe

Its understanding of the relevant statutory safety, health and environmental provisions, and
ungerstanding of the key roles and responsihilities of operator/licensees In relation to safety
and environmental management

Abrief environmental sensitivity assessment to demonstrate awareness about any sensitivities
within or Immediately adjacent to the block of interest, and awareness of the potentlal impacts
and rlsks that wouid have to be managed during the executlon of potential future petroleum
activities

Any voluntary actions to mitigate emissions and offset impacts, in recognition of the national
and international focus on climate change



¥4y TRETATAWEA i WOV IPVC P TV BRI

EXHIBIT 7 - ¥  3alalf
COMMERCIAL PROPOSAL FORM

Block No.

Applicant [state names of Individual Companles):

1. <Cost Petroleum ceiling (3} (as applied pursuant to Article 23.3 of the definitive Model
Exploration and Production Agreement):

Cost Petroleum
Ceiling {9} (to be filled)

2. Profit Petroleum sharing formula (as defined in Article 24 of the definitive Model
Exploration and Production Agreement):

A (%) (to be filled)
B (%) {to be filled)
Re (to be fitled)

«  Ramust be greater than 1. B must be greater than A,

« The above mentioned parcentages are on a pre-tax basis.

«  Cost Patrolaum Celling shall not exceed a Himlt of 69% of disposable petrolaum,
« A shall have a minimurm valua of 30%,

Date:

. {Typed Nare of Authorized Represertativa]

[Slgnatura of Authorlzed Reprasentative)
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EXHIBIT 8 ~ A |
THE NINE SCENARIOS AND THE COMMERCIAL BID EVALUATION METHODOLOGY

The Nine Scenarios
Model Fields:
Three hypothetical model field sizes, identical in each block:
2 (two) tcf of gas & 14 (fourteen) mmbbl of liquids
5 {flve) tcf of gas & 35 {thirty-five) mmbbl of liquids
10 {ten) tcf of gas & 70 {seventy) mmbbl of liquids
rices:
Three price cases (low, base and high):
Liquids: $50 (fifty USD)/bbl, $65 {Sixty-five USD)/bbl , $80 {eighty USD)/bbl
Gas: 34 {four USD)/mcf, $5.5 (five USD and fifty cents)/mef , $7 (seven USD)/mcf
Liquids price assumptions are based on the Long Term Brant forecast,

Gas price assumptions are benchmarked agalnst relevant international market gas prices
with no Brent linkage and applied to domaestic and export production {priced st beach),

Discount Rate:
The real discount rate (8%/year) wlill be used In calculating the discounted average total
governmertt take. A constant inflation rate of 2% / year will be assumed.

Number of Scenarios:

Three (3) field sizes, Three {8} price cases, One (1) discount rate result in Nine (9) scenarios

Scenarios should be profitable on a ‘pre-tax’ and ‘minlmum bid’ basls,

Basis of Data:

The assumptions that are used within the scenarios are created solely for the purpose of
comparing different commercial bids.

They should not be seen as an indication of the expectations of the Lebanese Petroleum
Administration with respect to pricing or prospect sizes.

Calculation of Total Government Take Methodology:

The total governmenti take for each bid will be calculated as the discounted net cash flow
accruing to the Government of Lebanon. The total government take will consist of the
following elements that are payable on a block by block basis:

* Rovyalty
* Government Profit Share
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s Corporate Income Tax {CiT}{as per law 57/2017: Tax Provisions related to petroleum
activities in accordance to Law 132 dated 24 August 2010)

Scoring Methodology:
A — For each bid per Block:

1- For each scenario, the discounted total government take is calculated,

2- The average of a bid’s totai government take {TGT) for the nine scenarios is
calculated.

B - The bid with the highest average Total Government Take (TGTma) is given a worth of 80
marks. Other bids will receive marks as below: '

TGT e ?'GT"““

TeTrn = TGTogn < O

Commercial Mark =

Where,

TGTmin is computed as the average discounted total government take [calculated based on

A=B=30%
CP=65%%

the predefined scenarios) using the following commercial parameters:
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